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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office : 35, 4th Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex
Marine Drive, Cochin 682031. Phone 0484 — 2374154
Website: www.cial.aero, E-mail : cs@cial.aero
CIN : U63033KL1994PLC007803

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21 Annual General Meeting of Cochin International Airport will be held on
Tuesday, 18" day of August 2015 at 11.00 a.m. at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts Avenue,
Ernakulam 682 020, to transact the following business.

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date, Annexures and Schedules thereto and the report of
the Directors and Auditors of the Company..

To declare dividend on the paid up equity shares of the company for the year ended 315 March, 2015.

To appoint a Director in the place of Sri.E.M Babu (DIN 00788889) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in the place of Sri N V George (DIN 00278319) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in the place of Sri.K.Babu (DIN 03558308) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and the Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) the
retiring auditors M/s. Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam (Firm
Registration No:001488S) be and are hereby re-appointed as the statutory auditors of the company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual
General Meeting of the company on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of
the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

7.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that, pursuant to Section 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Sri Kuriakos Roy Paul (DIN 02863821) who
was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 27"
March, 2015 and who holds office till the date of the AGM, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies
Act 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his intention to propose Sri Kuriakos Roy Paul as
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a candidate for the office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 18" August 2015 and is not liable
to retire by rotation.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that, pursuant to Section 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, SmtAthiyarath Kothai Ramani (DIN
07188269) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors
with effect from 27" March, 2015 and who holds office till the date of the AGM, in terms of Section
161 of the Companies Act 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member under Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his intention to
propose Smt.Athiyarath Kothai Ramani as a candidate for the office of a Director of the Company,
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of three years
with effect from 18" August 2015 and is not liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that Sri.Jiji Thomson IAS, who was appointed as an Additional Director and in respect
of whom the Company has received from a member a notice under section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 proposing the candidature of Sri.Jij Thomson |IAS for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director and the period of office of Sri.Jiji Thomson |IAS shall be liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

By order of the Board
for Cochin International Airport Limited

Sd/-

Place: Ernakulam Saji K.George

Date

Notes:
%

: 12 June 2015 Company Secretary

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the
business set out in the notice is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person
can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in aggregate not more than
10% of the total share capital of the Company. However, a member holding more than 10% of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and
such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or member.Form of Proxy is attached at the
end of the Annual Report.

Instrument of Proxies, in order to be effective must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate

resolution/authority, as applicable.
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Admission strictly restricted to members / proxies only and members / proxies are advised to bring
the attendance slip, duly filled up and signed, and handover the same at the entrance and collect the
entry pass.

The register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 05%
August 2015 to 18" August 2015 both days inclusive.

The dividend on equity shares of the company as recommended by the Board of Directors of the
company, if declared in the Annual General Meeting of the company will be paid to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members as on 18" August 2015.

Members may please note that the company has regularly paid dividend since 2003-04. The details
of members who have not encashed their dividend warrants have been uploaded to the website of
the company (www.cial.aero). Those members who have still not encashed their dividend warrants
in respect of any of the above mentioned periods are requested to submit their dividend warrants
to the registered office of the company for revalidation / re-issue. Please also note that after 7
years from the date of declaration of dividend for any financial year, the balance available as unpaid
dividend would be remitted to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of Central Government
as per the provisions of Section 124(5) & Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The unpaid
dividend pertaining to the financial year 2007-08 is due for remittance to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund of Central Government in this year.

Voting through electronic means:

a) The remote voting period begins from 08.00 hours (IST) on 10" August 2015 and ends at 17.00
hours (IST) on 17" August 2015. During this period shareholders of the Company may cast their
vote electronically. The Company has fixed 05" August 2015 as the cutoff date for determining
voting right of shareholders entitled to participate in the e-voting process.

b) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the members, the members shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

¢) The facility for voting through ballot / polling paper shall also be made available at the meeting
and members attending the meeting who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting
shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting;

d) The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend
the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

e) Shri.Sathish V, Practising Company Secretary, B1, Periellath Apartment, Jawahar - Mahatma
Road, Vyttila, Kochi - 682019 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

f)  The Scrutinizer shall after counting the votes cast at the meeting, unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and present not later than 3 days of conclusion of the meeting a Consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Managing Director or a
person authorized by him in writing.

g) The Results of voting shall be declared forthwith by the Managing Director or a person

authorized by him. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Consolidated Report shall
be placed on the Company’s website www.cial.aero and on the website of CDSL.
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h) For availing the e-voting facility, the Shareholders should first logon to the e-voting website
https://www.evotingindia.com.
(i) Selectthe ‘SHAREHOLDERS’ Tab on the right side of the page.
(iiy Now enter your USER ID in the column provided. (Shareholders should enter their
folio number registered with the company as your User Id. [t may be noted that the
shareholders are required to give their folio number in eight digit format. (for example,

the Folio No: is 23, then the shareholder has to enter in USER ID column as 00000023.
Similarly, if the folio no: is R475, then the shareholder has to enter as R0O000475).

(iii) Now enter the Image Verification Code displayed on the box and click on LOGIN.

(iv) A column to enter your PAN number will appear. In this column, the total number
of characters are 10. Shareholders are required to enter their number of shares in
figures followed by the name of shareholder as it appears in the share certificate in
CAPITAL LETTERS

eg: If you are holding 1000 shares and your name is C.V.RAMESH, then enter
1000CVRAME in the PAN field.

If the total number of characters is less than 10 digits, add required number of zeros after
the name to make it 10 digits.

eg: If you are holding 50 shares and your name is JOHN.T , then enter 50JOHNTOOQO in
the PAN field.

(v) Inthe column to enter Bank Account Number, enter your folio number in eight digit format.
(vi) The column to enter Date of Birth may be left blank.

(vii) After filling up all the above details, click on SUBMIT tab.

(viii) You will reach the Investor Voting Screen. Click on the EVSN. (Current EVSN is 150710004)

(ix) Onthe nextpage, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same you
can see the options "YES/NO” for voting decision. Select the option YES or NO as desired.
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

(x) Click onthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xi) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.
A confirmation box will appear. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, or else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote and do the same
procedure.

(xii)) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

(xiii) Click the “Click here to print” link to print the vote casted by you.

N for Non — Individual St hold | C i
Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. For any assistance, you may contact the
office of M/s CDSL (India) Limited at the telephone no: 18002005533 (Monday - Friday : 10.00 IST to 18.15
IST and Saturday : 10.00 IST to 14.00 IST) or email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Al
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. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the Entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Expl | Stat | t to Secti 102 of the C ies Act, 2013
Item No: 7

The Board of Directors of the Company during the meeting held on 27" March 2015 appointed Sri.Kuriakos
Roy Paul (K.Roy Paul - DIN 02863821) as Independent Director (Additional Director) of the Company and he
holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing from
a member proposing the candidature of Sri.K.Roy Paul for the office of Director under the provisions of Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with a deposit of Rs.1 lakh.

The Company has received from Sri.K.Roy Paul (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (ii) intimation in Form
DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is
not disqualified under Sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and (iii) a declaration to the
effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Sub section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No:7 for approval of the shareholders appointing
Sri.K.Roy Paul as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of three
years.

Sri K. Roy Paul joined the Indian Administrative Service in 1967 and was Secretary, Ministry of Civil Aviation
(March 2002 to June 2004). He headed a high level committee for drawing up a future road map for Indian civil
aviation sector and to bring about changes in the policy framework governing the civil aviation sector. He also
headed another Committee to suggest measures for improving the Airport infrastructure in the country.

No Directors other than Sri K. Roy Paul himself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concemed or interested in the said resolution.

Item No: 8

The Board of Directors of the Company during the meeting held on 27th March 2015 appointed Smt Athiyarath
Kothai Ramani (A.K.Ramani) as Independent Director (Additional Director) of the Company and she holds
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing from a
member proposing the candidature of Smt.A.K.Ramani for the office of Director under the provisions of Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with a deposit of Rs.1 lakh.
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The Company has received from Smt.A.K.Ramani (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (ii) intimation in Form
DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she
is not disqualified under Sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and (iii) a declaration
to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Sub section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No:8 for approval of the shareholders appointing
Smt.A.K.Ramani as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of
three years.

Smt A.K.Ramani is a Civil Engineer by profession, and started her career as Assistant Engineer in Harbour
Engineering Department in 1985. She has 28 years of experience in Kerala Water Authority and retired as
Chief Engineer of Kerala Water Authority in 2014. She has vast experience in the field of investigation, design,
execution of major projects in the State of Kerala.

No Directors other than Smt.A.K.Ramani herself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No: 9

Sri.Jiji Thomson, a 1980 batch |AS officer of Kerala Cadre and presently serving as the Chief Secretary of
Government of Kerala. He has served in many departments including Youth Affairs & Sports, Social Justice &
Empowerment Tribal Welfare, Personnel & General Administration etc. He was the Director General of Sports
Authority of India (SAl).

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Sri.Jiji Thomson IAS, Chief Secretary to Government of Kerala, was appointed as an Additional
Director by the Board of Directors with effect from 27t March, 2015 and he holds office upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature of Sri.Jiji Thomson
IAS for the office of Director under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 alongwith a
deposit of Rs.1 lakh. The Directors recommend the resolution for adoption.

No Directors other than Sri.Jiji Thomson himself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.

By order of the Board
for Cochin International Airport Limited

Sd/-
Place: Ernakulam Saji K.George
Date : 12" June 2015 Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty First Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial

statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

(Rupees in crores)

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2014 -15 2013 -14

Total Income 413.96 361.39
Less : Expenses 234.67 203.93
Profit before Tax 179.29 157.46
Less : Tax Expenses

Current Tax (net) 37.58 33.55

Tax for earlier years - (1.50)

Deferred Tax (2.87) 1.04
Profit after Tax 144.58 124.37
Add : Balance of profit for earlier years *245.83 209.34
Amount available for appropriations 390.41 333.71
Less : Appropriations

Proposed Dividend 64.27 55.09

Tax on Dividend 13.73 9.36

Transfer to General Reserve 14.46 9.33
Amount to be carried forward to Balance Sheet 297.95 259.93

* After the adjustment of Rs.14.10 crore for tangible assets having no remaining useful life.

The highlights of the Company’s performance during the current year are as under:

. Total revenue from operations increased by 14.55% to Rs.413.96 crore
. Profit before Tax increased by 13.86% to Rs.179.29 crore.

. Cash Profit increased by 14.55%.

. Profit after Tax increased by 16.25% to Rs.144.58 crore.

. Duty Free Sales increased by 19.69% .

. Total passenger traffic increased by 19.03% to 6.4 million

. Total Aircraft Movements increased by 11.81% to 52793 numbers per annum.

. International and Domestic Cargo handled, increased by 17.57% and 29.24% respectively.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

a. Financial overview:

During the year under review, your Company has recorded commendable growth in all key perfor-
mance parameters. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2015 was Rs.413.96 crores which
recorded an impressive growth of 14.55% over the previous financial year. The Company earned
pre-tax profit of Rs. 179.29 crore as against Rs.157.46 crores during 2013 — 14 which registered a

growth of 13.86%.
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During the financial year under review, the total passenger movement through the Airport was more

than 6.40 Million which also showed an impressive growth of 19.03% over the previous year.

b. Aircraft, Passenger and Cargo movement

The details of aircraft movement through your airport for the year under review and the previous year

are presented below:

Aircraft Movement (in numbers)

Aircraft Movement

Year Total

International Sector Domestic Sector
2013 —-14 23134 24082 47216
2014 - 15 25970 26823 52793
Increase / (Decrease) in nos 2836 2741 5577
Increase / (Decrease) in % 12.26% 11.38% 11.81%

Passenger Movement (in numbers)
Passenger Movement

Year Total

International Sector Domestic Sector
2013 - 14 3271755 2114708 5386463
2014 - 15 3743980 2667731 6411711
Increase / (Decrease) in nos 472225 553023 1025248
Increase / (Decrease) in % 14.43% 26.15% 19.03%

Cargo Movement (in MTs)
v International Domestic
ear
Import Export Total Receipt Despatch Total

2013 -14 13189 332¢7 46466 5825 2150 7975
2014 - 15 12234 42394 54628 7677 2630 10307
Increase / (Decrease) in MTs 8162 2332
Increase / (Decrease) in % 17.57% 29.24%

As you may observe from the above tables, there has been an appreciable growth in all the key
segments compared to the previous year.
DIVIDEND

Your Board is pleased to recommend a dividend of 21% (Twenty one percent) on the paid up value
of equity shares as on 31% March 2015, for the year under review to the shareholders, subject to the
relevant provisions in the Articles of Association and if approved by the shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

1. New International Terminal building and allied facilities:
There has been a steady increase in the growth of passenger traffic through your Airport, and your
Company has been able to retain its position as the fourth largest airport in the Country in terms of
international traffic. During the period under review, the total passenger traffic crossed 6.40 million,
making it the seventh largest airport in the Country. The consistent growth in air traffic and the
emergence of major start-up airlines is expected to bring us closer to our vision to make this airport
the hub of air traffic in South India.

In order to cope up with the exponential growth in air traffic, your Company has already commenced
the construction of a state-of-the-art International Terminal building, having two levels, with the
arrival area on the ground floor and the departures on the first floor. The structure of the building
having an area of 15 lakh square feet is fast nearing completion. It is expected that the new
International Terminal will be operational during May 2016. The new Terminal will have a capacity to
handle 4000 pax during peak hours and when fully operational, will have 112 check-in counters, 19
gates and 15 aerobridges.

The car park area adjoining the new International Terminal will be able to accommodate 1,500 cars
at a time and will be equipped with state-of-the-art access control systems. The completion of the
new four-lane railway over bridge which is under construction adjacent to the existing over bridge will
provide seamless four-lane connectivity from the national highway to the Airport.

After the completion of the new International Terminal, the existing International Terminal having an
area of about 5 lakh square feet will be converted as the new Domestic Terminal, with a five-fold
increase in area.

2. Other major initiatives:

At present, your Airport consumes approximately 50,000 units of electricity, on an average, every
day. The cost of power is a significant component of the operating cost of your Company, which is
expected to increase further, in the years to come. To achieve the aim of becoming self sufficient
in power, your Airport has already taken steps to set up a 12 MWp solar PV power plant within the
Airport, which is expected to be commissioned during August 2015. This initiative will be in line with
your Company's vision to become a ‘Green Airport’ fulfilling its responsibilities and obligations, to
protect our precious planet and to sustain its natural resources for current and future generations.

Your Company has also diversified into Small Hydro Power sector in a significant way through its
subsidiary company, CIAL Infrastructures Limited. Already 8 Small Hydro Electric Power Projects
(SHEPs) with an aggregate capacity of approximately 50 MW have been allotted to CIAL
Infrastructures Limited by the Power Department, Government of Kerala, for implementation on
BOOT basis. The various preliminary works such as topographic surveys, preparation of detailed
project reports, land acquisition efc., are in progress, and it is expected that the construction works
can be commenced at various sites shortly.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Companies Act 2013 and the relevant Accounting Standards, the audited consolidated
financial statements are provided in the Annual Report.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CIAL has three subsidiary companies, namely Cochin International Aviation Services Limited (CIASL), CIAL
Infrastructures Limited (CIL) and Air Kerala International Services Limited (AKISL).

1.

Cochin International Aviation Services Limited

Cochin International Aviation Services Limited (CIASL) is a subsidiary of CIAL, which has been
incorporated for diversifying into aircraft maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) services and for
aviation training. CIASL is currently undertaking line maintenance services for several international
carriers operating at Cochin International Airport. The organization has secured approvals from
regulators like Director General of Civil Aviation (DGCA), European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA),
General Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA, UAE), Civil Aviation Authority of Singapore (CAAS), Qatar
Civil Aviation Authority (QCAA), efc., for line maintenance services. For base maintenance (Major
Maintenance), the Company has established two narrow body aircraft hangars, with easy and direct
access to the airport runway. The organization is also exploring a technical partnership with reputed
MRO service providers to commence base maintenance services.

CIAL Infrastructures Limited

CIAL Infrastructures Limited (CIL) is another subsidiary of CIAL, incorporated for diversifying into
power and other infrastructure sectors. CIL has already commissioned a one MWp solar power
plant at the Airport premises, during November 2013, and the plant has generated approximately
21 lakhs units of power, which was consumed entirely by CIAL. CIL is now in the process of setting
up another 12 MWp solar power plant in the Airport premises, which is expected to be commissioned
during August 2015. CIL has also taken steps to implement eight small hydro electric power (SHEP)
projects in different locations in our State aggregating to approximately 50 MW, which are in various
stages of progress.

Air Kerala International Services Limited

Air Kerala International Services Limited (AKISL) is a subsidiary of Cochin International Airport
Limited, and the primary objective of the Company is to operate a low cost airline based at Cochin
International Airport, to benefit the huge population of non-resident Keralites in the Middle East.
Because of the restriction by Government of India, that any Indian carrier seeking to operate
international airline services should first have a fleet of at least 20 aircraft and a five year experience
in operating domestic services, the Company has kept the proposal in abeyance.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors state that:

a)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 11l to the Act, have been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date:
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c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was
observed.

DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (6) of section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, two-third of the total
number of Directors excluding Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation and out of which one-third
has to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting. Sri. K. Babu (DIN 03558308), Sri. N VV George
(DIN 00278319), Sri. E.M Babu (DIN 00788889) are therefore liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The board therefore recommends their
reappointment as Directors of the Company.

During the year under review, the Board appointed Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (Sri.K.Roy Paul - DIN 02863821) as
Independent Director and Smt. Athiyarath Kothai Ramani (Smt. A.K.Ramani - DIN 07188269) as Independent
Women Director with effect from 27.03.2015, who are not liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions
of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013. Necessary declarations have been
obtained from them, as envisaged under the Act. The Board ensured that their appointments as Independent
Directors are in compliance with the requirements under the Companies Act 2013.

Sri Jiji Thomson IAS (DIN 01178227), Chief Secretary to Government of Kerala was appointed as Additional
Director, in the place of Sri E.K Bharath Bhushan (DIN 01124966) former Chief Secretary of GOK. Dr. P Mohamed
Ali (DIN 00288556), Director resigned from the Board during the year under review on account of personal
reasons.

Declaration on Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the requirements
as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013, so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as
Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules. The Board
of Directors declare that the appointment of Independent Directors (subject to approval at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting), Smt. Athiyarath Kothai Ramani and Sri Kuriakos Roy Paul are:

(a) inthe opinion of the Board, are persons of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience;
(b) who were not a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company.

(c) who are not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;
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(d) who had no pecuniary relationship with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company
or their Promoters or Directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the
current financial year;

(e) none ofwhose relatives has orhad pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company or their Promoters, or Directors, amounting to two percent or more
of its gross turnover of total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed,
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial
year;

(f) who, neither himself nor any of his/ her relatives -

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been an employee of
the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company in any of the three financial year
immediately preceding the financial year in which he/ she is proposed to be appointed,;

(i) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he/ she is proposed to be appointed, of —

A. a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

B. any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of the gross turnover of
such firm;

(iif) holds together with his/ her relative two per cent, or more of the total voting power of the
Company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that
receives twenty-five percent or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters,
directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or more of
the total voting power of the company;

(g) who possesses such other qualification as may be prescribed.

Director’s appointment and remuneration

The policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters is in compliance with Section 178(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee for this
purpose.

Pursuant to Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read
with Article 96 of the Articles of Association of the company, the Board has fixed a sitting fees of Rs.50,000
per meeting per Director for attending the Board Meeting and Rs. 25,000 per meeting per Committee Member
(Director) for attending Committee meetings of the Company.

Right Issue of Shares

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved the proposal to issue and offer 7,65,14,950 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 40/- per share for cash aggregating to Rs. 382,57,47,500 on a
Rights Basis to the eligible Equity Shareholders of the Company in the ratio of 1:4 (i.e., one new Equity Share
for every Four Fully Paid-Up Equity Shares) held as on the Record Date, that is 24.06.2015. The rights issue
of Equity Shares opens on 24" July 2015 (Friday) and closes on 22" August 2015 (Saturday).
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment.
They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the
prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment. The Notes on financial
statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The
Auditors’ Report may not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed M/s.Korah &Korah, Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam
as Internal Auditors pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 for the financial Year
2014-15.

Secretarial Auditor

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company is required to appoint a Secretarial Auditor for auditing the
Secretarial and related records to ensure compliances of various legislations of the Company and to provide
a report in this regard. The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed Sri. Sathish V, Practicing
Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor of the company and the Secretarial Audit Report has been attached
to this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURES
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee was constituted pursuant to the requirement of section 135
of Companies Act 2013, Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII
(Activities to be included in the CSR Policies) with the following Directors:-

Sri K. Babu (Chairman)
Sri. C.V Jacob

Sri. V.J Kurian
SmtA.K. Ramani

-l

The function of the CSR Committee is to formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as per Schedule VIl of the Act, to recommend the
amount to be spend by the Company on such identified activities and to monitor the CSR Policy, from time to
time.

The company is a socially responsible corporate citizen committed to deliver a positive impact across social,
economic, and environmental parameters.

As per Section 135(2) of the Companies Act 2013 every company having a net worth of Rs. 500 crore or more,
or a turnover of Rs. 1000 crore or more or a net profit of Rs. 5 crore or more during any FY shall spend at least
2% of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in
pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The company constituted a CSR committee for this
purpose.
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CIAL has identified the following strategic areas to achieve its corporate and social objectives:

Education

Irrigation, water supply including drinking water.

Health care by providing medical facilities and medicines

Environment

Social empowerment

Infrastructure for Village Electricity / Solar light. Recurring expenditure should be borne by the beneficiaries
Sports and Culture

Generation of employment.

Infrastructure support

¢ X0 N Oy ot o S

0. Grant/donation/financial assistance/sponsorship to reputed NGOs of the society/locality doing/involving in
upliftment of the standards of the society

11. Relief of victims of natural calamities like earthquake, cyclone, draught and flood situation in any part of
the country

12. Disaster management activities including those related to amelioration/ mitigation
13. Adoption of village for carrying out the activities like infrastructural development, for eg: road, water
supply, electricity and community centre

The company has spent an amount of Rs.64,27 993 during the year 2014-2015 as part of CSR activities.

The company shall find out ways and means to spend the remaining amount required to be spent for CSR
Activities in the coming months and shall submit the relevant report in the ensuing year. The company could
not spend the money before 31% March 2015 as the time was too short to scrutinize the identified CSR projects.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee with the following Members;

1. Sri. K. Roy Paul (Chairman)
2. Smt. A. K. Ramani
3. Sri. E.M Babu

The purpose of constituting the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to formulate the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a Director and recommend to the Board, a
policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees by striking
a balance between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

Audit Committee
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee with the following members,

1. Sri. K. Roy Paul (Chairman)
2. 8Smt A. K. Ramani
3. 8ri. E.M Babu

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
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1.  Terms of reference to the Audit Committee
a. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information.
b. Reviewing the annual financial statements before submission to the Board with special reference
to (i) any changes in accounting policies and practices (ii) major accounting entries based on
exercise of judgment by management (iii) compliance with accounting standards and with legal
requirements

Reviewing the adequacy of internal control systems and internal audit functions
Discussion with the external auditors on the nature and scope of audit as well as have post-audit
discussion in areas of concermn.

e. Investigation into any matter in relation to the above items or referred to it by the Board.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the period under report.

Stakeholders Relationship committee

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
& its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee with the following
members:

1. Sri.K.Roy Paul (Chairman)
2. SriC.V. Jacob
3. Sn.M.A Yusuffali

The mandate of this Committee is to consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders of the Company.

CIAL Share Transfer Committee
CIAL has constituted a Share Transfer Committee with the following members:

1. Sri.K.M.Mani (Chairman)
2.  SriV.J.Kurian
3. Sri.C.\V.Jacob

4. 8ri.N.V.George

This Committee is the approving authority relating to all share transfer process, liaison with the regulatory
authorities and monitor the share transfer process, ensure to expedite the shares transfers within the period
of one month.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule |V of the Companies Act, 2013
states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated. Similarly, the evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole
has to be conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. None of the independent
directors are due for re-appointment.

Risk Management

The Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and management to ensure stable &
sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and resolving the risks associated
with the business. The Company has identified the potential risks such as financial risk, legal & statutory risks
and the internal process risk and has put in place appropriate measures for its mitigation. At present, the
Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.
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Meetings of the Board
Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review, on 27" June 2014, 29"
August 2014, 19" December 2014 and 27" March 2015.

Particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 of the Act

There were no Loans and guarantees made by the company under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year under review.

The company has Invested Rs 35 crores in its Subsidiary Company, CIAL Infrastructures Limited, during the
year under review.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure A to this Report.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure B to this Report.

Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions in terms of Accounting Standard-18 are set out in the Notes forming part of the
accounts. These transactions are not likely to have a conflict with the interest of the company. All the related
party transactions are negotiated on arm'’s length basis and are intended to protect the interest of the company.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. There were no
employees of the company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the limits set out under Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Secretarial Audit Report
Secretarial Audit Report as per Section 204 of Companies Act 2013 is placed as Annexure to this report. No
adverse comments have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company Secretary.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1.  Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
4

Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration
or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

5. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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Annexure A

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & outgo

Cochin International Airport Limited envisages energy performance in all its activities. As a responsible
corporate citizen, it is our endeavour to look beyond regulatory requirements in practicing energy efficiency
and our commitment extends to all areas and communities we interact with. CIAL Energy policy came into
effect in May 2012,

Any conservation efforts require educating the end users. Many awareness programmes, training programs
and seminars were conducted by CIAL Energy Management Cell (the coordinating agency for Energy
Conservation activities in CIAL) in association with reputed energy conservation partners for imparting the
importance of Energy conservation. Employee’s active participation through the whole hearted commitment for
energy conservation measures are the key success of CIAL's energy conservation measures. The important
steps energy conservation measures of the Company are:

1.  LED signages used for both city side and air side name boards of Airport .

LED illuminated wind cone and LED illuminated Bay Identification boards used in airside.
CFL post top lighting installed for International Car Park area.

The New International Terminal will be an energy efficient building with BMS

The New International Terminal designed with ample daylight entry provisions.

Hybrid wind mill cum solar panel installed for runway guard lights.

New LED street lighting work (Phase1) completed for airport approach road from NH47
Energy Saver panel installed for high mast lighting

LED lighting being implemented for New Apron Taxiway

0. All substations equipped with APFC units.

= 00 Nl oy i o
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11.  New 300 KVAR capacitor panels installed in Terminal Substation

12. Major AHUs fitted with Variable Frequency Drives

13. Conventional Computer monitors replaced with Energy efficient LED monitors.

14. Fire Station periphery road illuminated by CFL fittings.

15. Additional 100TR energy efficient air-conditioning system installed for CIAL Trade Fair Centre.

16. A12MWp Solar PV plant to be commissioned soon.

Power Consumption 2014 -15 2013 -14
1) Electricity
a) Units purchased in lakhs 177.96 172.19
b) Total amount (Rs. in lakhs) 1485.35 1462.16
¢) Rate per unit (in Rs.) 834 8.49
d) Own generation through Diesel Generator (units in lakhs) 0.45 0.48
e) Unit per litre of diesel oil (KWH/litre) 207 213
f) Cost per unit (in Rupees) 26.74 25.35
2) Coal - -
3) Furnace Oil - -
4) Other internal generations (units in lakhs) 14.62 7.33
Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgoings (receipts and 2014-15 2013 -14
payments in USD) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Foreign Exchange Earnings
Airport charges from foreign flights 6,893 767,726
Sales revenue from duty free shop 1,62,84,50,454 138,15,75,510
Royalty from ground handling 22,32,15,647 3,89,15,383
Royalty- Others 3,06,70,892 78,30,474
Others 34,01,739 21,08,580
Total 1,88,67,45,626 143,11,97,683
Expenditure in foreign currency
A) CIF value of Imports
Capital Goods 4,32,29,413 7,96,23,231
Components & Spare parts 11,69,495 2,20,50,016
Import of Duty free goods 82,60,02,023 57,29,35,325
B) Management Fee 3,72,53,663 2,69,05,583
Others 17,91,837 41,49,082
Total 90,94,46,431 70,66,63,247
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Annexure - B
Annexure to Board’s Report

FORM NO. MGT 9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2015
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. |CIN U63033KL1994PLC007803
2. | Registration Date 30t March 1994
3. | Name of the Company Cochin International Airport Limited
4. | Category/Sub-category Company Limited by shares / Indian Non Government
of the Company Company
5. | Address of the Registered Room No:35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex,
office & contact details Marine Drive, Ernakulam 682 031.
Telephone & Fax 0484 2374154
Email ID : cs@cial.aero Website : www.cial.aero
6. | Whether listed company No
7. | Name, Address & contact Not applicable
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing
10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sl. Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of
No. main products / services service the company
1 Airport operator Nil 100%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Holding / | % of
CIN / GIN Subsidiary/| shares
Associate | held
1. | Cochin International Aviation | U35303KL2005PLC018632 | Subsidiary |[99.99 |2(87)
Services Limited

X1/318E, Cochin International
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111

2. |CIAL Infrastructures Limited |U45203KL2012PLC031692 | Subsidiary [99.99 |2(87)
X1/318E, Cochin International
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111

3. | Air Kerala International U62100KL2006PLC019227 | Subsidiary |99.99 |2(87)
Services Limited

X1/318E, Cochin International
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111

sl. Name and address of
No the Company

Applicable
section
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding.

No. of Shares held at the beginning
Catagory of of the year [As on 31% March 2015] No. of Shares held at the end of the year Ch%
Share ange

% of Total | De- : % of Total | during
Shares | mat Physical Total Shares | the year

holders De ;
mat Physical Total

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - 61,500 61,500 0.0201 - 61,500 61,500 0.0201

b) Central Government - - - - -
c) State Governments - | 9,86,80,000 | 9,86,80,000 322421 - | 9,86,80,000 | 9,86,80,000 32.241
d) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - -
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - 30,180 30,180 0.0099 - 30,180 30,180 0.0099
Sub-Total (A) (1) - | 9,87,71,680 | 9,87,71,680 32.2721 - | 9,87,71,680 | 9,87,71,680 32.2721 -

(2) Foreign

a) NRls - Individuals - - - - & = - = 5

b) Other - Individuals - - - - P - - & -

c) Bodies Corporate - - = - - - - = 3
d) Banks/FI - - = - - - a > =

e) Any other... - - - - E - = & =

Sub Total(A) (2) - 2 : =1 - - e = Z

Total Shareholding of
promoter(A) = (A) (1) + (A) (2)

B. Public Shareholding

- | 9,87,71,680 | 9,87,71,680 32.2721 -|9,87,71,680 | 9,87,71,680 32.2721 -

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - | 1,70,00,000 | 1,70,00,000 5.5545 -1 1,70,00,000 | 1,70,00,000 5.5545 -
c) Central Government (PSUs) - | 3,05,00,500 | 3,05,00,500 9.9654 - | 3,05,00,500 | 3,05,00,500 9.9654
d) State Governments (PSUs) -| 54,00500| 54,00500 1.7645 -| 54,00500 54,00,500 1.7645
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - E = E -

g) Flls - - 3 = & . i

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - = E = =

1) Others (specify) - & x 2 a
Sub-total (B) (1) - | 5,29,01,000 | 5,29,01,000 17.2844 - | 5,29,01,000 | 5,29,01,000 17.2844 -
2. Nondnstitutions

a) Bodies Corporate
i} Indian -| 26426030 | 26426030 86343 -| 15559530 1,55,59,530 50838 (3.5504)

i) Owverseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Resident Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital upto Rs.1 lakh

-| 14758919 14758919 48222 - 14638579 14638579 47829 | (0.0393)

ii) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of - 1,25,67 650 1,25,67.650 41062 - 23473340 23473340 7.6695 3.5632
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - - = # " ”
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iii)

Non Resident Indians - | 10,06,34,520 | 10,06,34,520 32.8808 10,07,15670 | 10,07,15670 329073 0.0265
Qverseas Corporate Bodies - - - - - -
Foreign Nationals - - - -
Clearing Members - - - - - -
Trusts - - - - - -
Foreign Bodies - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (2) -| 1543,87,119 | 154387119 50.4435 - | 1543,87,119 | 1543,87,119 50.4435 -
Total Public Shareholding (B) = - | 20,72,88,119 | 20,72,88,119 67.7279 -| 20,72,88,119 | 20,72,88,119 67.7279
(B)(1) + (B) (2)
. Shares held by Custodian for - - - -
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) -| 30,60,59,799 | 30,60,59,799 100 - | 30,60,59,799 | 30,60,59,799 100 -
Shareholding of Promoter-
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding atthe end of the year
%
% of )
:L‘ Shareholder's Name % of total %P‘l’fds"'"‘d“’;s % of Shares | changein
Shares of eog= total Shares | Pledged!/ sharehl_:ldng
No. of Shares encumbered | No. of Shares durin
the of the encumbered g
to total the year
company company to total
shares
shares
1 | Government of :
9,86,80,000 | 32.242065 - 9,86,80,000 | 32242065 - Nil
Kerala
> - -
B i S 140| 0.000046 g 140| 0000046 ; Nil
Airport Society
3 | Cochin Chamber of
Commerce 20| 0.000007 - 20 0.000007 - Nil
and Industry
4 | Kerala Chamber
of Commerce 30,010 0.009805 - 30,010 0.009805 - Nil
and Industry
5 | Indian Chamber
of Commerce 10 0.000003 - 10 0.000003 - Nil
and Industry
6 | CV.Jacob 61,500 0.020094 - 61,500 0.020094 - Nil
Total 9,87,71,680 | 32.272020 - 9,87,71,680 | 32.272020 - Nil

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) : No Change

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

sl. .
No. Particulars P oo
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares sohfat:‘ees
company
company

At the beginning of the year
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Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons

for increase / decrease (e.g. il
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year - - - -
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
1. SYNTHITE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl . 0
oy Particulars o, of total A;g;:g;a'
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares of the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year 2,49,84 020 8.163| 2,49,84,020 8.163
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 2,49,84,020 8.163| 2,49,84,020 8.163
2. BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl. . o
No. Particulars % of total ﬁszz:g;al
No. of shares | shares of the |[No. of shares of the
company company
2 At the beginning of the year 1,05,00,000 3.431 1,05,00,000 3.431
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 1,05,00,000 3.431 1,05,00,000 3.431
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3 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

I\Slt:; Particulars % of total shares tot nl,:, gf
- (] otal shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
3 At the beginning of the year 1 ,D0,00‘DOO 3.267 1,00,00,000 3.267
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 1,00,00,000 3.267 1,00,00,000 3.267

4. STATE BANK OF TRAVANCORE

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl .
e pertiedtars No. of shares % ookl stiares No. of shares %Sﬁ;:g;al
’ of the company ' of the
company

4 At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 3.267 1,00,00,000 3.267

Date wise Increase / Decreasein

Promoters Shareholding during

the year specifying the reasons il

for increase / decrease (e.g.

allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat

equity etc.)

At the end of the year 1,00,00,000 3.267| 1,00,00,000 3.267

5. AIR INDIA LIMITED

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

I\Slt:; Fariculars % of total shares % ﬁf g
. o shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of tha
company
5 At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 3.267 1,00,00,000 3.267
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons y
: Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer /bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 1,00,00,000 3.267 1,00,00,000 3.267
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6. THE FEDERAL BANK LIMITED

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl. .
% of total
No. Rartichiars No. of sh % of total shares L shares
o.of shares | .o company 0. of shares of the
company
6 At the beginning of the year 60,00,000 1.960 60,00,000 1.960
Date wise Increase / Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons .
= Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 60,00,000 1.960 60,00,000 1.960
7. SHABIRA YUSUFFALI
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl. : ~ B
Particulars % of total
No. % of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
7 At the beginning of the year 44‘00‘000 1.438 44.00,000 1.438
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer /bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 44 00,000 1.438 44 00,000 1.438
8. KHADEEJA ZEENATH
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
I\Slt!; Particulars P % gf total
. v of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares ot the
company
8 At the beginning of the year 60,00,000 1.960 60,00,000 1.960
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons il
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 60,00,000 1.960 60,00,000 1.960
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9. KERALA STATE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

v)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
I\SI:) Particulars ) % of totalsh ) % gf total
. % of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
9 At the beginning of the year 40,00,000 1.307 40,00,000 1.307
Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer /bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 40,00,000 1.307 40,00,000 1.307

10. MOHIUDDIN MOHAMAD ALI

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

I\SI:)' Particulars % of total sh % ﬂf total
s of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
10 At the beginning of the year 40,00,000 1.307 40,00,000 1.307
Date wise Increase / Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons .
: Nil
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment firansfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 40,00,000 1.307 40,00,000 1.307

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1. Shri.C.V.JACOB

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
| beginning of the year during the year
: i % of total
N partieulars No. of shares %0l ol stisres No. of shares shares
’ of the company ’ of the
company
1 At the beginning of the year 61,500 0.02009 61,500 0.02009
Datewise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 61,500 0.02009 61,500 0.02009
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2. Shri. ERUMALA MATHEW BABU

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl. i % of total
e partieulars No. of shares SOl ahATRs No. of shares shares
’ of the company ’ of the
company
2 At the beginning of the year 27.,80,000 0.90832 27.,80,000 0.90832
Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 27,80,000 0.90832 27,80,000 0.90832

3. Shri.YUSUFFALIMA

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

NS:; Particulars B T itk % af total
. of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
3 At the beginning of the year 2,38,00,000 777625 2,38,00,000 7.77625
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment Aransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 2,38,00,000 7.77625| 2,38,00,000 7.77625

4. Shri. GEORGE NEREAPARAMPAN

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

I\SI:). Particulars % of total sh % ﬂf total
. of total shares shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
4 At the beginning of the year 3,63,82,400 11.88735| 3,63,82,400 11.88735
Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 3,63,82,400 11.88735| 3,63,82,400 11.88735
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5. Shri. V J KURIAN

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
I\Slt:; Particulars % of total shares % ﬁf total
' o shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the
company
5 | Atthe beginning of the year 6,000 0.00196 6,000 0.00196
Date wise Increase/ Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 6,000 0.00196 6,000 0.00196
6. Shri.Sunil Chacko, Chief Financial Officer

Sl

No.

Particulars

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the company

No. of shares

% of total
shares
of the

company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)

At the end of the year

7.8

hri.Saji K George, Company Secretary

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl. i % of total
No: rartioulars No. of shares % of fotal ahares No. of shares oshares
’ of the company ’ of the
company
7 At the beginning of the year ) - - -

Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)

At the end of the year
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V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Sezz‘r:(i_-s dli_:;ns Unsecured Deposits Total
deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - - ~ B
Addition 25,00,00,000 = -1 25,00,00,000
Reduction - - - -
Net Change 25,00,00,000 - -1 25,00,00,000
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - - -
i) Principal Amount 25,00,00,000 - - | 25,00,00,000
i} Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 4.89,041 - - 489,041
Total (i+ii+iii) 25,04,89,041 - - | 25,04,89,041
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
= Particulars of Remuneration Name.ot pb 1otud
No. (V.J.Kurian) Amount
1 | Gross salary - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the . )
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961 -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of ) i
Income- tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option -
3 | Sweat Equity - -
4 | Commission
- as % of profit |
- others, specify... -
5 | Others, please specify 1,36,252 1,36,252
Total (A) 1,36,252 1,36,252
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors

Sl.
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total
Amount

1

Independent Directors

Sri. K. Roy Paul

SmtAK. Ramani

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Sri.Oommen
Chandy

SiPK.
Kunhalikutty

Sri.K.M. Mani

Sri.K. Babu

SriJiji
Thomson

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Sl
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Sri. Yusuffali M.A.

Sri.N.V. George

Sri.E.M. Babu

Sri.C.V, Jacob

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Total

Key Managerial Personnel
y 9 Amount

Sl

Particulars of Remuneration cs CFO
CEO

Saji K.George | Sunil Chacko

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 20,70,658 15,92,699 | 36,63,357
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of - 1,13,078 93,864 2,086,942
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -
section 17(3) of Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - - -

Commission
- as % of profit ) i i i
- others, specify... - 2 i B

5 | Others, please specify - - - =
Total (C) - 21,83,736 16,86,563 | 38,70,299

Ceiling as per the Act

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Details of Penalty /| Authority Appeal

Tuns Section of the Brief Punishment/ [RD/ made,
yp Companies Act | Description Compounding NCLT/ if any (give
fees imposed Court] Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
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SATHISH V
B.COM, LLB, PGDT, ACMA, FCS
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
B1, I FLOOR, PERIELLATH TOWERS, JAWAHAR - MAHATMA ROAD, VYTTILA P.O, COCHIN - 682019
Phone: 0484 — 6002101; 9961333309 Email: vsathish.cs@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20714]

To,

The Members,

Cochin International Airport Limited
Rgd off: S 35, 4th Floor

GCDA Commercial Complex

Marine Drive, Cochin - 682031

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by M/s COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (hereinafter called the
company) with Corporate Identity No U63033KL1994PLC007803. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March 2015 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/s COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31st March 2015
according to the provisions of:

()  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iif) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

2. | further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made under that Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Com-
pany, with regard to;

a) maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

b) closure of the Register of Members / Debenture holders;
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SATHISH V
B.COM, LLB, PGDT, ACMA, FCS
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

B1, I FLOOR, PERIELLATH TOWERS, JAWAHAR - MAHATMA ROAD, VYTTILA P.O, COCHIN - 682019
Phone: 0484 — 6002101; 9961333309 Email: vsathish.cs@gmail.com

c) forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and
the Central Government;

d) service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e) notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

f)  the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;

g) the 20" Annual General Meeting held on August 29, 2014;

h) minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;

i) approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government
authorities, wherever required,;

)  payment of remuneration to Directors, including the Managing Director

k) appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors;

I) transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and debentures, and issue and dispatch of
duplicate certificates of shares;

m) declaration and payment of dividends;

n) transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
and uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the Company and the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

o) borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

p) investment of the Company’s funds including inter-corporate loans and investments and loans to others;

g) giving guarantees in connection with loans taken by subsidiaries;

r) form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part |, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed
under Part Il and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule VI to the
Act:

s) preparation of Directors Report

t) execution of contracts, affixing of common seal, registered office and publication of name of the
company; and

u) generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

| further report that:-

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.
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SATHISH V
B.COM, LLB, PGDT, ACMA, FCS
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

B1, I FLOOR, PERIELLATH TOWERS, JAWAHAR - MAHATMA ROAD, VYTTILA P.O, COCHIN - 682019
Phone: 0484 — 6002101; 9961333309 Email: vsathish.cs@gmail.com

b) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in
contracts and arrangements, shareholdings / directorships in other companies and interests in other
entities.

c) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

d) Maijority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

e) The company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act.

4. | further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines and that during the audit period, there were no other specific events/ actions
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc having a major bearing on the
Company's affairs.

Sd/-

SATHISH V

Place : Cochin Practising Company Secretary
Date : 12.06.2015 FCS 8005; CP 8343
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Cochin International Airport Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe
guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

i) in the case of balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2015

ii) in the case of the Statement of profit and Loss, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

iii) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following disclosed as contingent liability in the Notes to the financial statements:

a. Note 2.30.2 to the financial statements regarding service tax demands/show-cause notices amounting
to Rs.91,93,48,450/-, disputed income tax liability amounting to Rs.1,55,79,18,047/-, Setoff of MAT credit
against the current year tax provision, pending disposal of dispute regarding the claim of deduction
u/s.80 IA of the Income tax Act in tax assessments amounting to Rs.21,13,38,900/- claims towards
higher compensation on acquisition of land amounting to Rs.15,568,908/-, claims from contractors for
capital jobs amounting to Rs.27,80,04,587/-, claims from Director General of Police towards deputation
of manpower amounting to Rs.74,51,506/- and the demand for refund of capital expenditure amounting
to Rs.12,25,44,449/- met out of PSF (SC) Escrow Fund, which is not acknowledged as debt by the
Company. The ultimate outcome of the above claims cannot be determined at this stage.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2015
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31¢
March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 2.30.2 and 2.39 to the financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses. — Refer Note 2.42 to the financial statements.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sd/-

Place: Kochi-16 CA. C. KRISHNAMOORTHY
Date: 15.06.2015 Senior Partner
(M.No: 5957)
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2015

(i)

i)

vi)

vii)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

b) We are informed that these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

a) We are informed that physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the management;

b) Inouropinionand according to the explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
company and the nature of its business.

¢) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory and as reported to us, no material
discrepancies were observed on physical verification by the management.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, para
graphs (iii) (a) and (b) of CARO 2015 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct
major weaknesses in such internal control systems.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public during the year and hence, the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of goods and services provided by the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and according to our examination
of the records, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund,income-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. There are no
arrears of outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us,there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax
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viii)
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or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess, which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute as on 31st March, 2015, except for income tax and service tax dues,
the particulars of the same are as given below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
Statute Dues (Rupees) it relates dispute is pending
Finance Act Service Tax, Rs.12,78,81,046 (Net 2002-03 to Customs, Excise&
1994 — Service Tax Interest and of Rs.34,01,750 2008-09 Service Tax
Penalty paid under protest) Appellate Tribunal
Finance Act 1994 — | Service Tax, Interest Rs.2,41,93,085 2002-03 to Commissioner of
Service Tax and Penalty (Net of Rs 46,162 paid 201213 Central Excise &
under protest) Customs (Appeals)
Finance Act 1994 — | Service Tax, Interest Rs.11,91,08,003 2004-05 to Supreme Court
Service Tax and Penalty (Net of Rs 65,00,000 2006-07
paid under protest)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.6,25,000 2004-05 to Commissioner of
1961 Interest (Net of 2008-09 Income Tax(Appeals)
Rs.1,50,92,205 paid
under protest)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.3,23,39,830.00 2006-07 Commissioner of
1961 Interest (Net of Rs.1,00,00000 | (AY 2007-08) [ Income Tax(Appeals)
paid under protest)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.2,61,35,220 200708 Income Tax Appellate
1961 Interest (Net of Rs.2,60,00,000 | (AY 2008-09) Tribunal,
paid under protest) Cochin Bench
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.147 561,940 2009-10 Commissioner of
1961 Interest (AY 2010-11) | Income Tax(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.303,997,940 2010-11 Commissioner of
1961 Interest (AY 2011-12) | Income Tax(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Rs.51,854,220 2011-12 Commissioner of
1961 Interest (AY 2012-13) [ Income Tax(Appeals)

(c) On the basis of examination of books of accounts and other records of the company and based
on the information and explanations given to us, the amounts which were required to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there under has been transferred to such funds

within time.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have any accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year. The Company has not incurred cash
losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institution or bank
or to debenture holders.
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X) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, we report that the term loan availed by the Company, have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company
examined by us, no fraud either on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported during the year.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sd/-

Place: Kochi-16 CA. C. KRISHNAMOORTHY
Date: 15.06.2015 Senior Partner
(M.No: 5957)
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31t MARCH, 2015

Asat 31" March 2015 | As at 31 March 2014

Particulars Note No.
(Amount in Rupees)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capital 21 3,060,597,990 3,060,597,990
b. Reserves and Surplus 2.2 3,522,759.828 2,997,938,182
6,583,357,818 6,058,536,172
2. Non-current liabilities
a. Long term Borrowings 23 250,000,000 -
b. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.4 181, 262, 912 282, 577, 450
¢. Other Long Term Liabilities 25 373,040,074 256,594,767
d. Long-term Provisions 26 104,552, 013 83,156,378
908, 854, 999 622,328,595
3. Current Liabilities
a. Trade Payables 27 120,608,885 74,365,098
b. Other Current Liabilities 2.8 2,020,997,900 1,828,391,170
c. Short-term Provisions 2.9 797,171,424 727,967,826
2,938,778,210 2,630,724,094
Total 10,430,991,027 9,311,588,861
Il. | ASSETS
1. Non-current Assets
a. Fixed Assets 2.10
i. Tangible Assets 4 507,253,309 4,781,280,174
ii. Intangible Assets 66,240,281 67,320,616
iii. Capital Work-in-progress 1,796,044,867 204,679,777
iv. Intangible assets under development 1,092,250 1,296,729
b. Non-current Investments 2.1 906,694,520 556,694,520
c. Long-term Loans and Advances 2.12 565,003,805 318,305,258
d. Other Non-current assets 2.13 4,445 434 106,099
7,846,774,466 5,929,683,173
2. Current Assets
a. Current Investments 2.14 - 10,000,000
b. Inventories 2.15 312,020,154 181,267,610
c. Trade Receivables 2.16 685,159,062 749,275,630
d. Cash & Cash equivalents 217 1,512,737,437 2,348,292 953
e. Short-term Loans and Advances 2.18 63,533,494 60,716,677
f. Other Current Assets 2.19 10,766,414 32,352,819
2,584,216,561 3,381,905,688

Total

10,430,991,027

9,311,588,861

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunil Chacko
Chief Financial Officer

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-

Saji K. George

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.06.2015

Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. C. Krishnamoorthy

Senior Partner

(M.No: 5957)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2015

Year ended Year ended
Particulars ”N‘:e 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Amount in Rupees)

Income
l. Revenue from Operations 2.20 3,996,668,132 3,468,546,464
Il Other Income 2.21 142,940,150 145,362,941
lll. | Total Revenue 4,139,608,282 3,613,909,406

Expenses:

Purchase of Stock in Trade 988,601,701 724,732,223

Change in Inventories of stock in trade 222 (129,343 ,615) (29,764,564)

Employee Benefits Expenses 223 547,000,371 421,468,398

Finance Costs 2.24 12,625,031 36,403,722

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 210 288,946,761 242,682,273

Other Expenses 2.25 638,881,701 643,740,837
IV. | Total Expenses 2,346,711,960 2,039,262,889
V. Profit before tax (lll - 1V) 1,792,896,332 1,674,646,617
VL. | Tax expense:

a. i) Current tax 587,159,000 335,500,000

ii) MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note 2.41) (211,338,900)

b. Tax for earlier years - (15,000,000)

c. Deferred tax (28,722,050) 10,422,027
VII. | Profit for the period (V - VI) 1,445,798,282 1,243,724,490
VIll. | Earnings per equity share:

Nominal value of share Rs. 10/- (Rs. 10/-) 2.26

a. Basic 4,72 4.06

b. Diluted 4.72 4.08

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.06.2015

Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0014883)

sd/-

CA. C. Krishnamoorthy
Senior Partner

(M.No: 5957)
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Significant accounting policies and Notes on accounts for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2015

1.

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), on accrual basis under historical cost convention
as a going concern. The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply with the
requirements of mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policies
adopted for the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year
except when a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use and when the statute mandate
the change.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

a) Tangible Assets and work in progress
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. Cost includes all direct expenses incurred to bring an asset to working condition for its
intended use. Capital work- in- progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet
ready for their intended use on reporting date.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation and Amortisation

i) Depreciation on tangible assets, other than Expenditure incurred on Golf Course Development,
has been provided on Straight Line Method (SLM), by adopting the useful lives prescribed as
per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and retaining 5% of the original cost as
residual value.

i) Expenditure incurred on Golf Course Developmentis depreciated on over technically estimated
useful life of 10 years.

iii) Cost of Software is treated as Intangible Assets and is amortised over a period of five years
in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 26.

Investments

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Diminution in value, if any, which is not considered
temporary in nature, is provided for.Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises of
purchase cost and cost of procurement net of discount, on a weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition
Income from services is recognised under the completed service contract method.

Sales are recognised on transfer of title of the goods to the customers.

Income from life membership fees of the golf course is recognised over a period of forty years in
respect of individual members, being the estimated period of the membership and on the actual
period of membership of ten years in respect of corporate members.

Other incomes are recognised on accrual basis except when there are significant uncertainties.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure for the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing on the last date of the accounting year and the resultant exchange
difference, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits

i. Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and recognised in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

ii. Defined Contribution Plans
The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan for
employees. The contributions paid/payable under the scheme during the year are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

iii., Defined Benefit Plans
The net present value of the obligation for gratuity benefits as determined on independent
actuarial valuation, conducted annually using the projected unit credit method, as adjusted for
unrecognized past services cost, if any, is recognised in the books of account. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which
they occur.

iv. Long Term Employee Benefits
The company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability of which
is determined on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year, using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur.
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1.1

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

Taxes on Income

Income tax is accounted in accordance with Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes on Income
(AS-22), which includes current taxes and deferred taxes. Provision for current tax is made based on
the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax on account of timing difference between taxable and accounting income is accounted
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward losses are recognised
if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Other deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent there is reasonable certainty of their realisation

Claims Receivable

Claims are accounted for, as and when the same are finally determined / admitted.

Government Grants

Grants, specifically relatable to capital assets, are credited to the carrying cost of the respective
asset. Grants in the nature of promoters contribution which are not repayable are treated as Capital
Reserve.

Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. An asset is identified as impaired, when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value. Based on such assessment, impairmentlossifany is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the period in which the asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognised in the prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
for which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the correct management estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will not be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the accounts.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's Earmings per share comprise of the net
profit after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used
in computing diluted Earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
deriving the basic earning per share and also the weighted average number of shares, of any shares,
which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts

or payments.
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2
2.1

211

Notes to Accounts

Share Capital:
. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Authorised:
400,000,000 (400,000,000) Equity Shares 4 000,000,000 4,000,000,000
of Par Value Rs.10/- each
Issued and Subscribed and fully paid:
30,60,59,799 (30,60,59,799) Equity Shares 3,060,597,990 3,060,597,990
of Par Value of Rs.10/- each

3,060,597,990 3,060,597,990

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

No. of shares

Rupees

No. of shares

Rupees

the financial year

financial year

No. of shares as at the beginning of

Add: Shares issued during the year

No. of shares as at the end of the

306,059,799 | 3,060,597,990

306,059,799 | 3,060,597,990

306,059,799 | 3,060,597,990

306,039,799 | 3,060,597,990

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends

in Indian rupees.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval

of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Mr. Yusuffali M A

M/s. Synthite Industries Ltd

8.16% 24,984,020
7.78% 23,800,000

Particulars

% No. of shares % No. of shares
His Excellency, The Governor of Kerala 32.24% 98,680,000 32.24% 98,680,000
Mr. N V George 11.89% 36,382,400| 11.89%| 36,382,400

8.16% | 24,984,020

7.78% 23,800,000
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2.2

221

2.3

231

Reserves and Surplus

(Refer Note 2.40)

Add: Net Profit after tax as per Statement of
Profitand Loss

1,445,798,296

S As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Capital Reserve
Government Grant (for development of Golf Club) 80,000,000 80,000,000
80,000,000 80,000,000
General Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 318,660,000 225 300,000
Add: ;Fr:znf;esrsfrom Surplus in the statement of Profit 144,579 828 93.360 000
463,239,828 318,660,000
Surplus
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 2,599,278,083 2,093,448,083
Less: Adjustment for tangible assets having no
remaining useful life (net of deferred tax) 140,977,644 -

1,243,724,490

3,904,098,735 3,337,172,573
Amount available for Appropriation
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve 144,579,828 93,360,000
Proposed Dividend (Refer Note 2.2.1) 642,725,578 550,907,638
Tax on Proposed Dividend 137,273,329 93,626,753
2,979,520,000 2,599,278,083
3,522,759,828 2,997,938,182

The Board of Directors of the company has proposed a dividend of Rs.2.10 per share for the

Financial Year 2014-15

Long term Borrowings

’ As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Secured:
Term Loans From Bank (See Note 2.3.1) <=9/ R08 0200 i
250,000,000.00 z

The company has entered into a project term loan agreement with M/S Federal Bank Limited for
Rs.500 crore for the ongoing New International Terminal project.The first disbursement of loan
amounting to Rs.25 Crores was availed by the company on 25" March 2015. The Term loan together
with interest is repayable in 156 equal monthly instalments and first such instalment shall commence
only after a period of 36 months from March 2015 (ie the date of first disbursement of loan). The
repayment holiday of 36 months is applicable only for Principal amount. Interest and other charges
are payable as and when due. The applicable interest rate of the loan is the base rate of Federal
bank from time to time and the present rate of interestis 10.20% p.a

A3
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The term loan is secured by exclusive first charge on Project assets by way of simple mortgage
of the portion of land earmarked for the project by registration of Deed of Mortgage along with the
new international terminal building under construction and also having second charge by way of
hypothecation of fixed assets (excluding land and building, runways, Golf course and vehicles) which
were already charged as collaterial security to the overdraft limit of Rs.25.00 crores sanctioned to the

Company.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees

A. Deferred Tax Liability

Or_l excess of net book value over Income tax 227 333,063 354,747 665

written down value of fixed assets*
B. Deferred Tax Asset

On Provisions 46,070,151 72,170,215
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A-B 181,262,912 282,577,450

* Includes the deferred tax effect of Rs.72,592,487/- being the adjustment of tangible assets having
no remaining useful life to opening surplus as mentioned in note no.2.40.

Other Long Term Liabilities

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 254 152,267 256,594,767
Security Deposits including Retention 118,887,807 -
373,040,074 256,594,767
Long-term Provisions
’ As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Provision for Employee Benefits [Refer Note 2.27] 104,552,013 83,156,378
104,552,013 83,156,378
Trade Payables
s As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Trade Payables 120,608,885 74,365,098
120,608,885 74,365,098

The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. Based on the information available there are no balances/interest payable to suppliers at the
year end.
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Other Current Liabilities
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Btitsiiary As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 489,041 -
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 8,245,000 8,187,500
Unpaid Dividends (refer Note No.2.8.1) 11,150,529 10,279,363
Unpaid share application money due for refund - 12,517
Other Payables
Statutory Dues 37,832,946 30,590,216
Advance from Customers 2,702,415 1,978,708
Liability towards Capital Contracts 522,867,727 292,227,043
Security Deposits including Retention 429,162,153 488,155,535
Others (Refer note 2.8.2) 1,008,548,088 996,960,287
2,020,997,900 1,828,391,170

Unpaid dividends do not include any amount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor
Protection Fund.

Other liabilities include Rs.98,98,62,162/- (Rs.89,34,17,827/-) representing liability (Net of expenses
incurred) towards security related expenses to be incurred out of the security component of Passenger
Service Fees (PSF) collected by the company from embarking passengers in fiduciary capacity, in
accordance with guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India. Balance in
separate escrow bank accounts operated exclusively for this purpose are disclosed in Note 2.17.1.
During the year, an amount of Rs.47,39,20,063/- (Rs.40,49,21,149/-) collected as the security
component of PSF has been treated as liability towards security related expenses and an amount of
Rs.29,15,05,177/- (Rs.22,67,04,180/-) was incurred as security expenses and the net amount (after
payment of advance tax of Rs.6,00,00,000/-) amounting to Rs.12,24,14,886/- (Rs.17,82,16,969), is
included in other liabilites as mentioned above, along with the amount of Rs.7,76,44,104/- withdrawn
from Escrow accounts towards income tax payment during last year.

Short-term provisions

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Provision for employee benefits [Refer Note 2.27] 17,172,517 20,933,435
Other Provisions
Provision for Pay Revision (Refer Note No.2.30.1) - 62,500,000
Provision for Proposed Dividend 642,725,578 550,907,638
Provision for Corporate Dividend Tax 137,273,329 93,626,753
797,171,424 727,967,826
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Non-current Investments

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Long term Trade Investments (at Cost)
Investment in Equity Instruments of
Subsidiaries (Unquoted)

45,313,400 (45,313,400) shares of Rs.10 (Rs.10) 453,134,000 453,134,000

each, fully paid up in Cochin International Aviation

Services Ltd.

4,53,34,552 (1,03,34,552) shares of Rs.10 (Nil) 453,345,520 103,345,520

each, fully paid up in CIAL Infrastructures Limited

1,064,050 (1,064,050) Equity shares of Rs.10 10,640,500 10,640,500

(Rs.10) each, fully paid up in Air Kerala International

Services Ltd.

Less: Provision for diminution in value of (10,640,500) (10,640,500)

investments
906,479,520 556,479,520

Investment in Shares of Co-operative Society

215 (215) shares of Rs.1000 each, fully paid up

in Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators’ 215,000 215,000

Cooperative Society Ltd.
Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments 906,694,520 556,694,520
Aggregate Provision for diminution in value of investments 10,640,500 10,640,500

In view of the Business Plan of the subsidiary company, Cochin International Aviation Services Lid,

which is expected to bring in positive cash flows in the near future, the management is of the opinion
that no diminution in value of investment in the subsidiary company is anticipated at this stage and

hence no provision is made for diminution in value.

Long-term Loans and Advances

; As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Unsecured (Considered Good)
Capital Advances 275,391,803 44 011,556
Security Deposits (Refer Note 2.31) 56,843,572 57,679,810
Income Tax Paid (net) (Refer Note 2.12.1 to Note 232,768,430 216,613,892
2.12.2)

565,003,805 318,305,258
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Income tax paid (net) represents the Advance tax and Tax deducted at source relating to various
years, net of provision made considering book profit tax and also include the payments made against
disputed demands amounting to Rs.2.60,00,000/-, the disputes of these are at various stages of
appeal.

The Income Tax Assessments of the Company have been completed upto and including the
Assessment Year 2012-13. Assessments for the remaining periods are pending. The major area
of dispute in income tax assessment is with regard to the eligible claim of deduction u/s.80IA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. For the Assessment Years 2005-06 to 2007-08, the Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT), Cochin Bench has remanded back the assessment to the Assessing Officer and
the matter is now pending before the Assessing Authority. For the Assessment Year 2008-09 and
2009-10, the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) (CIT(A)) had allowed the claim of deduction
u/s.80IA, against which appeal filed by the Department is pending for disposal before ITAT. For the
Assessment Years 2010-11 to 2012-13, the appeal filed against the assessment before the CIT(A) is
pending for disposal.

Other non-current assets

" As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Balance with Banks in Deposit Account held
under lien towards Bank Guarantee (Refer Note 4,445 434 106,099
2.17.2)
4,445,434 106,099

Current Investments

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Rupess Rupses
Investments in Mutual Funds - Unquoted:
SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth - 5,000,000
LIC Nomura MF Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 5,000,000
10,000,000
Inventories
particuli As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Stock in Trade
In hand 283,934,805 154,591,190
Stores & Spares 28,085,349 26,676,419
312,020,154 181,267,610

Method of Valuation of Inventories - Refer Note 1.6
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2.16 Trade Receivables
; As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note 2.16.1)
- Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months
from the date they are due for payment 266,638,639 151,093,833
- Others 418,520,423 598,181,796
685,159,062 749,275,629
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
- Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months 3,894,549 146,071,368
from the date they are due for payment
- Others - 12,277,335
3,894,549 158,348,703
Sub Total 689,053,611 907,624,333
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (Refer Note - 2.16.2) 3,894,549 158,348,703
685,159,062 749,275,630

2.16.1 Trade receivablesinclude Rs.11,77,12,913 (Previous year Rs.6,36,58,988/-) being amounts due from
Airport Authority of India (AAl) as per the CNS-ATM agreement towards facilities/services provided
to them for the period subsequent to 15" September 2006, net of amounts due to AAl for services
rendered by AAl upto the above date.

2.16.2 The receivable shown as unsecured and considered doubtful during last year include
Rs.15,57,03,515/- being the amount due from Air India towards royalty on ground handling services
in respect of self handled flights/other overdue amounts disputed by them pending recovery, against
which full provision was made during earlier years itself as a matter of abundant caution. During the
year, this amount has been written off as irrecoverable.

217 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts (Refer Note 2.17.1) 22,875,817 97,578,526
In Deposit Accounts (Refer Note 2.17.1 & Note 2.17.2) 1,489,110,634 2,250,080,274
Cash in hand 750,986 634,153
1,512,737,437 2,348,292,953
2.171 Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks in Current Account include amount deposited in Unclaimed Dividend Account
Rs.11,150,529/- (Rs.1,02,79,363/-) which is earmarked for payment of dividend and cannot be

used for any other purpose.
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b. Balance with banks include 91,23,99,417/- (Rs.88,62,28,248/-) being the amount earmarked for
meeting security related expenses at the Airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, and cannot be used for any other purpose. Also
Refer Note 2.8.1.

a. Balances with banks in deposit accounts include time deposits [maturity period of more than 12
months from the reporting date- Rs. 44,45 434/- (Rs.13,50,00,000/-) maturity period of more than
3 months butless than 12 months from the reporting date -Rs. 35,36,29,531/-( Rs.1,05,07,83,923/-)
which can be withdrawn by the company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the
principal.

b. Balance with banks in deposit accounts include 3,77,83,770/- (Rs.12,57,75,843/-), which are held
under lien, out of which the Non current portion is disclosed under Other Non Current assets in
Note No.2.13.

Short-term Loans and Advances (Refer Note 2.32)

- As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless
Otherwise Stated)
Loans and Advances to Related Parties -
Subsidiaries
Cochin International Aviation Services Limited 8,244 527 6,723,453
CIAL Infrastructures Limited - 37,301
Considered Doubtful-
Air Kerala International Services Limited 5,330,504 5,276,670
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (5,330,504) (5,276,670)
Others:
Ad ble i h or in kind or fi |
vanceshrecovera e incasn or in Kina or 1or vaiue 15,652,358 18‘303,940
to be received.
Security Deposits 37,294 565,973
Balanc‘e.s with Central Excise , Customs & Other 39,599,316 35,086,010
Authorities
Total 63,533,495 60,716,677

Other Current Assets (Refer Note 2.32)

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Interest Accrued on fixed deposits 10,766,414 32,352,819
Total 10,766,414 32,352,819
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Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Sale of Services

Aero Revenue
Landing Fee
Parking & Housing Fee
Aerobridge Charges
Passenger Service Fee
X-Ray Inspection Charges
Inline X Ray Screening Charges
Royalty

468,175,438 401,985,362
7,512,698 6,758,608
45,735,119 40,301,699
255,324,613 218,032,317
8,945,750 7,780,049
176,901,416 153,695,685
432,030,568 423,051,954

1,394,625,601 1,251,605,674

Non Aero Revenue
Rent & Services
Royalty
Security Charges
Public Admission Fees
Income from Cargo Operations
Income From Consultancy Services
Income From Trade Fair Centre
Income from Golf Course and Facilities

Sale of Duty Free Products
Revenue from Operations

549,679,153 502,039,502
131,156,605 86,629,399
2,887,649 -
36,316,657 31,141,050
189,889,413 174,909,238
= 1,350,000
20,372,600 15,484,054
18,183,067 23,849,927
948,485,143 835,403,171

1,653,557,387 1,381,537,621

3,996,668,132 3,468,546,464

Other Income

Particulars

For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

Interest Income 110,186,943 123,918,624
Discount received Duty Free Shop (net) - 2,546,129
Dividend Income from Current Investments 548,230 564,022
Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net) 14,700,065 =
Other non-operating income 17,504,912 18,334,167

142,940,150 145,362,941

Change in Stock in Trade:
For the year For the year

ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Opening Stock in Trade

Less: Closing Stock in Trade

Changes in stock in trade

154,591,190 124,826,626
283,934,805 154,591,190
(129,343,615) (29,764,564)
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Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

ended 31.03.2015

For the year For the year

Particulars ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014
(Amount in Rupees)
Salaries & Wages 491,829,045 383,790,831
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 43,556,384 27,836,239
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 11,614,941 9,841,329
547,000,371 421,468,398
Finance Costs
For the year For the year

ended 31.03.2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

ended 31.03.2015

Interest Expenses: 8,179,854 293,881
Other borrowing costs 4445177 36,109,841
12,625,031 36,403,722
Other Expenses
For the year For the year

ended 31.03.2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Repairs to Building

Repair to Plant, Equipment & Runway

Repairs to Office Equipments

Safety, Security & Immigration Expenses
Management Fees (Duty Free Shop)

Discount allowed (Duty Free Shop) (Net)
Power, Water and Fuel Charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Housekeeping Expenses

Consumption of Stores, Spares & Consumables
Insurance

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Postage and Telephone

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 2.25)
Advertisement and Publicity

Loss on Fixed Assets sold/demolished/discarded

62,048,811
52,221,898
2,124,375
29,656,009
60,527,748
25,089,133
165,607,198
12,938,817
52,477,489
27,569,823
17,255,520
454,641
6,415,006
3,567,603
1,948,089
11,779,854
600,000
15,080,107
1,644,872

85,238,013
57,488,852
7,366,682
25,633,576
52,121,981
154,513,819
9,105,429
40,987,135
23,620,713
15,953,556
433,145
8,629,111
3,550,505
4,417,693
8,521,879
500,000
12,535,894
12,394,105
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2.27

Professional and Consultancy charges
Bank Charges

Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances
Foreign Exchange rate variation (Net)

Miscellaneous Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note.2.38)

12,837,399 11,245,499
6,901,412 6,350,606
1,487,834 24,592,905

- 13,247,607

62,220,070 51,240,924

6,427,993 14,051,209
638,881,701 643,740,837

Provision and/or payments in respect of Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
a. Statutory Audit Fees 600,000 500,000
b. For Other Services - -
600,000 500,000
Earnings per share
. For the year For the year
Fatialas ended 31.03.2015 | ended 31.03.2014
Profit after taxation (Rs.) 1,445,798 ,282 1,243,724,490
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of
59,799 306,059,799
Rs.10/- each (fully paid-up) 206,059,73 i
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted 4,72 4.06

Disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 - “Employee Benefits”

a. Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on

account of defined contribution plans:

: Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Employers contribution to Provident Fund 39,830,202 25,495,633
b. Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity: Funded Obligation
i. Actuarial Assumptions Current Year Previous year
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% 9.16%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
Salary escalation rate* 6.50% 6.00%
Mortality rate Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate | (2006-08) Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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ii. Reconciliation of present value of obligation urrent year Fevious yaar
Rupees Rupees
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 79,238,821 65,985,707
Current Service Cost 10,145,515 7,303,875
Interest Cost 6,312,046 6,020,390
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 6,439,102 450,707
Benefits Paid (676,491) (521,858)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 101,458,993 79,238,821
ili. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets cutrant Year Praviolis year
Rupees Rupees
Fair val f pl ts at the beginni f
air value of plan assets at the beginning o 61.821.017 57 214 444
the year
Expected return on plan assets 4,945,681 4,556,453
Actuarial gain/( loss) 517,998 571,978
Contributions 27,417,804 -
Benefits paid 676,491 (521,858)
Assets distributed on settlement (if applicable) - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 94,026,009 61,821,017
Current Ye Previ
iv. Description of Plan Assets < ar e
Rupees Rupees
Insurer Managed Funds (SBI Life) 94,026,009 61,821,017
V. Net (Asset)/ Liability recognized 2014415 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
in the Balance Sheet as at year end (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
P t value of obligation at the end
resent value of obligation atthe €< 1 101,458,093 | 79,238,821 | 65,985,707 | 55,081,720 | 41,841,964
of the year
Fair value of plan assets atthe end of g, 056000 | 61,821,017 | 57,214,444 | 44,926,280 | 40,470,655
the year
Net present value of unfunded
obligation recognized as (asset)/ 7432984 | 17,417,804 | 8,771,263 | 10,155,440 1,371,309
liability in the Balance Sheet
vi. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Current Year Previous year
profit and loss Rupees Rupees
Current Service Cost 10,145,515.00 7,303,875.00
Interest Cost 6,312,046.00 6,020,390.00
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period 5,921,104.00 (121,271.00)
Past Service Cost (if applicable) - -
Expected return on plan assets (4,945,681.00) (4,556,453.00)
Total expenses recognized in the statement of 17,432,984.00 8,646 541.00
profit and loss for the year
Actual Return on Planned Assets 5,463,862 97 5,128,431.00

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.




c. Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences (Vesting and Non Vesting): Unfunded Obligation
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Salary escalation rate*

Mortality rate

i. Actuarial Assumptions Current Year Previous year
e T ——— 7.74% for Earned Leave | 9.16% for Earned Leave
P 7.74% for Sick Leave | 9.16% for Sick Leave

6% F5Y & 6% TA for
Eamed Leave and Sick
Leave

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality
(2006-08)Ultimate

6% F5Y & 6% TA for
Earned Leave and Sick
Leave

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

of profit and loss for the year

C t Previ

ii. Reconciliation of present value of obligation urrent Year riauryear
Rupees Rupees

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 82,558,672 69,257,455
Current Service Cost 9,929 669 7,598,428
Interest Cost 6,027,382 5,979,634
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 25,123,603 7,678,384
Benefits Paid (9,371,042) (7,955,227)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 114,268,284 82,558,672
iii. Net (Asset)/ Liability recognized 2014-156 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
in the Balance Sheet as at year end (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Present value of obligation atthe | 444 538984 | 82,558,672 | 69,257,455 | 57,772,730 | 45,517,499
end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end ! . i )
of the year -
Net present value of unfunded
obligation recognized as (asset)/ 114,238,284 | 82,558,672 | 69,257,455 | 57,772,730 | 45,517,499
liability in the Balance Sheet
iv. Expenses recognized in the Statement Current Year Previous year
of profit and loss Rupees Rupees
Current Service Cost 9,929,669 7,598,428
Interest Cost 6,027,382 5,979,634
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period 25,123,603 7,678,384
Past Service Cost (if applicable) - -
Total expenses recognized in the statement 41,080,654 21,256,444

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.
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2.28 Disclosures under Accounting Standard 16: Borrowing Costs
Parficuiars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Details of borrowing costs capitalised as
work in progress
Interest on Term Loan 489,041 -
One Time Processing Fee 12,500,000 -
12,989,041 <
2.29 Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Accounting Standard — 18 on Related
Party Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006.
A. Related parties and nature of relationship
a) Subsidiaries
- Air Kerala International Services Ltd.
- Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd.
- CIAL Infrastructures Limited
b) Enterprises where significant influence exists
- Kochi International Airport Society (KIAS)
- Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd.
- CIAL Charitable Trust
c¢) Key Management Personnel
- Shri V. J Kurian, IAS - Managing Director
B. Description of Transactions

Enterprises having

Subsidiary Company significant influence/ Total
Nature of Transaction where control exists
31*March, 31% March, 31 March, 31*March, 31 March, 31% March,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 350,000,000 - B - 350,000,000 -
Debit for meeting expenses
Air Kerala International Services Ltd. 53,834 38,236 - - 53,834 38,236
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 256,380 - - - 256,380 -
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 32,956 B - B 32,956
Kochi International Airport Society - - 317,889 - 317,889 -
Contribution to CIAL Charitable Trust out -| 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
of CSR Funds
Providing of services
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd.
a) Lease Rent received 353,962 353,962 - 353,962 353,962
b) Energy charges 1,402,253 1,505,208 . 1402253 | 1,505208
¢) Royalty - - - B
d) Others 8,427 - - - 8,427 -
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a) Surcharge from Cochin International -| 3,755,606 3,120,787 3,755,606 3,120,787
Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd.
Receipt of Services
{a) Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd.
a)Training Fees 946,832 625,447 - 946,832 625,447
{b) Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators’ Cooperative Society Ltd.
a) Taxi Hire Charges - 454 711 268,391 454 711 268,391
¢) CIAL Infrastructures Limited
a) power supply 8,471,023 - - -| 8,471,023 -
Out i SO ce s a
Investments:
Air Kerala International Services Lid. 10,640,500 | 10,640,500 - -1 10,640,500 10,640,500
(Fully Provided in books)
Cochin Intemational Aviation Services Ltd. | 453,134,000 | 453,134,000 - 453,134,000 | 453,134,000
?;g?;g?&a;g;m;mggcg'u i -|  215000| 215000 215000 215000
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 453,345 520 | 103,345,520 - 453,345 520 | 103,345,520
Receivable:
Air Kerala International Services Ltd.
(Fully Provided in booke) 5330504 | 5,276,670 - -| 5330504 | 5,276,670
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 7409974 [ 6,723,453 - 7409974 6,723,453
CIAL Infrastructures Limited - 37,301 - - - 37,301
Kochi International Airport Society - - 317,889 317,889 -
?;Ef;?;e&fﬂ;ﬁmgfcﬁ' g . -|  s1s0es| 108308| 318088| 106308
Payable:
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 8,890,746 - B 890,746 -

Details of transactions with Key Managerial Personnel

As at 31.03.2015

Rupees

As at 31.03.2014
Rupees

To Sri V.J. Kurian |AS
Reimbursement of medical expenses

136,252

62,836

(Except for reimbursement of medical expenditure, which is not claimed by Sri V.J Kurian IAS from the Government of
Kerala(GOK), no other remuneration is payable to him by the company, since he is drawing his remuneration as Additional
Chief Secretary from GOK, as per his entitiement.)

2.30 The details of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are as under. (Disclosed in terms of Accounting
Standard — 29 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2.30.1 Provisions

n = Balance as at Addtional Amounts used/ Unused Balance as at
Nature of Provision 01.04.2014 Provision during | changed during | amounts 31032015
AT the year the year reversed SE
Provision for Pay Revision 62,500,000 - 62,500,000 - -

Provision for Pay Revision has been reversed based on the agreement entered into for Long Term
Settlement for Non-Managerial employees of CIAL dated 17/11/2014 for a period of 5 years with

effect from 01/03/2012.
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2.30.2

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

As at
31.03.2015
Rupees

As at
31.03.2014
Rupees

1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

i) Service tax demands pending on appeal # (including
Rs.13,59,46,885/-(Rs.12,09,90,164/-)inrespectofwhich
favourable orders have been received, though further
contested by department and Rs. 12,72,13,485/-
(Rs.11,95,53,841/-) in respect of which favourable orders
have been received on similar issues in earlier years
Rs.1,01,03,921/- (Rs.99,58,163/-) remitted against the
above demands under protest has been carried under
Loans & Advances.

i) Income tax demands pending on appeal (in respect of
which favourable orders have been received on similar
issues in earlier years, though further contested by the
department). Rs.6,10,00,000/- remitted against the
above demands under protest has been carried under
Loans & Advances.

iii) Setoff of MAT credit against the current year tax
provision pending disposal of dispute regarding the
claim of deduction u/s.80 |A of the Income tax Act in tax
assessments

iv) Claims for higher compensation on Acquisition of land
(excluding interest) disputed by the company and
pending before various courts.

v) Claims from Contractors for capital jobs payable as per
Arbitration award, disputed by the company before
various courts.

vi) Claims from Director General of Police, Kerala towards
deputation of manpower in earlier years, not accepted
by the company.

vii) Claim from Airport Authority of India in excess of amount
recognized as liability

281,128,046

1,557,918,047

21,13,38,900

1,558,908

278,004,587

7,451,506

263,339,456

1,591,020,883

3,087,943

256,494,976

7,451,506

95,243,382

2 Ministry of Civil Aviation vide letter dated 18-02-2014
claimed refund of capital expenditures met out of PSF
(Security Component)/Escrow Fund, which was not
accepted by CIAL. Further Hon'ble High Court of Kerala
has stayed the operation of the order (Expenditure incurred
up to 31.03.2013).

122,544,449

122,544,449

3 Letter of Credit

4 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the company

111,676,431

147,014,616

Total

2,360,281,974

2,476,197,211

2.30.2.1 # Show cause notices received from service tax authorities aggregating to Rs.6,38,22,0404/-
(Rs.57,88,85,874/-), (including interest and penalty) have not been considered as contingent liability,

since formal demands have not been raised and in the opinion of the management these notices are
not sustainable
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2.30.3

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account -Rs.745,21,66,255.83/-
(Rs.307,53,40,692/-)

The company has given commercial spaces under cancellable operating lease arrangements that
are renewable on mutually agreeable terms and hence the security deposit collected from them is
treated as long-term loans and advances.

In the opinion of the Directors, short term loans and advances and other current Assets, have the
value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

Expenditure in foreign currency on account of

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
A) CIF Value of Imports
Capital Goods 43,229,413 79,623,231
Components & spare parts 1,169,495 22,050,016
Import of Duty free goods 826,002,023 572,835,325
B) Management fee 37,253,663 26,905,593
C) Others 1,791,837 4149082
909,446,431 705,663,247
Earnings in Foreign Exchange
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees

1) Airport charges from Foreign flights 6,893 767,726
2) Sales revenue from Duty free Shop 1,628,450,454 1,381,575,510
3) Royalty from Ground handling 223,215,647 38,915,383
4) Royalty-Others 30,670,892 7,830,474
5) Others 3,401,739 2,108,590
1,885,745,625 1,431,197,683

The Airports Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA), established under AERA Act 2008, regulate
the tariff and other charges of aeronautical services of Cochin International Airport. As per AERA
guidelines, CIAL had submitted a Multi Year Tariff Proposal (MYTP) for the first control period i.e.
time year period commencing from 2011-12 to 2015-16, which is under consideration of AERA.
However, the consultation paper issued by AERA on 05-06-2014 proposes to continue with the
existing aeronautical tariff i.e. Landing, Parking, Housing, Aerobridge charges and the Facilitation
Component of PSF, X-ray baggage screening and Cargo Charges at Cochin International Airport
for the period from 2011-12 to 2015-16. In respect of services provided such as Ground Handling,
Refueling royalty and CUTE Services, it is expected that the authority will permit CIAL to charge
rates as per relevant agreements executed with the service providers. Hence, the requirement of
incorporating the impact of implementation of MYTP in the financial statements is not considered at
this stage.
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2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

2.40

2.4

As per the guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, the security component
of the passenger service fee collected from embarking passengers has to be spent only for security
related expenses, including the purchase of equipments for that purpose. Vide letter dated 18/02/2014,
the Ministry of Civil Aviation, had directed the company to refund part of the amount used for acquiring
security equipments, stating that the same is not an eligible item to be procured from this earmarked
funds. The Company has not accepted the direction and obtained stay against the direction from the
Hon'ble High Court of Kerala. The Company is of the view that the direction is not maintainable and
hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage, however the amount demanded as refund
is disclosed as contingent liability in Note No. 2.30.2 (2)

The Company is operating a composite airport with facilities for cargo movement, duty free shop,
trade fair centre and Golf course club. In the opinion of the Management, this is the only primary
reportable segment within the meaning of Accounting Standard 17 notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules 2006.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR
committee has been formed by the Company. The areas of CSR activities include education, drinking
water supply, health care, social empowerment, infrastructure support through adoption of villages,etc
and those specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The utilisation of CSR funds are partly
done through the Charitable Trust constituted by Company and also by direct spending as per the
recommendation of the CSR Committee. The details of amount required to be spent and the amount
utilised are given below:

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : Rs.289,41,564/-

b) Amount spent during the year:

i) By contribution to the Trust . Rs.40,00,000/-
ii) By Constructionfacquisition of any asset : -

iii) By other than the above . Rs.24,27,993/-

Litigation: The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. The Company's management does not reasonably expect that these legal
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company's results of operations.

As a result of change in the method of computation of depreciation consequent to the adoption of
Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, the charge of depreciation for the current year is more
by Rs.61,30,623/-. Further, consequent to the change arising from the adoption of useful life of
tangible assets in accordance with Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, the company has fully
depreciated the carrying value of assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the
asset is determined as nil as on 31.03.2014 and has adjusted an amount of Rs.14,09,77 ,644/- (net
of deferred tax of Rs.7,25,92,487/-), against the opening surplus of the Statement of Profit and Loss
under Reserves and Surplus

Considering the Airport Operation as an Infrastructural project, the Company was claiming deduction
u/s.80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961 for the Income from airport operations for a period of 10 years
ended 31/03/2014. Accordingly, during these years, the payment of tax was based on Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT), which is eligible for set off against future tax liability. However, the Company had
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not recognised MAT credit as an asset in its books of accounts, as a matter of prudence. During the
current year, MAT credit to the extent of Rs.21,13,38,900/- is set off against the provision for Income
Tax. Claim of deduction u/s.80IA have been disputed by the Income Tax department and these
disputes are at various levels of appeals for different years. However, the Company based on legal
opinion, is confident of getting a favourable decision and hence set off of MAT credit is done during
the year.

242 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses
243 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated
are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in
conformity with current year's layout.
Signatures to Note 1 to 2.43 forms integral part of accounts.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our separate report of even date attached
sd/- sd/- For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)
Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/- _ A
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George CA. C. Krishnamoorthy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Senior Partner
(M.No: 5957)
Place: Kochi

Date:15.06.2015
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31-3-20156 31-3-2014

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before taxation and exceptional items 1,792,896,332 1,574,646,517

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 288,946,761 242,682,273

Fixed assets written off 7,456 231 -

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss 9,270,684 -

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain B (8,923 924)

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances/ Bad 1,487,834 24,592 905

Debts written off

Interest Income (110,186,943) (123,918,624)

Dividend Income (548,230) (564,022)

Scrap sale (3,533,633) (745,132)

Retained Earnings

Interest and Finance Charges 12,625,031 36,403,722

Loss on sale of fixed assets 264,891 12,011,788

Liability no longer payable written back - 205,782,627 (1,289,116) 180,249,870
Operating Profit before working capital changes 1,998,678,959 1,754,896,387

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (130,752,544) 6,462,408

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 62,628,734 (320,868,520)

(Increase)/Decrease in Repayments

and Other Receivables (1,980,580) (15,001,509)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable/Other Liabilities 78,442 168 8,337,779 120,454,669 | (208,952,952)
Cash Generated from Operations 2,007,016,737 1,545,943,436
Direct Tax (payments)/refunds (Net) (391,974,638) (388,156,662)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 1,615,042,100 1,157,786,774
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets including capital work in (1,827,479,198) (492,003,964)

progress/advances

Sale of Fixed Assets 448,124 6,777,584

Interest Received 131,773,348 95,750,562

Dividend Received 548,230 564,022

Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds 10,000,000 (10,000,000)

Sale of Scrap 3,533,633

Investment in Shares of subsidiary companies (350,000,000)

Other Non current asset (4,339,335) 21,572,750

Balance with banks under lien
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (2,035,515,199) (377,339,046)
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C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital
Government grants

Proceeds from issue of Share capital
Grant received

Interest Paid (12,135,990) (36,403,722)

Increase/(Decrease) of Unsecured Loans 250,000,000

Dividend paid including dividend tax (643,675,742) (607,882,777)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (405,811,732) (644,286,499)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (826,284,832) 136,161,231
Opening Cash And Cash Equivalents 2,348,292 953 2,206,586,664
E;f:;]:{acr):;j LLr;r:haizeudNI;ferﬁtlgn Exchange Gain /(Loss) on (9.270,684) 5,545,058
Closing Cash And Cash Equivalents 1,512,737,437 2,348,292,953

Note: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year includes Rs.11,150,529/- (Rs.10,279,363/-) deposited in unpaid
dividend account which is earmarked for payment of dividend and Rs.989,862,162/- (Rs.993,417,827/-) held in fiduciary
capacity for meeting security related expenses at the airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil
Aviation and cannot be used for any other purpose.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our separate report of even date attached

s_d!- sd/- For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy

Vol Kurian 105 C. V. Jacob Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)
Managing Director Director

sd/- sd/- ‘ sd/-

Sunil Chacko Saji K. George CA. C. Krishnamoorthy

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Senior Partner

Place: Kochi (M.No: 5957)

Date: 15.06.2015
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cochin International Airport Limited
(‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as ‘The Group’), which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement,whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to ke included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’'s Board
of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of the reports of the financial statements of subsidiaries as noted below, the consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

i) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March, 2015,

ii) inthe case of the consolidated Statement of profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year
ended on that date; and

ii) inthe case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended
on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

a. Note 2.30.2 to the financial statements regarding service tax demands/show-cause notices amounting
to Rs.91,93,48,450/-, income tax demands amounting to Rs.1,55,79,18,047/-, Set off of MAT credit
against the current year tax provision, pending disposal of dispute regarding the claim of deduction
u/s. 80IA of the Income tax Act in tax assessments amounting to Rs.21,13,38,900/- claims towards higher
compensation on acquisition of land amounting to Rs.15,58,908/-, claims from contractors for capital jobs
amounting to Rs.27,80,04,587/-, claims from Director General of Police towards deputation of manpower
amounting to Rs.74,51,506/- and the demand for refund of capital expenditure amounting to
Rs.12,25,44,449/- met out of PSF (SC) Escrow Fund, which is not acknowledged as debt by the Company.
The ultimate outcome of the above claims cannot be determined at this stage.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs.48,71,87,827/- as at 31 March, 2015, total revenues of Rs.4,07,56,236/- and net cash
flows amounting to Rs.30,14,01,284/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit
of Rs.1,16,63,727/- for the year ended 31 March, 2015, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and(11) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the commentsin
the auditors' reports of the Holding company, subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable. ﬂ




Cochin International Airport Limited

KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements generally comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31
March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and also based on the
reports of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the company
and its subsidiaries, is disqualified as on 31 March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Note No. 2.30.2 and 2.36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts; refer Note No. 2.49 to the consolidated financial statements.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sd/-
C. KRISHNAMOORTHY

Place: Cochin-16 Senior Partner
Date: 15/06/2015 (M.No: 5957)
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2015

(i)

(1)

ii)

iv)

vi)

In respect of the fixed assets of the Company and its subsidiaries;

a) Asexplained to us and based on the report of auditors issued in accordance with the order on the
subsidiaries, thecompanyanditssubsidiarieshave maintainedproperrecordsshowingfullparticulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b) We are informed that these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management of
the respective entities at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

In respect of the inventories of the Company and its subsidiaries;

a) As explained to us and based on the auditors' report issued in accordance with the order on the
subsidiaries, the inventories were physically verified by the management of the company and its
subsidiaries at reasonable intervals.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
auditors' reportissued in accordance with the order on the subsidiaries, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the respective management were reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the company and its subsidiaries and the nature of their business.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the auditors' report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, the Company and its
subsidiaries have maintained proper records of inventories and as reported to us, no material
discrepancies were observed on physical verification.

The company and its subsidiaries have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act
2013. Accordingly, paragraphs (iii) (a) and (b) of CARO 2015 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
auditors’ report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, there are adequate internal
control systems commensurate with the size of the Group and the nature of their business, for the
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct
major weaknesses in such internal control systems.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
auditors’ report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not accepted deposits from the public during the year and hence, the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company
and its subsidiaries.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of goods and services provided by the company and its subsidiaries.
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vii) (a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and based on the auditors’ report

issuedinaccordancewiththe Orderonthe subsidiaries, inrespectofthe statutoryduesofthecompany
and its subsidiaries, the respective entities have generally been regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of

customs, valueaddedtax,cessandanyotherstatutorydueswiththeappropriateauthoritiesduringthe

year. There are no arrearsofoutstandingundisputed statutory duesasatthe lastday ofthe financial
year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the auditors' report

issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, there are no dues of income tax or

sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or
cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 31st March, 2015, except
for income tax and service tax dues, the particulars of the same are as given below:

Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs) Period to which Forum where
Statute Dues the amount dispute is pending
relates
Finance Act 1994 — | Service Tax, Interest Rs.12,78,81,046 2002-03 to Customg, Excise &
Service Tax and Penalty (Net of Rs.34,01,750 2008-09 Service Tax
paid under protest) Appellate Tribunal
) ; Rs.2,41,93,085 Commissioner of
F'"as”:zgzt;aig‘* = Se”;if,’;;;’l’:;m (Net of Rs 46,162 paid 223?;?;0 Central Excise &
under protest) Customs (Appeals)
. . Rs.11,91,06,003
F'"ag:m‘:ﬁaim B Se”;i%‘;gl‘t‘fres" (Net of Rs.65,00,000 22333;0 Supreme Court
paid under protest)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Re.6,25,000 2004-05 to Commissioner of
(Net of Rs.150,92,205
1961 Interest paid under protest) 2008-09 Income Tax(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and Re:0,23,39,630.00 2006-07 Camymissionarof
1961 Tt (Net of Rs.1,00,00,000 (AY 2007-08) Income Tax
paid under protest) (Appeals)
Rs.2,61,35,220 Income Tax Appel-
'”"""}gﬁ‘" P, '"“mfe:s’; and | Net of Rs.2,60,00,000 , A\":Uz%.?'g_%g) late Tribunal, Cochin
paid under protest) Bench
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and 2009-10 Commissioner of
1961 Interest R 147,961,940 (AY 2010-11) | Income Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and 2010-11 Commissioner of
1961 Interest R8.:305,997,940 (AY 2011-12) | Income Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and 201112 Commissioner of
1961 Interest Re.91.864,220 (AY 2012-13) | Income Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act Tax deducted at Rs.2 13230 201213 Commissioner of
1961 source R (AY 2013-14) | Income Tax (Appeals)
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viii)

ix)

xi)

xii)

(c) On the basis of examination of books of accounts and based on the auditors' report issued in
accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, and based on the information and explanations
given to us, the amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of
1956) and rules made there under has been transferred to such funds within time.

The Group does not have any accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year. The Group has
not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
auditors’ report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank or to debenture
holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
auditors’ report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the auditors’ reportissued in
accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, we report that the term loan availed by the Company
and its subsidiaries, have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us and based on the auditors’ report issued in accordance with the Order on the subsidiaries, no
fraud either on or by the Company and its subsidiaries, has been noticed or reported during the year.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sd/-
C. KRISHNAMOORTHY

Place: Cochin-16 Senior Partner
Date: 15/06/2015 (M.No: 5957)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31¢ MARCH 2015

Particulars Note No. ’?ﬁ :‘toir; maﬁfl:gg;?
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capital 2.1 3,060,597,990
b. Reserves and Surplus 2.2 3,261,714,551
6,322,312,541
2 c. Minority Interest 23 23,633
3 Non-current liabilities
a. Long term Borrowings 2.4 250,000,000
b. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 25 216,320,442
c. Other Long Term Liabilities 26 373,340,481
d. Long-term Provisions 27 106,680,300
946,341,223
4 Current Liabilities
a. Short-term borrowings 28 48,398,630
b. Trade Payables 2.9 123,251,411
c¢. Other Current Liabilities 2.10 2,306,285,301
d. Short-term Provisions 211 807,049,345
3,284,984 687
Total 10,553,662,085
Il ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
a. Fixed Assets 212
i. Tangible Assets 5,082,376,549
ii. Intangible Assets 66,302,485
iii. Capital Work-in-progress 1,832,088,770
iv. Intangible assets under development 1,092,250
b. Non-current Investments 213 215,000
¢. Long-term Loans and Advances 214 588,022,400
d. Other Non-current assets 215 4549234
7,674,657 687
2 Current Assets
a. Inventories 2.16 314,186,548
b. Trade Receivables 217 684,954,307
c. Cash & Cash equivalents 218 1,865,153,390
d. Short-term Loans and Advances 219 67,509,986
e. Other Current Assets 2.20 37,200,168
2,979,004,398
Total 10,553,662,085
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our separate report of even date attached
sd/- sd/- For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)
Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/- e
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George CA. C. Krishnamoorthy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Senior Partner
Place: Kochi (M.No: 5957)

Date: 15.06.2015
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

Particulars Note No. Yo endet_i 31.03.2016
(Amount in Rupees)
Income
|.  Revenue from Operations 2.21 4.057,039,558
Il.  Other Income 222 178,270,155
lll. Total Revenue 4,236,309,713
Expenses:
Purchase of Stock in Trade 988,601,701
Change in Inventories of stock in trade 223 (129,343,615)
Employee Benefits Expenses 2.24 587,070,798
Finance Costs 2.25 49 651,562
Depreciation and amortisaton expenses 212 334,932,815
Other Expenses 2.26 662,658,611
IV. Total Expenses 2,493,671,872
V. Profit (loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (lll - 1V) 1,741,737 841
Exceptional ltems:
Excess depreciation written back (Refer Note 2.39) 34,726 655
VI. Profit (loss) before tax 1,776,464,496
Tax expense:
a. i) Current tax 595,771,900
ii) MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note. 2.38) (211,338,900)
b. Tax for earlier years 409,390
¢. Deferred tax (21,990,013)
VIl. Profit for the period (V - VI) 1,413,612,119
VIII Earnings per equity share 227
Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 (Rs.10/-)
a. Basic 462
b. Diluted 462

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.08.2015

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0014888S)

sd/-

CA. C. Krishnamoorthy
Senior Partner

(M.No: 5957)
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Significant accounting policies and Notes on accounts for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2015

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), on accrual basis under historical cost convention
as a going concern. The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply with the
requirements of mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policies
adopted for the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year
except when a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use and when the statute mandate
the change.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilites on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

a) Tangible Assets and work in progress
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. Cost includes all direct expenses incurred to bring an asset to working condition for its
intended use. Capital work- in- progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet
ready for their intended use on reporting date.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation and Amortisation

i) Depreciation on tangible assets, other than Expenditure incurred on Golf Course Development,
has been provided on Straight Line Method (SLM), by adopting the useful lives prescribed as
per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and retaining 5% of the original cost as
residual value.

i) Expenditure incurred on Golf Course Development is depreciated on over technically estimated
useful life of 10 years.

i) Cost of Software is treated as Intangible Assets and is amortised over a period of five years in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 26.

Investments
Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Diminution in value, if any, which is not considered
temporary in nature, is provided for. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises of
purchase cost and cost of procurement net of discount, on a weighted average basis.
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1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.1

Revenue Recognition

Income from services is recognised under the completed service contract method. Sales are
recognised on transfer of title of the goods to the customers. Income from life membership fees of the
golf course is recognised over a period of forty years in respect of individual members, being the
estimated period of the membership and on the actual period of membership of ten years in
respect of corporate members. Other incomes are recognised on accrual basis except when there
are significant uncertainties.

Revenue from Sale of power is recognised at the point of completion of agreed services.
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

Revenue from sale of tender documents is recognised on effecting the delivery of the same.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure for the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing on the last date of the accounting year and the resultant exchange
difference, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits

i. Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits and recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

ii. Defined Contribution Plans
The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan for
employees. The contributions paid/payable under the scheme during the year are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

iii. Defined Benefit Plans
The net present value of the obligation for gratuity benefits as determined on independent
actuarial valuation, conducted annually using the projected unit credit method, as adjusted for
unrecognized past services cost, if any, is recognised in the books of account. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur.

iv. Long Term Employee Benefits
The company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability of which is
determined on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year,
using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur.

Taxes on Income

Income tax is accounted in accordance with Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes on
Income (AS-22), which includes current taxes and deferred taxes. Provision for current tax is made
based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax on account of timing difference
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1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

between taxable and accounting income is accounted using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward losses are recognised if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such
assets. Other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent there is reasonable certainty of their
realisation.

MAT Creditis recognised as an asset only when and to the extentthere is convincing evidence that the
company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in
the guidance note issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created
by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company
reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay
normal Income Tax during the specified period.

Claims Receivable
Claims are accounted for, as and when the same are finally determined / admitted.

Government Grants

Grants, specifically relatable to capital assets, are credited to the carrying cost of the respective
asset. Grants in the nature of promoters contribution which are not repayable are treated as Capital
Reserve.

Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. An asset is identified as impaired, when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value. Based on such assessment, impairmentloss ifany is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the period in which the asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognised in the prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
for which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the correct management estimates.

Contingent Liahilities are disclosed when the company has a possible obligation or a present obligation
and it is probable that a cash flow will not be required to settle the obligation. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the accounts.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's Eamings per share comprise of the net
profit after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used
in computing diluted Earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
deriving the basic earning per share and also the weighted average number of shares, of any shares,
which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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1.17

1.18

1.19

2A

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments.

Leases

Lease payments under the operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease term.

Share Issue Expenses

Expenses incurred on enhancement of authorised capital amounting to Rs.1,87,50,000/- is written off
over a period of five years.

Notes to Accounts

Cochin International Airport Ltd. (CIAL) is having controlling interest in the following entities
during the year ended 31/03/2015

Name of the entity country of Controlling interest
incorporation
Cochin International Aviation Services
i 0,
Limited (CIASL) India 99.9868%
CIAL Infrastructure Limited India 99.9998%
Air Kerala International Services Ltd. India 99.9934%

Consolidated financial statements relate to Cochin International Airport Limited, the Parent Company
and its Subsidiaries (the Group). The Consolidated financial statements are in conformity with the
Accounting Standard 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements notified under the Companies Act
and are prepared as set out below:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include financial statements of CIAL and its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the Group to
the date such control exists.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP).

The consolidated financial of the group have been prepared on a line by line basis by adding together
the book value of subsidiary companies like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
all material inter company balances and inter company transactions and resulting unrealised profits
or losses are eliminated on consolidation except where cost cannot be recovered. The difference
between the cost to the group of investments in subsidiaries and the proportionate share in the equity
of the subsidiary company as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the consolidated
financial statements as goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be. Any gain/ loss arising upon
acquiring additional stake in subsidiary from parties outside the group is accounted for as goodwill/
capital reserve.

Minorities interest in net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income in orderto arrive atthe netincome attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
Their share of net assets is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately.
Where accumulated losses attributable to the minorities are in excess of their equity in the absence
of the contractual obligation on the minorities, the same is accounted for by the company.

A
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2.1

214

213

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events possible in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent
possible in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements. Changes have been
made in the accounting policies followed by each of the subsidiaries to the extent they were material
and identifiable from their respective audited financial statements to make them uniform with the
accounting policies in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn upto the
same reporting date as that of the holding company i.e 31% March 2015

Share Capital
Partlciilars As at 31_.03.2015
Amount in Rupees
Authorised:
400,000,000(400,000,000) Equity Shares of
Par Value Rs. 10/- each 4,000,000,000

Issued and Subscribed and fully paid:
30,60,59,799 (30,60,59,799) Equity Shares of
Par Value of Rs. 10/- each 3,060,597,990

3,060,597,990

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

As at 31.03.2015
Particulars
No. of shares Rupees
No. of_shares as at the beginning of the 30.60,59,799 3.060,597 990
financial year
Add: Shares issued during the year - =
Ej;érOf shares as at the end of the financial 30.60.59.799 3.060 597 990

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of
the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

Barbiciless As at 31.03.2015
% No. of shares
His Excellency, The Governor of Kerala 32.24% 9,86,80,000
Mr. N V George 11.89% 3,63,82,400
M/s Synthite Industries Ltd 8.16% 2,49 84 020
Mr. Yusuffali M A 7.78% 2,38,00,000
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Reserves and Surplus
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As at 31.03.2015

Surplus
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Less: Adjustment for tangible assets having no remaining useful life
(net of deferred tax) (Refer Note 2.40)

Add: Profit or (Loss) for the period after Minority Interest transferred
from the Statement of Profit and Loss

Less: Minority interest

Amount available for Appropriation

Less: Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve
Proposed Dividend (Refer Note 2.2.1)

Tax on Proposed Dividend

Particulars Rupees

Capital Reserve

Government Grant (for development of Golf Club) 80,000,000

Add: Addition to Capital reserve on account of consolidation 15,917,170
95,917,170

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet 318,660,000

Add: Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profitand Loss 144 579,828

463,239,828

2,354,713,216
141,226,827

1,413,612,133

(37,767)

3,627,136,288

144,579,828
642,725,578
137,273,329

2,702,557,553

3,261,714,551

The Board of Directors of the company has proposed a dividend of Rs.2.10 per share for the

Financial Year 2014-15

Minority Interest

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars
Rupees
Share Capital 60,700
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year transferred from Statement of
Profitand Loss (37,067)
23,633

Long term Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

Rupees
Secured:
Term Loans From Bank (See Note 2.4.1) 250,000,000
250,000,000
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The company has entered into a project term loan agreement with M/s Federal Bank Limited for
Rs.500 Crores for the ongoing New International Terminal project. The first disbursement of loan
amounting to Rs.25 Crores was availed by the company on 25" March 2015. The Term loan together
with interest is repayable in 156 equal monthly instalments and first such instalment shall commence
only after a period of 36 months from March 2015 (ie the date of first disbursement of loan). The
repayment holiday of 36 months is applicable only for Principal amount. Interest and other charges
are payable as and when due. The applicable interest rate of the loan is the base rate of Federal
Bank from time to time and the present rate of interestis 10.20% p.a

The term loan is secured by exclusive first charge on Project assets by way of simple mortgage
of the portion of land earmarked for the project by registration of Deed of Mortgage along with the
new international terminal building under construction and also having second charge by way of
hypothecation of fixed assets (excluding land and building, runways Golf course and vehicles) which
were already charged as collateral security to the overdraft limit of Rs.25.00 crores sanctioned to the
Company.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees

A. Deferred Tax Liability

On excess of net book value over Income tax written down value of 274,665,399
fixed assets™

B. Deferred Tax Asset
On Provisions 58,344 957
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A-B 216,320,442

* Includes the deferred tax effect of Rs.7,27,03,917/- being the adjustment of tangible assets having
no remaining useful life to opening surplus as mentioned in note no.2.40.

Other Long Term Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2015

Rupees
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 254,152,267
Security Deposits including Retention 119,188,214

373,340,481

Long-term Provisions

As at 31.03.2015
Rupees

Provision for Employee Benefits [Refer Note 2.30] 106,680,300
106,680,300

Particulars

Short-term Borrowings

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars
Rupees
Secured loan:
Overdraft Draft facility from Bank 48,398,630
48,398,630
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2.8.1

2.9

2.9.1

2.10

2.10.1

2.10.2

The Overdraft facility from Bank is Secured by hypothecation of entire movable fixed asset of the
Subsidiary CIASL purchased or to be purchased in future, which is stored at MRO Hanger, Line
Maintenance division of the Company and in its administrative building. The Overdraft is repayable
on demand and the rate of interestis 11.55%

Trade Payables

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees
Trade Payables 123,251,411
123,251,411

The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. Based on the information available there are no balances/interest payable to suppliers at the
year end.

Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 2.10.3) 279,519,130
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 489,041
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 8,245,000
Unpaid Dividends (refer Note No.2.10.1) 11,150,529

Unpaid share application money due for refund -
Other Payables -

Statutory Dues 38,527,002
Advance from Customers 2,702,415
Liability towards Capital Contracts 522,867,728
Security Deposits including Retention 429,692 874
Others (Refer note 2.10.2) 1,013,091,582

2,306,285,301

Unpaid dividends do not include any amount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor
Protection Fund.

Other liabilities include Rs.98,98,62,162/- (Rs.99,34,17,827/-) representing liability (Net of expenses
incurred) towards security related expensesto be incurred out of the security component of Passenger
Service Fees (PSF) collected by the company from embarking passengers in fiduciary capacity, in
accordance with guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India. Balance in
separate escrow bank accounts operated exclusively for this purpose are disclosed in Note 2.17.1.
During the year, an amount of Rs.47,39,20,063/- (Rs.40,49,21,149/-) collected as the security
component of PSF has been treated as liability towards security related expenses and an amount of
Rs.29,15,05,177/- (Rs.22,67,04,180/-) was incurred as security expenses and the net amount (after
payment of advance tax of Rs.6,00,00,000/-) amounting to Rs.12,24 14 886/- (Rs.17,82,16,969), is
included in other liabilities as mentioned above, along with the amount of Rs.7,76,44,104/- withdrawn
from Escrow accounts towards income tax payment during last year.
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2.103

2.11

Federal Bank Ltd. has sanctioned a term loan of Rs. 60.70 Crores to the Subsidiary CIASL for the
MRO facility project, which is secured by a first charge on all fixed assets of the Company and the
lease hold rights of the company vide lease deed no.2689/2006, over 31.50 acres of land together
with building constructed or to be constructed. The term loan is repayable in 126 monthly instalments
commencing from October 2015 and the rate of interest is 1.35% above the base rate of the Bank
(present rate is 11.55%).

Short-term provisions

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees

Provision for employee benefits [Refer Note 2.30] 18,437,538

Provision for Income Tax 8,612,900

Provision for Pay Revision (Refer Note No.2.33.1)

Provision for Proposed Dividend 642,725,578

Provision for Corporate Dividend Tax 137,273,329
807,049,345
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2.13

2.14
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2.15

Non-current Investments

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars
Rupees

Long term Trade Investments (at Cost)
Investment in Shares of Co-operative Society

215 (215) shares of Rs.1000 each, fully paid up in Cochin International 215,000
Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd.

Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments 215,000

Long-term Loans and Advances

Particulars fe atRi'L.S;ZMS

Unsecured (Considered Good)

Capital Advances 275,391,803

Unamortised Expenses - Share Issue Expenses 15,000,000

Security Deposits 57,063,849

Income Tax Paid (net) (Refer Note 2.14.1 to Note 2.14.2) 240,566,748
588,022,400

Income tax paid (net) represents the Advance tax and Tax deducted at source relating to various
years, net of provision made considering book profit tax and also include the payments made against
disputed demands amounting to Rs.2,60,00,000/-, the disputes of these are at various stages of
appeal.

The Income Tax Assessments of the Company have been completed upto and including the
Assessment Year 2012-13. Assessments for the remaining periods are pending. The major area
of dispute in income tax assessment is with regard to the eligible claim of deduction u/s.80IA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. For the Assessment Years 2005-06 to 2007-08, the Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT), Cochin Bench has remanded back the assessment to the Assessing Officer and
the matter is now pending before the Assessing Authority. For the Assessment Year 2008-09 and
2009-10, the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) [CIT(A)] had allowed the claim of deduction
u/s.80IlA, against which appeal filed by the Department is pending for disposal before ITAT. For the
Assessment Years 2010-11 to 2012-13, the appeal filed against the assessment before the CIT(A) is
pending for disposal.

Other non-current assets

Particulars o a;i;‘i':f"“
Balance with Banks in Deposit Account held under lien towards Bank 4,445 434
Guarantee (Refer Note 2.18.2)
Recoverable Amounts under dispute (Refer Note 2.43 and 2.44) 8,045,191
Less: Provision (8,045,191)
Others 11,036
Bank Deposit (which are held under lien with Commercial tax authorities) 92,764
4,549,234
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Inventories:
Particulars As a;ﬁ:"ngms
Stock in Trade
In hand 283,934,805
Stores & Spares 30,251,743
314,186,548

Method of Valuation of Inventories - Refer Note 1.6

Trade Receivables

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars Rupees
Unsecured, Considered Good
- Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are 273,135,256
due for payment
- Others 421,819,051
694 954 307
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
- Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are 3,894,549
due for payment
- Others 3,894 549
Sub-total 698,848,856
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,894,549
694,954,307

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cheque in transit

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts (Refer Note 2.18.1) 31,424,450
In Deposit Accounts (Refer Note 2.18.1 and Note 2.18.2) 1,832,977,265
Cash in hand 751,674

1,865,153,390

Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks in Current Accountinclude amount deposited in Unclaimed Dividend Account
Rs.11,150,529/- (Rs.1,02,79,363/-) which is earmarked for payment of dividend and cannot be
used for any other purpose.

b. Balance with banks include 91,2399 ,417/- (Rs.88,62,28,248/-) being the amount earmarked
for meeting security related expenses at the Airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, and cannot be used for any other purpose. Also
Refer Note 2.10.1.
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2.18.2

2.19

2.20

2.1

a. Balances with banks in deposit accounts include time deposits [maturity period of more than
12 months from the reporting date - Rs. 44,45, 434/- (Rs.13,50,00,000/-) maturity period of more
than 3 months but less than 12 months from the reporting date - Rs.35,36,29,531/-
(Rs.1,05,07,83,923/-) which can be withdrawn by the company at any point without prior
notice or penalty on the principal.

b. Balance with banks in deposit accounts include Rs.3,77,83,770/- (Rs.12,57,75,843/-), which are
held under lien, out of which the Non current portion is disclosed under Other Non Current assets

in Note No.2.15.

Short-term Loans and Advances (Refer Note 2.34)

Particulars As at 31.03.2015
Rupees

(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated)

Others:

Advances recoverable in cash orin kind or for value to be received. 20,361,757

Income Tax (net) 7,197,862

Security Deposits 37,294

Balances with Central Excise, Customs & Other Authorities 39,913,073
Total 67,509,986

Other Current Assets (Refer Note 2.34)

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars
Rupees
Interest Accrued on fixed deposits 37,171,919
Others 28,249
Total 37,200,168

Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees

Sale of Services

Aero Revenue

Landing Fee 468,175,438

Parking & Housing Fee 7,512,698

Aerobridge Charges 45,735,119

Passenger Service Fee 255,324,612

X-Ray Inspection Charges 8,945,750

Inline X Ray Screening Charges 176,901,416

Royalty 432,030,568

1,394,625,601
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Non Aero Revenue

Rent & Services

Royalty

Security Charges

Public Admission Fees

Income from Cargo Operations
Income From Consultancy Services
Income From Trade Fair Centre

Income from Golf Course and Facilities

549,150,507
131,156,605
2,887,648
36,316,657
189,881,913
20,372,600
18,183,067

947,948,997

Sale of Duty Free Products

1,653,557,387

Maintenance Repair & Overhaul (MRO)
Aircraft Certification
Headset Services

Rentals for MRO Hangar / Ground support services

Academy
Diploma Courses
Others

33,990,353
21,501,592
1,951,827

57,443,772

3,444,300
19,500

3,463,800

Revenue from Operations

4,057,039,557

Other Income

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees
Interest Income 144,211,831
Dividend Income from Current Investments 548,230
Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net) 283,934
Sale of Tender Documents 317,132
Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net) 14,700,065
Other non-operating income 18,208,963
178,270,155

Change in Stock in Trade:

For the year ended

Changes in stock in trade

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees

Opening Stock in Trade 154,591,190

Less: Closing Stock in Trade 283,934,805

(129,343,615)
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Employee Benefits Expenses

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees
Salaries & Wages 526,055,006
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 47,402,523
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 13,613,268

587,070,797

Finance Costs

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees
Interest Expenses: 45 033,011
Other borrowing costs 4,618,551
49,651,562

Other Expenses

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees

Repairs to Building 62,166,385
Repair to Plant, Equipment & Runway 53,893,618
Repairs to Office Equipments 2,154,568
Safety, Security & Immigration Expenses 30,764,562
Management Fees (Duty Free Shop) 60,527,748
Discount allowed (Duty Free Shop) (Net) 25,089,133
Power, Water and Fuel Charges 157,452,102
Vehicle running and maintenance 13,749,408
Housekeeping Expenses 53,983,710
Consumption of Stores, Spares & Consumables 27,750,351
Insurance 17,744,338
Rent 878,011
Rates and Taxes 6,433,821
Postage and Telephone 3,797,791
Printing and Stationery 2,029,034
Travelling and Conveyance 14,738,990
Auditor’'s Remuneration (Refer Note 2.28) 772,472
Advertisement and Publicity 16,317,615
Loss on Fixed Assets sold/demolished/discarded 1,667,610
Professional and Consultancy charges 16,529,456
Bank Charges 6,973,418
Bad debts written off 281,958
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances 9,479,191
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Renewal and Registration Charges
Filing fee to Registrar of Companies

Sitting Fee - Directors

Miscellaneous Expenses

Fee paid for Enhancement of Authorised Capital (1/5" written off)

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note.2.38)

2,273,775
2,297,088
100,000
3,750,000
62,634,466
6,427,993

662,658,611

Provision and/or payments in respect of Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015
Rupees

a. Statutory Audit Fees 702,247

b. For Other Services -

Taxation Matters (Including Tax Audit) 35,000

Others 15,000

Out of Pocket Expenses -
752,247

Earnings per share

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted

Particulars For the year ended
31.03.2015
Rupees
Profit after taxation (Rs.) 1,413,612,119
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (fully paid-up) 306,059,799

4.62

Disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 - “Employee Benefits”

a. Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on

account of defined contribution plans:

Particulars

Holding Company
Current Year Rupees

Subsidiary Companies
Current Year Rupees

Employers contribution to Provident Fund

39,830,202

3,846,139

b. Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity: Funded Obligation

i. Actuarial Assumptions

Holding Company

Subsidiary Companies

Mortality rate

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimate

Current Year Current Year
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.50%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% -
Salary escalation rate* 6.50% 5.00%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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ii. Reconciliation of present value of obligation

Holding Company

Subsidiary Companies

Current Year Current Year
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 79,238,821 -
Current Service Cost 10,145,515 23,537
Interest Cost 6,312,046 941
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 6,439,102 2,008
Benefits Paid (676,491)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 101,458,993 26,486
iii. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets Gumant Xeer
Rupees
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 61,821,017
Expected return on plan assets 4,945 681
Actuarial gain/( loss) 517,998
Contributions 27,417,804
Benefits paid 676,491
Assets distributed on settlement (if applicable)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 94,026,009
iv. Description of Plan Assets Crens Year
Rupees
Insurer Managed Funds (SBI Life) 94,026,009

V. Net (Asset)/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet as at year end

2014-15 (Rs.)

in the Balance Sheet

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 101,458,993
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 94,026,009
Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized as (asset)/ liability 7,432,984

vi. Expenses recognized in the Statement
of profit and loss

Holding Company
Current Year Rupees

Subsidiary Companies
Current Year Rupees

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period
Past Service Cost (if applicable)

Expected return on plan assets

Total expenses recognized in the statement of
profit and loss for the year

Actual Return on Planned Assets

10,145,515
6,312,046
5,921,104

(4,945,681)
17,432,984

5,463,863

91,119

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.
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Compensated absences (Vesting and Non Vesting): Unfunded Obligation
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i. Actuarial Assumptions

Current Year

Discount Rate (per annum)

Salary escalation rate™

Mortality rate

7.74% for Earned Leave
7.74% for Sick Leave

6% F5Y & 6% TA for
Earned Leave and Sick
Leave

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

in the Balance Sheet

ii. Reconciliation of present value of obligation Cuglep":e\;eat
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 82,558,672
Current Service Cost 9,929,669
Interest Cost 6,027,382
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 25,123,603
Benefits Paid (9,371,042)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 114268284
iii. Net (Asset)/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet as at year end c014:48
Rupees
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 114,238,284
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year B
Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized as (asset)/ liability 114,238,284

Holding C Subsidiary C i
iv. Expenses recognized in the Statement Gy e | | muSRaURTY RS RIS
Current Year Current Year
of profit and loss
Rupees Rupees

Current Service Cost 9,929 669 -
Interest Cost 6,027,382 -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period 25,123,603 -
Past Service Cost (if applicable) - -
Total ized in the state t of

otal expenses recognized in the statement o 41,080,654 3,321,849
profit and loss for the year

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.
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Disclosures under Accounting Standard 16: Borrowing Costs

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

Rupees
Details of borrowing costs capitalised as work in progress
Interest on Term Loan 489,041
One Time Processing Fee 12,500,000
12,989,041

Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Accounting Standard — 18 on Related
Party Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006.

Related parties and nature of relationship
a) Enterprises where significant influence exists

- Kochi International Airport Society (KIAS)

- Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Lid.

- CIAL Charitable Trust

b) Key Management Personnel

- Shri V. J Kurian, IAS - Managing Director, Cochin International Airport Limited (Holding Company)

- Shri. R Venkiteswaran - Managing Director, Cochin International Aviation Services Limited

(Subsidiary Company)

Description of Transactions

Nature of Transaction

Enterprises having
significant influence/
where control exists

31t March, 2015

Debit for meeting expenses

Kochi International Airport Society

Contribution to CIAL Charitable Trust out of CSR Funds
oviding o i

a) Surcharge from Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators’
Cooperative Society Ltd.

ceipt of Services
Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd:-
b) Taxi Hire Charges
Outstanding as on Balance sheetdate
Investments:
Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd.
Receivable:
Kochi International Airport Society

Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators' Cooperative Society Ltd.

317,889.00
4,000,000.00

3,755,606

454,711

215,000

317,889.00
318,098
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31 March 2015
Amount in Rupees
To Sri V.J. Kurian |AS - Reimbursement of medical expenses 136,252.00

Details of transactions with key managerial personnel

(Except for reimbursement of medical expenditure, which is not claimed by Sri V.J Kurian IAS from the
Government of Kerala(GOK), no other remuneration is payable to him by the company, since he is drawing his
remuneration as Additional Chief Secretary from GOK, as per his entitlement.)

31 March 2015
Amount in Rupees
To Sri R Venkiteswaran - Salary & Allowances (CTC) 2,400,000
2.33 The details of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are as under. (Disclosed in terms of Accounting

Standard —29 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

Details of transactions with key managerial personnel

2.33.1 Provisions

o Balance as at Afiqmonal‘ AMICETS Uiiused Balance as at
Nature of Provision 01.04.2014 Provision during | used/changed amounts 21.03.2015
o the year during the year reversed o
Provision for Pay Revision 62,500,000 - 62,500,000 - -

2.33.2 Contingent Liabilities

As at 31.03.2015

Particulars
Rupees

1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

(i) Service tax demands pending on appeal # (including Rs.13,59,46,885/- 281,128,046
in respect of which favourable orders have been received, though further
contested by department and Rs.12,72,13,485/- in respect of which
favourable orders have been received on similar issues in earlier years)
Rs.1,01,03,921/- remitted against the above demands under protest has
been carried under Loans & Advances.

(ii) Income tax demands pending on appeal (in respect of which favourable 1,657,918,047
orders have been received on similar issues in earlier years, though
further contested by the department) Rs.6,10,00,000/- remitted against
the above demands under protest has been carried under Loans &
Advances.

(iii) Setoff of MAT credit against the Current year Tax provision pending 21,13,38,900
disposal of dispute regarding the claim of 80 |A of the Income tax Actin
tax assessments

(iv) Claims for higher compensation on Acquisition of land (excluding interest) 1,558,908
disputed by the company and pending before various courts.

(v) Claims from Contractors for capital jobs payable as per Arbitration award, 278,004,587
disputed by the company before various courts.

(vi) Claims from Director General of Police, Kerala towards deputation of 7,451,506
manpower in earlier years, not accepted by the company.

(vii)Claim from Airport Authority of India in excess of amount recognized as liability Nil
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2.33.21

2.33.3
2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

2 Ministry of Civil Aviation vide letter dated 18-02-2014 claimed refund of capital 122,644,449
expenditures met out of PSF (Security Component)/Escrow Fund, which
was not accepted by CIAL .Further Hon'ble High Court of Kerala has stayed
the operation of the order (Expenditure incurred up to 31.03.2013).

3 Letter of Credit Nil
4 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the company 111,676,431
5 Demand for payment towards short deduction of tax at source for the 213,230

Assessment Year 2013-14, which is disputed by the Company before
the First Appellate authority and is pending for disposal (in the case of
subsidiary).

Total 2,360,495,204

# Show cause notices received from service tax authorities aggregating to Rs.6,38,22,0404/-,
(including interest and penalty) have not been considered as contingent liability, since formal
demands have not been raised and in the opinion of the management these notices are not sustainable

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account - Rs.8,07,09,72,886/-

In the opinion of the Directors, short term loans and advances and other current Assets, have the
value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

The Airports Economic Regulatory Authority(AERA),established under AERA Act 2008, regulate the
tariff and other charges of aeronautical services of Cochin International Airport. As per AERA
guidelines, CIAL had submitted a Multi Year Tariff Proposal (MYTP) for the first control period i.e. time
year period commencing from 2011-12 to 2015-16, which is under consideration of AERA. However,
the consultation paper issued by AERA on 05-06-2014 proposes to continue with the existing
aeronautical tanffi.e. Landing, Parking, Housing, Aerobridge charges and the Facilitation Component
of PSF, X-ray baggage screening and Cargo Charges at Cochin International Airport for the period
from 2011-12 to 2015-16. In respect of services provided such as Ground Handling, Refuelling royalty
and CUTE Services, it is expected that the authority will permit CIAL to charge rates as per relevant
agreements executed with the service providers. Hence, the requirement of incorporating the impact
of implementation of MYTP in the financial statements is not considered at this stage.

As per the guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, the security component
of the passenger service fee collected from embarking passengers has to be spent only for security
related expenses, including the purchase of equipments for that purpose. Vide letter dated 18/02/2014,
the Ministry of Civil Aviation, had directed the company to refund part of the amount used for acquiring
security equipments, stating that the same is not an eligible item to be procured from this earmarked
funds. The Company has not accepted the direction and obtained stay against the direction from the
Hon'ble High Court of Kerala. The Company is of the view that the direction is not maintainable and
hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage, however the amount demanded as refund
is disclosed as contingent liability in Note No.2.33.2

The Company is operating a composite airport with facilites for cargo movement, duty free
shop, trade fair centre and Golf club. In the opinion of the Management, this is the only primary
reportable segment within the meaning of Accounting Standard 17 notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules 20086.




21* Annual Report 2014-15

2.38

2.39

2.40

2.4

2.42

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR
committee has been formed by the Company. The areas of CSR activities include education, drinking
water supply, health care, social empowerment, infrastructure support through adoption of villages,
etc and those specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The utilisation of CSR funds
are partly done through the Charitable Trust constituted by Company and also by direct spending as
per the recommendation of the CSR Committee. The details of amount required to be spent and the
amount utilised are given below:

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : Rs.289 41 564/-
b) Amount spent during the year
i) By contribution to the Trust :  Rs. 40,00,000/-
ii) By Construction/acquisition of any asset : -
iii) By other than the above ;. Rs. 24,27 ,993/-

Litigation: The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. The Company's management does not reasonably expect that these legal
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company's results of operations.

As a result of change in the method of computation of depreciation consequent to the adoption of
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the charge of depreciation for the current year is more by
Rs. 61,30,623/-. Further, consequent to the change arising from the adoption of useful life of tangible
assets in accordance with Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, the company has fully
depreciated the carrying value of assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the
asset is determined as nil as on 31.03.2014 and has adjusted an amount of Rs.14,12,26,827 (net
of deferred tax of Rs.7,27,03,917), against the opening surplus of the Statement of Profit and Loss
under Reserves and Surplus

Considering the Airport Operation as an Infrastructural project, the Company was claiming deduction
u/s.80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961 for the Income from airport operations for a period of 10 years
ended 31/03/2014. Accordingly, during these years, the payment of tax was based on Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT), which is eligible for set off against future tax liability. However, the Company
had not recognised MAT credit as an asset in its books of accounts, as a matter of prudence. During
the current year, MAT creditto the extentofRs. 21,13,38,900 is set off against the provision for Income
Tax. Claim of deduction u/s.801A have been disputed by the Income Tax departmentand these disputes
are at various levels of appeals for different years. However, the Company based on legal opinion,
is confident of getting a favourable decision and hence set off of MAT credit is done during the year.

i) In the case of subsidiary CIASL, the Management has decided to change the method of
computation of depreciation on tangible assets from Written Down Value method to Straight Line
Method retrospectively from the date of acquisition of each asset, during the year. Consequent
to this change, the Depreciation charged in earlier years is excess by Rs.3,47,11,491/- and the
same has been credited to Statement of Profit and Loss as an Exception item. Had the company
followed the earlier method, the charge to the profit and loss account would have been
Rs.5,12,28,875/-

i) Inthe same manner, the amortisation of intangible assets has also been revised to align with the
requirement of Accounting Standard (AS) 26 and the period of amortisation is fixed as 5 years
and consequent to this, the excess amount amortised during earlier years amounting to
Rs.15,164/- is also included in exceptional items in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Al
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2.43

2.44

2.45

2.46

In the case of subsidiary CIASL, during the financial year 2008-09, the company entered into an
agreement with M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private Limited (KAAEPL) for the
operation and management of AME Institute. Though M/s. KAAEPL started the course during August
2010, they could not continue running the institute as they failed to obtain the necessary approval
from Director General of Civil Aviation. Consequent to this, during 2011-12 CIASL invoked a Bank
Guarantee for Rupees One Crore submitted by M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private
Limited (KAAEPL) for non performance and to recover expenses incurred on their behalf & other
receivables due from KAAEPL. However, KAAEPL has disputed the claim and currently the matter
is under arbitration. The amount received from Bank on invocation of Bank Guarantee and the amount
determined as receivable from M/s. KAAEPL have been netted off and the balance receivable is
shown under non-current receivables. Even though the management is confident of recovering the
amount due, as a matter of financial prudence provision is created for the entire amount of
Rs.60,22,711/-

In the case of subsidiary CIASL, during the year 2011 -12, the company received a letter from
Corporation Bank directing it not to remove the assets & equipments of M/s. Kairali Aviation
Aeronautical Engineering Pvt. Ltd. (KAAEPL) from the space that the Company had leased out to
KAAEPL, on the grounds that these assets & equipments were hypothecated to Corporation Bank.
The Company in turn had raised a demand for Rs.2,022,480/- on Corporation Bank towards rent for
the space occupied by the assets and equipments of KAAEPL till 30" September, 2012. Corporation
Bank has rejected the Company’s claim for rent vide letter No. OR:1049:2012 dated 01.10.2012. No
rental income has been recognized considering the above dispute, w.e.f. 01.10.2012 and during the
current year provision has been created for the entire amount.

In the case of subsidiary CIASL, for making provision for long term employee benefits such as
Gratuity and Eared leave encashment, no actuarial valuation has been obtained by the Company and
the same has been provided considering the period of service and the number of leave outstanding.
The Management is of the opinion that since there are only 4 permanent employees on the rolls of
the Company, there will not be any material impact for the provision made without assessing the
liahility on actuarial basis.

Information relating to Subsidiary Companies

Battloilars (_:o_chin Intgrnatig@l CIAL In_fra_structure Air Keral_a Inti_arr_lational
Aviation Services Limited Limited Service Limited
Share Capital 453,194,000 453,346,220 10,641,200
Reserves and Surplus (280,790,281) 18,834,716 (15,098,482)
Total Assets 551,105,608 486,286,544 901,283
Total Liabilities 551,105,608 486,286,544 901,283
Turnover 62,942 862 8,471,023 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (46,263,614) 29,697,936 80,010
Provision for tax 6,111,131 9,638,596 4 600
Profit/(Loss) after tax (52,374,745) 20,059,339 75,410

The above information is being made pursuant to General Circular No.2/2011 dated 08.02.2011 of the Ministry

of Corporate Affairs.
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2.47
Net Assets Share in profit or loss
Name of Entity As °f? of Amount As ‘V? of Amount
consclidated consolidated
net assets net assets
Parent Company:
CIAL 91.14 | 6,583,357,818 102.28 | 1,445,798,282
Subsidiaries :
C'oc':hln International Aviation Services 230| 172,408,719 a7)| 62374745
Limited
CIAL Infrastructure Limited 6.54| 472,180,936 1.42 20,059,339
A}r !(erala International Service (0.06) (4,457 282) 0.01 75410
Limited
2.48 Since the consolidated Financial Statements are prepared during the year for the first time, no fig-
ures of the previous year has been given which is in accordance with Clause 41 of Accounting
Standard (AS) 21.
2.49 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses
2.50 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated

are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in con-
formity with current year’s layout.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS
Managing Director

sd/-
Sunil Chacko

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.08.2015

sd/-
C. V. Jacob
Director

sd/-
Saji K. George
Company Secretary

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. C. Krishnamoorthy

Senior Partner
(M.No: 5957)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2015

For the year ended 31.03.2015

(Amount in Rupees)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before taxation and exceptional items

1,741,737,841

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 334,932,815

Fixed assets written off 7,456,234

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss 9,270,684

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain -

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances / Bad Debts written off 9,479,191

Interest Income (144,211,831)

Dividend Income (548,230)

Scrap sale (3,533,633)

Interest and Finance Charges 49 651,562

Loss on sale of fixed assets 287,629
Total 262,784,422
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,004,522,263

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (130,986,376)

{Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 52,189,174

(Increase)/Decrease in Repayments and Other Receivables (3,5961,232)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable/Cther Liabilities 80,636,046 (1,722,388)
Cash Generated from Operations 2,002,786.874
Direct Tax (payments) /refunds (Net) (407,482,987)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 1,595,316,888

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Sale of Fixed Assets

Interest Received

Dividend Received

Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds

Sale of Scrap

Investment in Shares of subsidiary companies

Other Non current asset : Balance with banks under lien

Purchase of Fixed Assets including capital work in progress/advances

(1,866,640,046)
457,124
141,146,663
548,230
10,000,000
3,533,633

(4,339,335)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

(1,715,293,732)
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C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of Share capital *

Grant received -

Interest Paid (49,162,521)

Increase/(Decrease) of Unsecured Loans 280,724,545

Dividend paid including dividend tax (643,675,742)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (412,113,718)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (532,090,562)
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,406,514,635
Effect of Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain /{Loss) on cash and cash equivalents (9,270,684)
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,865,153,389

Note: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year includes Rs. 11,150,529 deposited in unpaid dividend
account which is earmarked for payment of dividend and Rs.989,862,162/- held in fiduciary capacity
for meeting security related expenses at the airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation and cannot be used for any other purpose.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our separate report of even date attached

sd/- sd/- For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy

V.d. Kurlan 1AS G.V.Jacoh Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)
Managing Director Director

sd/- sd/- ) Beli-

Sunil Chacko Saji K. George CA. C. Krishnamoorthy

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Senior Partner

Place: Kochi (M.No: 5957)

Date: 15.06.2015
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/318E, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kochi Airport P.O., Ernakulam 683 111, CIN : U35303KL2005PLC018632

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Tenth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the

financial year 2014-15.

(Rupees in lakhs)

01.04.2014 | 01.04.2013
FINANCIAL RESULTS to to

31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014
Total Income 659.88 534 .32
Less :
Employee Cost 396.22 402.02
Administrative & Other Expenses 274.40 200.82
Interest and Finance Charges 367.07 308.34
Profit /(Loss) before depreciation (377.81) (376.86)
Depreciation (432.08) (397.74)
Exceptional income 347 .27 -
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (462.63) (774.61)
Provision for Income Tax (Current & Deferred Tax) (61.11) (90.12)
Net Profit / (Net Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (523.74) (864.73)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the turnover of your company increased by around 125.56 lakhs representing
a growth of 23.50% over the previous year. The major revenue driver is the line maintenance operation which
accounts for 90% of the total revenue. This segment registered around 26% growth during the year under
review.

Your Company is exploring avenues for a tie up with a competent technical pariner to operationalise the MRO
facility at the earliest.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN:
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD :

Your company has conducted four Board meetings in the financial year 2014-15 on the following dates.

26" June 2014

29 August 2014

19" September 2014
26" March 2015
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DIVIDEND
During the period under review, the company has not registered any profit and hence unable to recommend
any dividend.

DIRECTORS

The present Directors of the Company are Sri.V.J.Kurian |IAS (Chairman), Sri.C.V.Jacob, Sri.E.M.Babu,
Sri.N.V.George, CA Jose Pottokaran, Sri.,A Ramalingam and Sri.R Venkiteswaran (Managing Director).
CA Jose Pottokaran and Sri. A Ramalingam have been appointed as Independent Directors pursuant to the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Sri.Yusuffali M A and Dr.P Mohamed Ali, Directors resigned from the board during the year under review on
account of personal reasons.

Sri.R Venkiteswaran, Managing Director was reappointed with effect from 1% February, 2015.

Directors, Sri.N V George and Sri.C.V. Jacob are retiring from the Board by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies act 2013 and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the prescribed limits in terms of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO

There is no activity relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption since the Company has not
commenced its major maintenance operation. During the year the Company earned foreign exchange
equivalent to Rs.2,85,61,478/-from its operations and had incurred expenditure in foreign exchange equivalent
to Rs.66,30,685/- on account of fees to foreign regulators, foreign travel of personnel, fraining charges for
Aircraft Maintenance Personnel etc.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Business Risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the organization. The company has
a robust framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three non executive Directors, internal auditors and statutory auditors of the
Company. The Audit Committee provides direction to the audit and risk management function in the Company
and monitors the quality of internal audit and management audit. The responsibilities of Audit Committee
include reviewing the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, reviewing the adequacy of
internal control systems and reviewing the findings of internal investigations etc.

AUDITORS
M/s Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and are eligible for re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors wish to state:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures

b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period

c. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (6) OF
SECTION 149 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

The independent directors have given the statement of declaration that they meet the criteria of independence
as provided in the sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than transactions with the holding company in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis,
there is no transaction falling within the purview of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated. Similarly, the evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole
has to be conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. None of the independent
directors are due for re-appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors are grateful to Government of India, Government of Kerala, Ministry of Civil Aviation,
Management and Staff of Cochin International Airport Limited, DGCA, Bankers, Consultants, Contractors and
shareholders for the continued co-operation and unstinted support extended to the Company.

The Directors also record their deep appreciation for the loyalty and commitment of the employees at all levels.

for and on behalf of Board of Directors
for Cochin International Aviation Services Limited

Ermakulam Sd/-
Date : 11" June 2015 Chairman
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Annexure to Board’s Report

FORM NO. MGT 9

Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. |CIN U35303KL2005PLC018632
2. | Registration Date 08/09/2005
3. | Name of the Company Cochin International Aviation Services Limited
4 Category/Sub-category Company Limited by shares /
© | of the Company Indian Non Government Company
5 Address of the Registered XI/318E, Cochin International Airport Buildings
" | office & contact details Kochi Airport P O., Ernakulam 683 111
8. | Whether listed company No
Name, Address & contact
7. | details of the Registrar & Not Applicable
Transfer Agent, if any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing
10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

sl Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product / % to total turnover of
No. main products / services service the company
1 Aircraft Maintenance - 84%
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Holding/ | % of .
= Namﬂ‘::’é‘:);dda’:ss o CIN / GIN Subsidiary/| shares Agz:::;z:'e
pARY Associate | held
1. | Cochin International Airpert Limited | U63033KL1994PLC007803 | Holding 99.99 2(46)

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding.
No. of Shares held at the beginning o,
o of the year [As on 31-March-2014] No. of Shares held at the end of the year Change
Share % of during
De p % of Total
holders Physical Total Total | Demat | Physical Total the
mat Shares ear
Shares y
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 6000 6000 oM 6000 6000 oM
b) Central Government
c) State Governments
d) Bodies Corporate 45313400 45313400 99.99 45313400 | 45313400 93.9%
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-Total (A)(1):- -| 45319400 45319400 100 - | 45319400 | 45319400 100 -
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(2) Foreign

a) NRIs — Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

Sub Total(A)(2):-

Total Shareholding of
promoter(A)=(A)(1)+{A)2)

45319400

45319400

100

45319400

45319400

100

B. Public Shareholding

a) Mutual Funds/ Banks/ FI

b) Central Government

c) State Government

)
d) Venture Capital Funds
)

e) Insurance Companies

) Flis

) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

h) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B){1):-

2. Non4nstitutions

a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii}Individualshareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs
1 lakh

c) Cthers

Non Resident Indians

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public Shareholding
B)=B)(1)+ (B)2)

C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

45319400

45319400

100

45319400

45319400

100
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ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

%

change
SI ) 0, o, %Of in
No | Shareholder’s Name % of % of % of Shares | share-
total Shares holdi
total Pledged | holding
No. of Shares Pledged No. of qir
Shares | / encum- uring
Shares of the / encum- Shares
ofthe bered the
com- bered to
company | to total year
pany total shares
shares
1 | CIAL 45313400 99.988 --| 45313400 99.988 -- -
2 | AChandrakumaran Nair 1000 0.002 -- 1000 0.002 -- --
3 | AM Shabeer 1000 0.002 - 1000 0.002 - -
4 | Alex Varghese 1000 0.002 -- 1000 0.002 - --
5 |V Suresh Babu 1000 0.002 - 1000 0.002 - -
6 | R Venkiteswaran 1000 0.002 -- 1000 0.002 -- --
7 |V Sankar 1000 0.002 - 1000 0.002 -- --
Total 45319400 100.00 - | 45319400 100.00 - -

ili) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) - No Change

Sl

Particulars
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares
of the

company

At the beginning of the year

equity etc.)

Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer/bonus sweat

At the end of the year
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

Sl For Each of the
L) 0,

b TR s IOl No of Shares sh,:r:itc(:fta!;le No. of shares sh‘gr(:sTgftatII)e
company company

1

2

3

4

5

6

T

8

9

10

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1. Shri. R Venkiteswaran, Managing Director

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

sl. .
s Particulars 9% of total /"sz:‘:z;a[
) No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 1000 0.002 1000 0.002
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer / bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year 1000 0.002 1000 0.002
2. Shri. Lenny Sebastian, Chief Financial Officer
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
sl.
Particulars 9% of total %sz:‘ :g:a[
Nox No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year i = = -
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V)

Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment firansfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)

At the end of the year

3. Shri.Saji Daniel, Company Secretary

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

sl.
i Particulars % of total % of total
© No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares ﬂ}a;,le:
company company
At the beginning of the year == == == -
Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment firansfer/bonus sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year -- - = -
INDEBTEDNESS - (Rs. in Lakh)
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Loans Utisacured Total
excluding Deposits | Indebted-
: Loans
deposits ness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 276,802,897 - -| 276,802,897
ii) Interest due but not paid -- - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - - - —
Total (i+ii+iii) 276,802,897 - -| 276,802,897
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - -
Addition - = = =
Reduction - - - -
Net change Indebtedness - - - -
At the end of the financial year - -
i) Principal Amount 276,802,897 - -| 276,802,897
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 2,716,233 - - 2,716,233
Total (i-+ii+iil) 279,519,130 - -| 279,519,130
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VL

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakh)

Sl
MNo.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD
R VENKITESWARAN

Total
Amount

1

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the

Income-tax Act, 1961

24.00

24.00

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of Income- tax Act,

1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

24.00

24.00

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Re

muneration to other directors: (Amountin Rs.)

Sl
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total
Amount

V J KURIAN

CVJACOB

E M BABU NV GEORGE

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

30000

40000 30000

100000

Total (B)=(1+2)

30000

40000 30000

100000

Total Managerial Remuneration

30000

40000 30000

100000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER /WTD

VIL.

Total
Key M ial P 1
o ey Managerial Personne P
i Particulars of Remuneration C
. CFO ompany
Secretary
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 ere 49048 Fomes
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of _ _ _
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under _ _ .
section 17(3) of Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - e
Commission
- as % of profit . - i
- others, specify... - - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total (A) 27801 49128 76929
PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Brie | Details of Penalty / | Authority ?npapd":'
Tk Section of the Baapii: Punishment/ [RD/ an :
yp Companies Act ST Compounding NCLT/ any
Hon fees imposed | COURT] (give
P Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cochin International Aviation Services Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31¢ March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevantto the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken in account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

i)  Inthe case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31% March, 2015,
i) In the case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that day and

iii) Inthe case of Statement of Cash Flow, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on 31 March 2015 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2015
from being appointed as director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in the
financial statements, refer note No. 2.38 to the financial statements;

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses, refer note No.2.39.

iii) There are no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sdf-
Place: Cochin -16 C. KRISHNAMOORTHY
Date: 15.06.2015 Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “ REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2015:

(i)

i)

vi)

vii)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) We are informed that these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

a) We are informed that physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management

b) Inouropinionandaccording to the explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of
the company and the nature of its business.

¢) The company is maintaining records of inventory and as reported to us, no material discrepancies
were observed on physical verification by the management

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, paragraphs
(iif) (@) and (b) of CARO 2015 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct
major weaknesses in such internal control systems.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public during the year and hence, the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and according to the examination
of the records, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. There are no
arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According tothe information and explanations givento us and based on the records ofthe company
examined by us there are no disputed dues of income tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty
of customs or value added tax or cess which are outstanding as on 31% March, 2015 except for
the demand for payment towards short deduction of tax at source amounting Rs.2,13,230/- which
has been disputed by the company before the First Appellate Authority.
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KRISHNAMOORTHY & KRISHNAMOORTHY PALIAM ROAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS COCHIN-16

viii)

X)

xi)

xii)

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to
transfer any amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there under.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company
examined by us, the accumulated losses of the company at the end of the financial year are more
than fifty per cent of its net worth as defined as per the Companies Act 2013. The Company has
incurred cash loss in current financial year as well as in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or
bank or debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, we report that the term loan availed by the Company, have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company
examined by us, no fraud either on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported during the year.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Sdf-

Place: Cochin - 16 C. KRISHNAMOORTHY
Date: 15.06.2015 Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31t MARCH 2015

Partioulars Yo. [RGERSRRIERIN  (Amount in Rupees
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Fund
a) Share capital 2.1 453,194,000 453,194,000
b) Reserves and surplus 22 (280,790,281) (228,166,352)
(2) Non-current liabilities
a) Long-term borrowings 23 - 276,802,897
b) Deferred tax liabilities 34,516,869 28,926 557
c) Other Long-term liabilities 24 300,407 1,291,617
d) Long-term provisions 25 2,101,801 3,317,611
(3) Current liabilities
a) Short-term borrowings 26 48 377,573 20,390,317
b) Trade payables 2.7 527,255 630,083
c¢) Other current liabilities 28 291,605,380 8,600,690
d) Short-term provisions 29 1,265,021 1,660,801
TOTAL 661,098,026 666,648,221
Il. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
a) Fixed assets
i) Tangible assets 2101 507,413,394 513,780,781
i) Intangible assets 2102 50,701 52,042
b) Long-term Loans and Advances 2.1 7,933,975
¢) Other non-current assets 2.12 103,800 8,057,580
(2) Current assets
a) Inventories 213 2,166,394 1,932,562
b) Trade receivables 2.14 9,795,245 7,347,041
c¢) Cash and cash equivalents 2.15 18,539,724 25,746,737
d) Short-term loans and advances 2.16 4740417 9,225,228
e) Other current assets 2.17 354,375 506,250
TOTAL 661,098,025 566,648,221
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 1&2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
R. Venkiteswaran
Managing Director

V.J. Kurian IAS
Chairman

sd/- sd/-
Saji Daniel
Company Secretary

Lenny Sebastian
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Cochin
Date: 12.06.2015

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0014888)

sd/-
C. Krishnamoorthy

Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)

Place: Cochin - 16
Date: 15.06.2015
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2015

: Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars No. 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees
Income
I.  Revenue from Operations 218 62,942 862 48,165,828
II. Other Income 2.19 3,044,793 5,266,621
lll. Total Revenue (I +11) 65,987,655 53,432,449
Expenses:
Employee Benefits 2.20 39,622,158 40,202,318
Finance Costs 2.21 36,707,661 30,834,588
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.10 43 207,773 39,774,616
Other Expenses 2.22 27,440,332 20,082,201
IV. Total Expenses 146,977,924 130,893,723
* anmotery Keom e eI -] (80,990,270) 77,481274)
VI. Exceptional Items:
Excess depreciation written back 34,726,655 e
(Refer Note 2.23)
VII. Profit (loss) before tax (V-VI) (46,263,614) (77,461,274)
Tax expense:
a. Current tax - -
b. Tax for earlier years 409,390 -
c. Deferred tax 5,701,741 9,012,601
VIII Profit for the period (52,374,745) (86,473,875)
IX. Earnings per equity share
Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 (Rs.10/-)
a. Basic (1.16) (1.91)
b. Diluted (1.16) (1.91)
Signiﬁcam Acgounting Policies & Notes forming 182
part of Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS R. Venkiteswaran
Chairman Managing Director
sd/- sd/-

Lenny Sebastian
Chief Financial Officer

Saji Daniel
Company Secretary

Place: Cochin
Date: 12.06.2015

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-
C. Krishnamoorthy
Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)

Place: Cochin - 16
Date: 15.06.2015
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Significant accounting policies and Notes on accounts for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2015

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), on accrual basis under historical cost convention
as a going concern. The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply with the
requirements of mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013(Act) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policies
adopted for the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year
except when a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use and when the statute mandate
the change.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

a) Tangible Assets and work in progress
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. Cost includes all direct expenses incurred to bring an asset to working condition for its
intended use. Capital work- in- progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet
ready for their intended use on reporting date.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition of such assets and are carried atcost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation and Amortisation

i) Depreciation on tangible assets, has been provided on Straight Line Method (SLM), by
adopting the useful lives prescribed as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
and retaining 5% of the original cost as residual value.

i) Cost of Software is treated as Intangible Assets and is amortised over a period of five years
in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 26.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises of
purchase cost and cost of procurement net of discount, on a weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition

Incomes from Line Maintenance Operations and the Aviation Academy are recognized on an
accrual basis. Sales are recognised on transfer of title of the goods to the customers. Other incomes
are recognised on accrual basis except when there are significant uncertainties.
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1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.1

1.12

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing on the last date of the accounting year and the resultant exchange
difference, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined Contribution Plans

The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan for
employees. The contributions paid/payable under the scheme during the year are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity and Compensated Absences are defined benefit plans. Liabilities with regard to these are
recognized on an accrual basis at the Balance Sheet date, by the company.

Taxes on Income

Income tax is accounted in accordance with Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes
on Income (AS-22), which includes current taxes and deferred taxes. Provision for current tax is
made based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax on account of
timing difference between taxable and accounting income is accounted using the tax rates and
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
representing unabsorbed depreciation and/or carried forward losses are recognised if there is
virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
there is reasonable certainty of their realisation.

Claims Receivable
Claims are accounted for, as and when the same are finally determined / admitted.

Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. An asset is identified as impaired, when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value. Based on such assessment, impairmentloss if any is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the period in which the asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognised in the prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
for which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the correct management estimates.
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1.13

1.14

1.15

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's Earnings per share comprise of the net
profit after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used
in computing diluted Earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
deriving the basic earning per share and also the weighted average number of shares, of any shares,
which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments.

Leases
Lease payments under the operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease term.

Notes to Accounts

21

2.1.1

Share capital

Pasficaiians As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Amountin Rupees Amount in Rupees

Authorised:

Equity Shares:

100,000,000 (70,000,000) Equity Shares of 1,000,000,000 700,000,000

Par Value Rs.10/- each

1,000,000,000 700,000,000

Issued. Subscribed & Paid Up

Equity Shares:

45,319,400 Equity :_?.hares of Par Value 453194000 453,194,000

Rs.10/- each, fully paid up
Total 453,194,000 453,194,000

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

i As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
No. of shares Rupees No. of shares Rupees

ik simiseantii . L 45,319,400 | 453,194,000| 45,319,400 | 453,194,000
the financial year

Add: Shares issued during the year - B . -
a0, of_shares asd meRtar e 45 319,400 | 453,194,000 45,319,400 453,194,000
financial year

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.
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2.3

2.3.1
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Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
% No. of shares % No. of shares
Cochin Intemational Airport Limited 99.99% 45,313,400 99.99% | 45,313,400

Reserves and surplus

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Rupees Rupees
Surplus (deficit):
Balance as per last Balance Sheet (228,166,352) (141,692,477)
Adjustment for tangible assets having no =
remaining useful life (Refer Note 2.10.4) a5
Add: Net Profit (loss) after tax as per
Statement of Profitand Loss G2 SE8i5) (BB7Ia, 878
TOTAL (280,790,281) (228,166,352)

Long-term borrowings

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Rupees Rupees
Secured: Term Loans From Bank (See Note 2.3.1) - 276,802,897
TOTAL - 276,802,897

Federal Bank Ltd. has sanctioned a term loan of Rs. 60.70 Crores for the MRO facility project, which is
secured by a first charge on all fixed assets of the Company and the lease hold rights of the company
vide lease deed no.2689/2006, over 31.50 acres of land together with building constructed or to be
constructed. The term loan is repayable in 126 monthly instalments commencing from October 2015
and the rate of interest is 1.35% above the base rate of the Bank (present rate is 11.55%).

The Company has pre-closed the loan in April 2015 and hence the entire amount is considered as

current liability.

Other Long Term Liabilities

- As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Retention Deposits 300,407 1,192,334
Security Deposits - 99,283
Total 300,407 1,291,617

Long-term provisions

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Particulars

Rupees Rupees
Provision for Employee Benefits 2,101,801 3,317,611
Total 2,101,801 3,317,611
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2.7

2.71

2.8

2.9

Short-term borrowings

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Secured loan:
48,377,573 20,390,317
Overdraft Draft facility from Bank
TOTAL 48,377,573 20,390,317

The Overdraft facility from Bank is Secured by hypothecation of entire movable fixed asset of the
Company purchased or to be purchased in future, which is stored at MRO Hanger, Line Maintenance

division of the Company and in its administrative building. The Overdraft is repayable on demand

and the rate of interest is 11.55%

Trade Payables

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Rupees Rupees
Trade Payables (See Note 2.7.1) 527,255 630,083
TOTAL 527,255 630,083

The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. Based on the information available there are no balances/interest payable to suppliers at the

year end.

Other current liabilities

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Current maturities of long term borrowings
279,519,130 -

(Refer Note 2 .3.2)
Advance from_ related parties in the ordinary 7 431,030 6,723 451
course of business
Security Deposit including retention Deposits 530,721 -
Other Payables :

Statutory Dues 694,056 1,252,231

Other Payables 3,430,443 625,008
TOTAL 291,605,380 8,600,690

Short-term provisions

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Provision for employee benefits 1,265,021 1,660,801
TOTAL 1,265,021 1,660,801
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Long Term loans and advances

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured (Considered Good)
Deposits 170,277 -
Income Tax (Net) 7,763,698 -
Total 7,933,975 -

Other non-current assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Rupees Rupees
Recoverable Amounts under dispute (Refer Note 2.24 & 2.25) 8,045,191 8,045,191
Less: Provision (8,045,191) -
- 8,045,191
Others 11,036 12,389
Bank Deposit (which are held under lien with
CommercFi}ai tax(authorities) Al i
TOTAL 103,800 8,057,580
Others represents the amount of KVAT paid under protest and the proceedings for its refund is in process.
Inventories
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
Stores and Spares 2,166,394 1,932,562
TOTAL 2,166,394 1,932,562

Method of VValuation of Inventories - Refer Note 1.5

Trade Receivables

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Rupees Rupees
Unsecured, Considered Good

Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months _ 575 404

from the date they are due for payment

Others 9,795,245 6,792,452
Total 9,795,245 7,367,856
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts - 20,815
TOTAL 9,795,245 7,347,041

Cash and Cash equivalents

PGS As a;ﬁ‘:).il::ﬁﬁ As atRlSJ‘L.;):fOM
Balance with Banks:

In Current Accounts: 539,724 459,964

:QSE;T”STZA;COT:;;S having maturity period 18,000,000 25286,773
TOTAL 18,539,724 25,746,737
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2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19:

Short-term loans and advances

. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received:
Pre-paid expenses 1,599,697 1,716,416
Others 2,826,963 283,658
Bal ith Central Exci Cust & Oth
aanggsm entral Excise , Customs er 313757 7225155
Authorities
TOTAL 4,740,417 9,225,228
Other current assets
. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 354,375 506,250
TOTAL 354,375 506,250
Revenue from Operations
. Year ended 31.03.2015 | Year ended 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
a) Income from sale of services
i) Maintenance Repair & Overhaul (MRO)
Aircraft Certification 33,990,353 26,950,173
Headset Services 21,501,592 17,220,527
Rentals for MRO Hangar / Ground support services 1,951,827 1,105,544
ii) Academy
Diploma Courses 3,444,300 2,367,400
Others 19,500 20,359
b) Others
Rental income from office space 2,035,290 501,825
Total 62,942,862 48,165,828
Other Income
2 Year ended 31.03.2015 | Year ended 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Interest Income 2,121,956 2,283,578
Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net) 283,934 168,432
Other non operating income 638,903 2,814,611
Total 3,044,793 5,266,621
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2.21

2.22

Employee Benefits

: Year ended 31.03.2016 | Yearended 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Salaries & Wages 33,953,851 34,280,891
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 3,696,466 3,926,292
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 1,971,841 1,995,135
Total 39,622,158 40,202,318
Finance Costs
. Year ended 31.03.2016 | Yearended 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Interest expenses:
On borrowings 36,707,661 30,834,588
Total 36,707,661 30,834,588
Other Expenses
= Year ended 31.03.2016 | Year ended 31.03.2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Repairs to Building 117,574 570,674
Repair to Plant, Equipment & others 1,576,635 1,454,152
Repairs to Office Equipments 30,193 66,183
Safety, Security & Immigration Expenses 1,108,553 1,041,752
Power, Water & Fuel Charges 1,627,387 1,671,023
Housekeeping Expenses 1,506,221 1,427,269
Consumption of Stores, Spares & Consumables 180,528 443,465
Insurance 488,818 389,260
Rent 430,870 325,917
Rates & Taxes 8,756 23,084
Postage & Telephone 201,853 169,427
Printing & Stationery 44 652 82,386
Travelling & Conveyance 2,656,505 3,939,846
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note:2.35) 85,000 80,000
Advertisement & Publicity 721,244 438,125
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 22,738 -
Professional & Consultancy charges 2,953,411 5,275,928
Bank Charges 72,006 51,037
Bad debts written off 281,958 211,452
Miscellaneous Expenses 325,499 788,344
Renewal and Registration Charges 2,273,775 1,174,612
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances 8,045,191 20,815
Lease Rentals (Refer Note No 2.26) 315,025 315,025
Filing fee to Registrar of Companies 2,265,940 22,425
Sitting Fee - Directors 100,000 100,000
Total 27,440,332 20,082,201
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2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

i) The Management has decided to change the method of computation of depreciation on tangible
assets from Written Down Value method to Straight Line Method retrospectively from the date of
acquisition of each asset, during the year. Consequent to this change, the Depreciation charged
in earlier years is excess by Rs.3,47,11,491/- and the same has been credited to Statement of
Profit and Loss as an Exception item. Had the company followed the earlier method, the charge
to the profit and loss account would have been Rs.5,12,28,875.

i) Inthe same manner, the amortisation of intangible assets has also been revisited to align with the
requirement of Accounting Standard (AS) 26 and the the period of amortisation is fixed as 5 years
and consequent to this, the excess amount amortised during earlier years amounting to
Rs.15,164/- is also included in exceptional items in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

During the financial year 2008-09, the company entered into an agreement with M/s. Kairali
Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private Limited (KAAEPL) for the operation and management of
AME Institute. Though M/s. KAAEPL started the course during August 2010, they could not continue
running the institute as they failed to obtain the necessary approval from Director General of Civil
Aviation. Consequent to this, during 2011-12 CIASL invoked a Bank Guarantee for Rupees One
Crore submitted by M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private Limited (KAAEPL) for
non performance and to recover expenses incurred on their behalf & other receivables due from
KAAEPL. However, KAAEPL has disputed the claim and currently the matter is under arbitration.
The amount received from Bank on invocation of Bank Guarantee and the amount determined as
receivable from M/s. KAAEPL have been netted off and the balance receivable is shown under
non-current receivables. Even though the management is confident of recovering the amount due,
as a matter of financial prudence provision is created for the entire amount of Rs.60,22,711.

During the year 2011 -12, the company received a letter from Corporation Bank directing it not to
remove the assets & equipments of M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Pvt. Ltd. (KAAEPL)
from the space that the Company had leased out to KAAEPL, on the grounds that these assets &
equipments were hypothecated to Corporation Bank. The Company in turn had raised a demand
for Rs.2,022,480/- on Corporation Bank towards rent for the space occupied by the assets and
equipments of KAAEPL till 30 September, 2012. Corporation Bank has rejected the Company's claim
for rent vide letter No. OR:1049:2012 dated 01.10.2012. No rental income has been recognized
considering the above dispute, w.e.f. 01.10.2012 and during the current year provision has been
created for the entire amount.

The Company has taken land from Cochin International Airport Limited (Holding Company) on an
operating lease as defined in the Accounting Standard 19 for a term of 30 years commencing from
12th May, 2008.The lease rentals are charged during the year to the Statement of Profit & Loss and
the maximum obligation on long-term, non cancellable operating lease payable as per the rentals
stated in the agreement are as follows:

; Year ended 31.03.2016 | Year ended 31.03.2014

Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Lease rentals recognized during the year 315,025 315,025
Lease obligation payable:
Not later than one year 315,025 315,025
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,260,100 1,260,100
Later than five years 5,040,400 5,355,425
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2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

For making provision for long term employee benefits such as Gratuity and Earned leave encashment,
no actuarial valuation has been obtained by the Company and the same has been provided
considering the period of service and the number of leave outstanding. The Management is of the
opinion that since there are only 4 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company, there will not
be any material impact for the provision made without assessing the liability on actuarial basis.

The Company has executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated 12" day of May, 2006
with Cochin International Airport Limited (CIAL). As per the terms of the MOU, the Company has to
pay a Royalty @ 3% on the Gross Turnover. During the Financial year 2011-12, Company had
provided a sum of Rs.28,53,553/- towards royalty payable in the books of account. However during
the year 2012-13, the Company was informed by CIAL of their decision not to charge royalty till the
company commences its main operation viz. maintenance using the MRO Hangar facility. No provision
for royalty for the current year has been considered.

In the opinion of the Directors, short term loans and advances and other current Assets, have the
value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

Based on the assessment made, losses on account of impairment of assets have not been recog-
nized in the books, since the Management is of the opinion that the same is not material.

Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Accounting Standard — 18 on Related
Party Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006.
A. Related parties and nature of relationship
a) Holding Company
Cochin International Airport Limited (CIAL)

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

i) Mr. V.J. Kurian, Chairman

i) Mr. R Venkiteswaran, Managing Director

iii) Mr. Jacob Chennakatu Varkey, Director

iv) Mr. George Nereaparamban Vareed, Director

v) Mr. Babu Erumala Mathew, Director

vi) Mr.Jose Pottokaran, Independent Director

vii) Mr. ARamalingam, Independent Director

B. Description of Transactions

Holding Company TOTAL

Nature of Transaction

31% March, 2015 | 31% March, 2014 | 31 March, 2015 | 315 March, 2014
Debit for meeting expenses
a) Lease Rent paid 353,962 353,962 353,962 353,962
b) Energy charges 1,473,558 1,448,771 1,473,558 1,448,771
c) Others 20,636 Nil 20,636 Nil
Providi [ .
Rental income 1,053,319 382,150 1,053,319 382,150
Outstandi SO e
sheet date
Payable : 7,431,031 6,723,451 7,431,031 6,723,451
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2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

Details of transactions with key managerial personnel

; 315t March 2016 | 315 March 2014
Nature of Transaction
Rupees Rupees
To Mr. R Venkiteswaran - Remuneration to Managing Director 2,400,000 2,400,000

Expenditure in foreign currency on account of

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees
A) CIF Value of Imports
Capital Goods 998,157 45,094
B) Others 66,30,685 46,46,197
Total 7,628,842 4,691,291

Earnings in Foreign Exchange

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees

Aircraft Certification, Headset services, rentals 28,561,478 19,884,097

and others

Total 28,561,478 19,884,097

Earnings per share

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation (Rs.) (52,374,745.25) (86,473,874.84)

VWeighted Average Number of Equity Shares of 45,319,400.00 45,319,400.00

Rs. 10/- each (fully paid-up)

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (1.16) (1.91)

Provision and/or payments in respect of Audito

r's Remuneration

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rupees Rupees

a. Statutory Audit Fees 50000 45,000

Taxation Matters (Including Tax Audit)" 35000 35,000

Others services Nil Nil

Out of Pocket Expenses Nil Nil

Total 85000 80000

Disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 - “Employee Benefits”

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on

account of defined contribution plans:
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; Current Year Previous year
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Employers contribution to Provident Fund 3,696,466 3,926,292
Payment/provision for Gratuity 91,119 -
Payment/provision for leave encashment 3,321,849 1,225,367
Total 7,109,434 5,151,659
2.37 Remuneration & Other Perquisites to Directors
. Current Year Previous year
Rupees Rupees
a) Managerial Remuneration 2,400,000 2,400,000
b) Sitting fees 100,000 100,000
Total 2,500,000 2,500,000

2.38 Litigation: The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the
ordinary course of husiness. The Company’'s management does not reasonably expect that these
legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on
the company’s results of operations.

2.39 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

2.40' Contingent Liabilities not provided for : i) Demand for payment towards short deduction of tax
at source amounting to Rs.213230/- for the Assessment Year 2013-14, which is disputed by the
Company before the First Appellate authority and is pending for disposal.

2.4 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for
- Nil (Nil).

2.42 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

V.J. Kurian IAS

are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in
conformity with current year's layout.

Signature to Note 1 to 2.42 form integral part of accounts

As per our separate report of even date attached

sd/-

i For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
R. Venkiteswaran

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

Chairman Managing Director
sd/- sd/- . sd/-
Lenny Sebastian Saji Daniel C. Krishnamoorthy

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)

Place: Cochin
Date: 12.06.2015

Place: Cochin- 16
Date: 15.06.2015
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AVIATION SERVICES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2015

Particalars For the year ended 31.03.2015 For the year ended 31.03.2014
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before taxation and extra-ordinary items (80,990,270) (77,461,274)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 43,207,773 38,774,616

Excess depreciation income

Interest income (2,121,958) (2,283,578)

Interest Expense 36,707,661 30,834,588

Loss on sale of Fixed asset 22,738

Provision for doubtful debts/advances 8,045,191 -

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,871,138 (9,135,648)

Adjustments for:

{Increase)/decrease in Inventories (233,832) 1,876,967

(Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables (2,539,615) 157,721

(Increase)/decrease in Pre-payments and Other receivables (3,297,289) (3,033,730

Increase/(decrease) in Liabilities & provisions 281,190,991 (1,430,897)

Cash generated from operations 279,991,384 (11,565,588)

Less :Tax for earlier years 409,390

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 279,582,004 {11,565,588)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital work-in-progress (3,396,670) (6,074,775)

Investment in Bank term deposits

Interest received 2,121,956 2,283,578

Sale of Fixed asset 8,000 -

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (1,265,714) (3,791,197)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital -

Interest paid (36,707 661) (30,834,588)

Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowing (276,802,897) 29,559,927

Praceeds from Short-Term Borrowing 27 987,255 15,827,310

Repayment of Long-Term Borrowing -

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (285,523,303) 14,552,649

Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,207,013) (804,136)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 25,746,737 26,550,873

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 18,539,724 25,746,737

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of 182

Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS R. Venkiteswaran

Chairman Managing Director
sd/- sd/-

Lenny Sebastian Saji Daniel
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Cochin
Date: 12.06.2015

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-
C. Krishnamoorthy
Senior Partner (M.No: 5957)

Place: Cochin - 16
Date: 15.06.2015
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CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/318, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kochi Airport P.O_, Ernakulam 683 111, CIN : U45203KL2012PLC031692

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Third Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial statement
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Results of Operations (Rs. in lakhs)
FINANCIAL RESULTS 201415 2013 14
Total Income 406.17 13.86
Less : Administrative & other Expenses 81.41 312
Cash Profit /ILoss 324.76 10.74
Less : Depreciation 27.78 0.02
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 296.98 10.72
Less : Provision for Income Tax (Current & Deferred Tax) 96.39 (3.20)
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 200.59 13.92
Less : Balance of loss for earlier years (12.24) (26.16)
Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet 188.35 (12.24)

Review of Operations

a)

Solar Power Projects

Your Company has successfully commissioned a 1 MWp Solar power plant in the CIAL Museum
premises and the rooftops of Aviation Academy/hangar buildings. The average power generated per
day is approximately 4000 units which are being consumed by CIAL.

The implementation of a 12 MWp Solar Power project in an area of 50 acres of land adjacent to the
Cargo Terminal is in the final stages. At present, CIAL consumes approximately 50,000 units of elec-
tricity per day and with the commissioning of this solar power plant, CIAL's dependence on KSEB
power will be minimum. This will also be in line with CIAL's vision to become a ‘Green Airport. The
power produced would be banked during the day time and would be utilized during the off peak /
peak period; for which the Company has received in-principle sanction from KSEB. Itis expected that
the plant can be commissioned during August 2015.

Small Hydro Electric Power Projects
The Government of Kerala, vide G.O.{(MS) No:23/2014/PD dated 21% July 2014 and G.O (Rt)

No.300/2014/PD dated 09" December 2014 allotted the following eight Small Hydro Electric Power
Projects aggregating to 49.8 MW to CIAL on BOOT basis under IPP category.
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SLLNo | Name of the SHEP | Capacity (MW) Location

1. Arippara 3.0 60 KMs from Kozhikkode (via
Kunnamagalam,Omassery, Kodanchery)

2 Kokkamullu 20 35 KMs from Thaliparamba, Kannur.

3. Thoniyar 26 Located at Chelakkadu, Malayinchi about 20
Kms away from Thodupuzha.

4. Thuval 1.0 7 Kms from Irattayar North, Nedumkandam
village, ldukki.

5. Kakkadampoyil — | 21.0 Kozhikkode District (via Omessary)

6. Urumbini 2. 2 1 km upstream of Seethathode power house.

T Kazhuthurutty 2.0 Located near Kollam — Shenkotta Road

upstream of Thenmala reservoir.

8. Poru 16.0 Downstream of Bhoothathankettu barrage.

The survey works for six of the above projects have been completed. The Company has also initiated
action for land acquisition at Arippara, Thoniyar and Kokkamullu. It is expected that these projects
can be commissioned during the Financial Year 2018 — 19.

Dividend

Your Directors have considered it financially prudent in the long-term interests of the Company to reinvest
the profits into the business of the Company to build a strong reserve base and for the growth of the busi-
ness. No dividend has therefore been recommended for the year ended 2015.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Your Directors state that:

a)

c)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Ill to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation
was observed
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Directors

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (6) to section 152 of the Act 2013, two-third of the total number
of Directors excluding Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation and out of which one-third has
to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting. Sri C.V.Jacob (DIN: 000301086) is therefore liable
to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. The Board
therefore recommends the reappointment of Sri. C.V.Jacob as Director of the Company.

During the year under review, the Board appointed Smt. Athiyarath Kothai Ramani (DIN 07188269) and
Smt. Jolly Thomas (DIN:07188260) as Independent Directors with effect from 27.03.2015, who are not
liable to retire by rotation as per provisions of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of Companies
Act 2013. Necessary declarations have been obtained from them, as envisaged under the Act. The Board
ensured that their appointments as Independent Directors are in compliance with the requirements under
the Companies Act 2013. Sri. A.C.K.Nair and Sri.Jose Thomas P. were appointed as Directors of the
Company during the financial year 2014 — 15. Sri. E.Nandakumar has vacated the office of the Director
during the period under review. Sri. M.A.Yusuffali, Director resigned from the Board during the year under
review on account of personal reasons.

Declaration on Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013, so as to qualify themselves
to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant rules. The Board of Directors declare that the Independent Directors (subject to approval of
the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting) Smt. Athiyarath Kothai Ramani and Smt.Jolly
Thomas are:

(a) inthe opinion of the Board, are persons of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience;
(b) who were not a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company.

(c) who are not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;

(d) who have or had no pecuniary relationship with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
Company or their Promoters or Directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

(e) none ofwhose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company or their Promoters, or Directors, amounting to two percent or more
of its gross turnover of total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed,
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial
year;

(f) who, neither herself nor any of her relatives -

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the
Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company in any of the three financial year
immediately preceding the financial year in which she is proposed to be appointed,;

(i) is or has been an employee or propriety or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which she is proposed to be appointed, of —
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A. a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

B. any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of the gross turnover of
such firm;

(i)  holds together with her relative two per cent, or more of the total voting power of the Company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that
receives twenty-five percent or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters,
directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or more of
the total voting power of the company;

(g) who possesses such other qualification as may be prescribed.

Director’s appointment and remuneration

The policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters is done as provided
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee for this purpose.

Pursuant to Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014
read with Article 100 of the Articles of Association of the company, the Board has fixed a sitting fees of
Rs.25,000 per meeting per Director for attending the Board Meeting and Rs 15,000 per meeting per Com-
mittee Member (Director) for attending Committee meetings of the Company.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Statutory Auditors

M/s. JVR Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The current Statutory Auditors have expressed that they are not seeking reap-
pointment as Statutory Auditor. Hence, your Board has decided to propose M/s. Sen George Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2015 - 16
for the approval by the members in this Annual general Meeting. The company has received a letter from
M/s.Sen George Associates stating that the appointment, if made, will be within the limit prescribed under
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosures

Audit Committee
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee with the following members;

1. Smt. Ramani Damodaran - Chairman
2. Sri. C.V.Jacob - Member
3. Smt. Jolly Thomas - Member

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
1. Terms of reference to the Audit Committee
a. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information.

b. Reviewing the annual financial statements before submission to the Board with special reference
to (i) any changes in accounting policies and practices (ii) major accounting entries based on
exercise of judgment by management (iii) compliance with accounting standards and with legal

requirements
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¢. Reviewing the adequacy of internal control systems and internal audit functions

d. Discussion with the external auditors on the nature and scope of audit as well as have post-audit
discussion in areas of concern.

e. Investigation into any matter in relation to the above items or referred to it by the Board.
One meeting of the Audit Committee was held during the period under report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per the provision of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee with the following Members:

1. Smt. Ramani Damodaran - Chairman
2. Smt. Jolly Thomas - Member
3. Sri.A.Chandrakumaran Nair - Member

The purpose of constituting the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to formulate the criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a Director and recommend to
the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees by striking a balance between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule |V of the Companies Act, 2013
states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of
Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. Similarly, the evaluation of all the directors and the
Board as a whole has to be conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. None
of the independent directors are due for re-appointment.

Risk Management

The Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and management to ensure stable &
sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and resolving the risks
associated with the business. The Company has identified the potential risks such as financial risk, legal
& statutory risks and the internal process risk and has put in place appropriate measures for its mitigation.
At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

Meetings of the Board

Eight meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review on 16" April 2014, 24"
May 2014, 26" June 2014, 29" August 2014, 12" September 2014, 11" October 2014, 19" December 2014
and 27" March 2015.

Particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 of the Act
There were no Loans, guarantees and investments made by the company under section 186 of the
Companies Act 2014 during the year under review.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
There is no activity relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption in connection with the
operations of the Company. The Company does not have any foreign exchange earnings and outgo.
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Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions in terms of Accounting Standard-18 are set out in the Notes forming part of
the accounts. These transactions are not likely to have a conflict with the interest of the company. All the
related party transactions are negotiated on arm's length basis and are intended to further the interest of
the company.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. There were
no employees of the company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the limits set out under Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure A to this Report.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
4

Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration
or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

5. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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Annexure to Board’s Report

FORM NO. MGT 9

Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.

CIN

U45203KL2012PLC031692

Registration Date

20th July 2012

Name of the Company

CIAL Infrastructures Limited

2.
3.
4

Category/Sub-category
of the Company

Company Limited by shares /
Indian Non Government Company

Address of the Registered
office & contact details

XI/318E, Cochin International Airport Buildings
Kochi Airport P O., Ernakulam 683 111

Whether listed company

No

Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Not Applicable

10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing

Sl. Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of
No. main products / services service the company
1 Solar Power Generation 40106 100%
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Holding/ | % of :
= Namu‘::'c‘:‘:);dda’:“ o CIN / GIN Subsidiary/| shares Azzgfig:'e
PAy Associate | held
1. | Cochin International Airport Limited | UB3033KL1924PLC0O07803 | Holding 99.99 2 (46)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding.
T, Noc;.tﬁi;syrl:e[sﬂ.t;i:: ?1 E:;?:hr"]_'znﬂ':l:]g MNo. of Shares held at the end of the year o,
Share - ‘ % of ‘ % of cd':,an-",,gge
holders mat | Physical Total Total | Demat | Physical Total Total | the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
1. Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 70 70 0.0007 70 70 0.00014
b) Central Government
c) State Governments
d) Bodies Corporate 10334552 10334552 | 99.9903 45334552 | 45334552 | 99.99986 | 338.67%
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-Total (A)(1) 10334622 10334622 100 45334622 | 45334622 100 | 338.67%
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(2) Foreign

a) NRIs — Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

Sub Total(A)(2)

Total Shareholding of
promoter(A)=(A)(1)+(A)2)

10334622

10334622

100

45334622

45334622

338.67%

B. Public Shareholding

a) Mutual Funds/ Banks/ FI

b) Central Government

c) State Governments

d) Venture Capital Funds

e) Insurance Companies

f) Flis

g) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

h) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B){1)

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

il) Overseas

b) Resident Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

il)Individualshareholders
holding neominal share
capital in excess of Rs
1 lakh

c) Others

d) Non Resident Indians

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public Shareholding
(By=B)(1)+ (B)2)

C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

10334622

10334622

100

45334622

45334622

100

338.67%
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ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

iii)

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year %
(1]
sl , % of Yeof change
No | Shareholder’s Name % of Shares % oftotal | Shares | in share-
No. of total Pledged / No. of Sohares of Pledged /| holding
Shares encum- Sh:;res the encum- during
Shares of the bered to compan bered the year
company total pany to total
shares shares
1 | CIAL 10334552 | 99.9993 --| 45334552 | 99.99986 - | 33867%
2. | V.J.Kurian 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
3 | AChandrakumaran Nair 10| 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
4 | AM Shabeer 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
5 | R Venkiteswaran 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
6 | Joseph Peter Painunkal 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
7 | Satheesh Kumar Pai 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
8 |V Sankar 10 0.0001 - 10 0.00002 - -
Total 10334622 100.00 -- | 45334622 100.00 --| 338.67%
Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl.
Particulars )
No. % of total ""522:2?'
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares st fhva
company
company
At the beginning of the year 10334622 100 10334622 100

Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.):

Allotment of 3,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10
each at par value on 24.05.2015

At the end of the year

45334622 100 45334622 100




21* Annual Report 2014-15

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

Sl. For Each of the
Mo Top 10 Sharsholders No of Shares sh/aurzf.stz:aée No. of shares sh/;::sTgftatl:e
company company

1 = = > = =

o S 5 = = =

3 i - w = =

4 = = = - -

5 = % & ” &

6 = = S = =

T - - - = -

8 = = 4 £ =

9 2 o - & .

10 - - - - -

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1. Shri. V.J.Kurian IAS, Chairman & Managing Director

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
:: Particulars 9% of total % ﬁf total
] No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares sofat:lees
company
company
At the beginning of the year 10 0.0001 10 0.0001
Date wise Increase/ Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.);
At the end of the year 10 0.0001 10 0.0001
2. Shri. A.Chandrakumaran Nair, Director
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
sl [
Particulars % of total %o gf total
No. No. of shares | shares of the [No.ofshares| $%31°%
company company
At the beginning of the year 10 0.0001 10 0.0001
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V)

Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.):

At the end of the year

10

0.0001

10

0.0001

3. Shri. Saji K.George, Company Secretary & Smt.Mini Joseph, CFO

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

during the year

Cumulative Shareholding

Sl

Particulars o, of total % ﬁf total
e No. of shares | shares of the [No.of shares| 32%°%
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.):
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
INDEBTEDNESS - (Rs. In Lakh)
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Loans | Unsecured y Total
¥ : Deposits
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

1) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - - - -
Addition - - - -
Reduction = = 5 =

Net change Indebtedness

At the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)




21* Annual Report 2014-15

VL

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakh)

Sl
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD

Sri.V.J.Kurian, Chairman

& Managing Director

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of Income- tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amountin Rs.)

Sl.
No

Particulars of

g Name of the Directors
Remuneration

Total Amount

Independent Directors A.K.Ramani Jolly Thomas

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission - B

Others, please specify - N

Total (1) - N

Other Non-Executive

Directors CV: Jatob

A.C.K.Nair

Jose Thomas P

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Commission - -

Others, please specify - -

Total (2) 3 -

Total (B) = (1+2) = —

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per

the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER /WTD

Total
Key Managerial Personnel am
sl . . Amount
Particulars of Remuneration
No. CFO Company Secretary
Mini Joseph Saji K.George
1 Gross salary - - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 23,402 - 23,402
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of -- -- --
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section 17(3) of Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - - —
Commission
- as % of profit - . -
- others, specify... = e -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total (C) 23,402 -- 23,402
VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
. : Appeal
_ Brief Details _of Penalty /| Authority made,
Type Sectlon_of the Descrip- Punlshmer_ttf [RD/ if any
Companies Act Hon Compounding NCLT/ (give
fees imposed COURT] Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,
Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016
www.jvr-cas.com Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax: 4011415,

E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members of
CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED
Nedumbassery

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,

Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016
www.jvr-cas.com Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax. 4011415,

E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) Inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015;

b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of The Companies Act 2013, we give in the Annexure
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the pur-
poses of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us.

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from branches
not visited by us.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:
i) the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
i) the company does not have any long-term contracts requiring a provision for material
foreseeable losses.
iii) the company doesnothave any amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

For JVR& ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sdi-

JOMON K GEORGE

Place: Kochi - 16 Partner
Date :11.06.2015 M.No.202144
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JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,
Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016

WWW.jvr-cas.com

Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax: 4011415,
E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report of even date to the members of CIAL
Infrastructures Limited on the accounts of the company for the period ended 315t March, 2015.
Interms of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2015, issued by Central Governmentof India, in terms of section

143(11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report, on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
said Order, that:

1)

2)

4)

9)

10)
11)
12)

(i) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(i) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The company does not carry inventories of material values.
The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in register maintained under Section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business
with regard to the purchases of fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. There is no
continuing failure to correct weaknesses in internal controls.

The company has not accepted any deposits.

The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified in subsection (1) of Section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities.

ii. According to records of company, there are no statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

iii. The company does not have any amounts which are required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and rules made thereunder.

The accumulated loss of the company is not more than fifty percent of its net worth. The company
has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

The company has not defaulted in any repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or
debenture holders.

The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from any bank or financial institution.
The company has not availed any term loans.

Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedandinformationandexplanationsgivenbythemanagement,
we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For JVR& ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sd/-

Place: Kochi - 16 JOMON K GEORGE
Date :11.06.2015 Partner, M.No.202144




CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Regd Office: X1/318, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kochi Airport P.O., Ernakulam 683 111, CIN : U45203KL2012PLC031692

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2015

Current Year | Previous Year

Particulars Note
(Amount Rs)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds

a) Share capital 3 453,346,220 103,346,220

b) Reserves and surplus 4 18,834,717 (1,224 ,623)
(2) Non Current liabilities

a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 540,661 -

b) Long-term Provisions 5 26,486 -
(3) Current liabilities

a) Trade Payables 6 3,817,109 16,854

b) Other Current Liabilities 7 1,113,051 1,135,887

c¢) Short-term Provisions 8 8,608,300 204,210

TOTAL 486,286,644 103,478,648
Il. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

a) Fixed assets

i) Tangible assets 9 67,709,846 69,856,000

ii) Intangible assets 10 11,503 15,337

iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 11 36,054,903 27,090

b) Deferred Tax Asset - 489,635

c¢) Long-term Loans and Advances 12 15,084,620 34,620
(2) Current assets

a) Trade Receivables 13 890,746 -

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 333,003,195 31,669,553

¢) Short-term Loans and Advances 15 7,480,601 138,631

d) Other Current Assets 16 26,051,130 1,247,682

TOTAL 486,286,644 103,478,648

The accompanying notes form integral part of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob For JVR& ASSOCIATES

Chairman & Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111215)

sd/- sd/-

Mini Joseph Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Sd/-

Place: Kochi JOMON K GEORGE

Date: 11.06.2015 Partner, M.No.202144
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CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/318, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kochi Airport P.O., Emakulam 683 111, CIN : U45203KL2012PLC031692

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2015

Particulars Note Current Year ] Previous Year
(Amount Rs)
I.  Revenue from Operations 17 8,471,023 -
[l.  Other Income 18 32,145,751 1,386,313
lll. Total Revenue (I + 1) 40,616,774 1,386,313
IV. Expenses:
a) Employee Benefits 19 1,385,718 104,312
b) Finance Costs 20 318,870 300
c¢) Depreciation and amortization 2,778,280 2,663
expenses
d) Other Expenses 21 6,435,969 207,341
Total Expenses (a to d) 10,918,838 314,616
V. Profit before exceptional and 29,697,936 1,071,697
extraordinary items and tax (lll - IV)
VI. Exceptional ltems - -
VII. Profit before extraordinary items and tax 29,697,936 1,071,697
(V-VI)
VIIl. Extraordinary items - -
IX. Profit before tax (VII - VIII) 29,697,936 1,071,697
X. Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 8,608,300 169,590
(2) Deferred tax 1,030,296 (489,635)
XI. Profit /(loss) for the period from
contim(ling clperatior?s (I1X - X) 23055 0A0 eeling
Xll. Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 0.45 0.13
(2) Diluted 0.45 0.13

The accompanying notes form integral part of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Chairman & Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-

Mini Joseph Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date: 11.06.2015

As per our report of even date attached

For JVR& ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sdi-

JOMON K GEORGE
Partner
M.No.202144




Cochin International Airport Limited

CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/318, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kochi Airport P.O., Ernakulam 683 111, CIN : U45203KL2012PLC031692

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BACKGROUND

CIAL Infrastructures Limited was incorporated on 20.07.2012 as a subsidiary of Cochin International
Airport Limited. It is engaged in the generation and distribution of solar power to its parent
company, Cochin International Airport Limited and has started generating electricity from its 1MWp
Solar Power Plant during the year.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant Accounting Policies followed by the company are as stated below:

General

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention and in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards in India.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and reported amount of income and expenses during the period. Actual figures
may differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in
current and future periods.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

Capital Work in Progress is stated at Cost.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided under Straight Line Method over the useful life of
the assets estimated by the management which is in line with the terms prescribed in Schedule |l to
The Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during the period is proportionately
charged.

Effective from April 01, 2014, the Company has changed its method of providing depreciation on
tangible Assets from ‘Written Down Value' method to ‘Straight Line’ Method at the rates prescribed
in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that this change will result in more
appropriate presentation and will give a systematic basis of depreciation charge, representative of
the time pattern in which the economic benefits will be derived from the use of these assets.

Since the assets were not put to use, no depreciation was charged till 31t March 2014 and hence the
change has no financial effect.
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The management estimates the useful life of the fixed assets as follows:
Plant & Equipment 15 years

Solar Power Plant 25 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computer & Accessories 3 years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Solar Power Plant is depreciated over a period of 25 years on the basis of warranty certificate
received from the supplier, providing a performance warranty of 80% of the rated capacity till the end
of 25 years.

Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, being Computer Software are written off over a period of five years under Straight
Line Method.

Share Issue Expenses
Expenses incurred on enhancement of authorised capital amounting to Rs.1,87,50,000/- is written
off over a period of five years.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Sale of power is recognised at the point of completion of agreed services.
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Revenue from sale of tender documents is
recognised on effecting the delivery of the same.

Employee Benefits

a. Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus and incentives which fall due
within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders the related services which entitles
him to avail such benefits are recognised on an undiscounted basis and charged to the profitand
loss account.

b. Defined Contribution Plans - Contributions made to the Recognised Provident Fund are
expensed to the Profit & Loss Account. The Company's obligation is limited to the amount
contributed by it.

c. Defined Benefit Plans - The net present value of the obligation for gratuity benefits as determined
on independent actuarial valuation, conducted using the projected unit credit method, as adjusted
for unrecognized past services cost, if any, is recognised in the books of account. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which
they occur.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on the last date of the accounting year and the resultant exchange difference,
if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's Earnings per share comprise of the net profit
after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in computing
diluted Earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving the basic
earning per share and also the weighted average number of shares, which would have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Taxes on Income

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. The current tax is
determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of the estimated taxable income of the period.
The deferred tax charge or credit is recognised using prevailing enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates. Where there are unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax asset are
recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Other deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extentthere is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date based on the developments during the period. Deferred
tax in respect of timing differences, which originate and reverse during a tax holiday period, are not
recognised to the extent the gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period.

MAT Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations
contained in the guidance note issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said
assetis created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement.
The company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company
will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss will be recognised wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
greater of the assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing the value in use; the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to the present value using the weighted average cost of capital.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Share Capital
Particilirs Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Authorised:

Equity Shares:

30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid (PY : 5,00,00,000 equity shares) 3,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up

Equity Shares:

4,53,34,622 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
fully paid up (PY : 10,334,622 equity shares) 453,346,220 103,346,220
453,346,220 103,346,220
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-.




Details of persons holding more than 5% shares is as follows:
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Rs.10/- each (PY : 10,334,552
equity shares)

Baiticiilie Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)

a) Cochin International Airport

Limited

4,53,34,552 equity shares of 99.99% 453,345,520 103,345,520

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at
March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015 is set out below:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Number of shares at the beginning 10,334,622 10,334,622
Value of shares at the beginning 103,346,220 103,346,220
Add: Shares issued during the period
(Number) 35,000,000 -
(Value) 350,000,000 -
Number of shares at the end 45,334,622 10,334,622
Value of shares at the end 453,346,220 103,346,220
Reserves and surplus
Patticulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Profit & Loss Account
Opening Balance (1,224,623) (2,616,365)
Current period Profit 20,059,340 1,391,742
Closing balance 18,834,717 (1,224,623)
Long-term Provisions
particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Provision for Employee Benefits 26,486 -
26,486 -
Trade Payables
Hatii e Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Creditors for Expenses 3,817,109 16,854
3,817,109 16,854
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10.

"

Other Current Liabilities

Particul Current Year Previous Year
el Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Other Current Liabilities 1,113,051 1,135,887
1,113,051 1,135,887
Short-term provisions
Pacticulais Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Provision for Income Tax 8,608,300 204,210
8,608,300 204,210
Fixed Assets (Tangible Assets) (In Rupees)
Cost Depreciation Net Carrying Amount
Particulars Costas on Additions Sales/ Costason Upto Forthe year | Sales/ Upto Asat Asat
01.04.2014 Adjustment | 31.03.2015 | 01-04-2014 Adjust- | 31-03-2015 | 31.03.2015 H.05.2014
ment
Plant & Equipment 23300 . 23,300 * 1114 - 1114 22,186 .
Sclar Power Plant | 69,856,000 109,724 69,965,724 - | 2,657,761 2657761 | 67,307,963 | 69,856,000
Office Equipment 45599 - 45,599 - 427 427 45172 -
Computers & 342545 - 342 545 - 106,634 - 106,634 23591 -
Accessories
Fumniture & 107124 107 124 - 8510 8,510 98,614 -
Fixtures
Total 69,856,000 628,292 -| 70484,292 -| 2778448 -| 2774446 | 67,709,846 | 69,856,000
Previous Year -| 69,856,000 -| 69,856,000 - - - -| 69,856,000 .
Fixed Assets (Intangible Assets) (In Rupees)
Cost Depreciation Net Carrying Amount
Particulars Costas on Additions Sales/ Costas on Upto For the year | Sales/ Upto Asat As at
01.04.2014 Adjustment | 31.03.2015 | 01-04-2014 Adjust- | 31-03-2015 | 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
ment
Tally Software 18,000 . : 18,000 2,663 3,834 = 6,497 11,503 15,337
Total 18,000 . : 18,000 2,663 3,834 - 6,407 11,503 15,337
Previous Year - 18,000 B 18,000 - 2,663 - 2,663 15,337 .
Capital Work in Progress (In Rupees)
Cost Depreciation Net Carrying Amount
Particulars Costas on Additions Deletions | Costason Upto For the year | Sales/ Upto Asat Asat
01.04.2014 3.03.2015 | 01-04-2014 Adjust- | 31032015 | 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
ment
Hydro Project 33,000,186 33,000,186 s E -| 33,000,186 =
Solar Power Plant 27,090 3,064 717 27,090 3,054 717 - - 3054 117 27,080
Total 27,000 | 36,054,903 27,000 | 36,054,903 - -| 36,054,903 27,000
Previous Year 27,090 - 27,090 27,090




12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

Long-term loans and advances
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Pl Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Unsecured, considered good
MAT credit entittement ’ 4320 620
Security Deposit with Sales Tax 50,000 -
Unamortised Expenses - Share Issue Expenses 15,000,000 -
15,084,620 34,620
Trade Receivables
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months - -
Others 890,746 =
890,746 -
Cash and Cash equivalents
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Balance with Banks - In Current Accounts 8,002,507 6,669,553
- In Fixed Deposits 325,000,000 25,000,000
Cash on hand 688
333,003,195 31,669,553
Short-term Loans and Advances
Patticulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Advance Tax & TDS 7,197,862 138,631
Other Advances 282,739
7,480,601 138,631
Other Current Assets
Paiticulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits 26,061,130 1,247,682
26,051,130 1,247,682
Revenue from Operations
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Sale of Solar Power Units 8,471,023 -
8,471,023 -
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18.

19.

20.

21.

Other Income

Pl Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Sale of Tender Documents 317,132 -
Interest Income on deposits 31,828,619 1,386,313
32,145,751 1,386,313
Employee Benefits
artcilaie Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Salaries & Wages 1,209,560 904 286
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 149 673 10,026
Gratuity 26,486 -
1,385,719 104,312
Finance Costs
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Interest on Loan against Fixed Deposits 145,496 -
Bank Charges 173,374 300
318,870 300
Other Expenses
A — Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Travelling & Conveyance 302,632 7,175
Postage & Telephone 28,335 -
Vehicle Hiring charges 810,589 .
Advertisement Expenses 516,264 -
Filing Charges 31,148 18,922
Fee paid for Enhancement of Authorised
Capital (1/5" written off) SRS i
Printing & Stationery 36,293 9,906
Office Expenses 47 110 -
Professional Charges 710,146 81,500
Sponsorship Fees 25,000 -
Rates and Taxes 10,060 65,672
Repairs & Maintenance 95,085 -
Payments to the Auditor as
a) Auditor 50,000 16,854
b) For Management Services 15,000 1,112
Miscellaneous Expenses 8,307 6,200
6,435,969 207,341




22.

23.

24,
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

BastisiiliiG Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
a. Claims against the company not acknowledged
as debt - Bank Guarantees outstanding 26,775,218 -
b.Estimated amounts of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account and not
provided for 618,806,630 =

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. Name of the related party and nature of relationship

a) Holding Company
Cochin International Airport Limited
b) Key Management Personnel
Mr. V. J. Kurian, |1AS -

Mr. C.V. Jacob - Director
Ms. A.K. Ramani - Director
Ms. Jolly Thomas - Director
Mr. A.C.K. Nair - Director
Mr. Jose Thomas - Director

Managing Director

B. Transactions with related parties as per the books of account during the year

Cochin International Airport Limited

Current Year (Rs.)

Previous Year (Rs.)

Allotment of Equity Shares 350,000,000 103,345,520
Advances received (Net) - 32,956
Sale of Power 8,471,023 -
C. Amount Outstanding as at 31.03.2015
| Cochin International Airport Limited 8,90,746 Dr| 37,301 Cr
DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS -15 ON EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Defined Contribution Plans
Contribution to Recognised Provident Fund 149,673
b) Defined Benefit Plan-Gratuity
Present Value of Obligations at the Beginning -
Current Service Cost 23,537
Interest Cost 941
Benefits paid -
Actuarial Variation 2,008
Present Value of Obligations at the end of the year 26,486
c) Following are the Principal Actuarial Assumptions used at the
balance sheet date:
Discount Rate 8.50%
Compensation Escalation Rate 5.00%
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25. Basic and Diluted Earning per Share (EPS), of face value Rs.10/- has been calculated as under:
Particulars Current Year Amount (Rs) | Previous Year Amount (Rs)
BASIC & DILUTED:
Numerator
Net Profit for the year 20,059,339 1,391,742
Denominator
VWeighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year (Partly paid shares 44,567,499 10,334,622
treated as a fraction of an equity share)
Earnings per Share - Basic 0.45 013
- Diluted 0.45 0.13
26. Major Components of Deferred Tax Asset/Deferred Tax Liability are:-
— As on 01.04.2014 Current Year As on 31.03.2015
Asset/(Liability) | Asset/(Liability) Asset Liability
Depreciation (846) (874,987) - 875,833
Provision for Gratuity - 8,184 8,184 -
Preliminary Expenses 490,481 (163,493) 326,987 -
Total 489,635 (1,030,296) 335,171 875,833
NET DTL/DTA 489,635 (1,030,296) - 540,661
27. The details of Provisions as per AS- 29 are given below:
Particulars Opening Additions/ Closing
Balance Reversals Balance
Provision for Taxation 204,210 8,404,090 8,608,300
Provision for Gratuity - 26,486 26,486
28. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Current Year | Previous Year
a) CIF Value of imports made during the year Nil Nil
b) Earnings in Foreign Exchange (Export of Goods) Nil Nil
c) Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
d) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency Nil Nil
29. There are no amount overdue to any enterprises which qualify under the definition of micro and small
enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
30. Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to suit the current

year's layout.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Chairman & Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-

Mini Joseph Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date: 11.06.2015

As per our report of even date attached

For JVR& ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sd/-
JOMON K GEORGE
Partner, M.No.202144




21* Annual Report 2014-15

CIAL INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/318, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbassery,
Kachi Airport P.O., Emakulam 683 111, CIN : U45203KL2012PLC031692

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

(In Rupees)

: For the period For the period
Particulars 01.04.2014 t0 31.03.2015 | 01.04.2013 to 31.03.2014
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before taxation and extra-ordinary items 29,697,936 1,071,697
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 2,778,280 2,663
Interest income (31,828,619) (1,386,313)
Operating profit before working capital changes 647,597 (311,953)
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories -
(Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables (890,746) -
(Increase)/decrease in Pre-payments and Other receivables (47,195,418) (1,386,313)
Increase/(decrease) in Liabilities & provisions 12,207,995 (360,604)
Cash generated from operations (35,230,572) (2,058,870)
Direct Tax Payments (8,608,300)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (43,838,872) (2,058,870)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital work-in-progress (36,656,105) (69,901,090)
Interest received 31,828,619 1,386,313
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (4,827,486) (68,514,777)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 350,000,000
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowing -
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowing - -
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowing -
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 350,000,000 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 301,333,642 (70,573,647)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 31,669,553 102,243,200
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 333,003,195 31,669,553

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Chairman & Managing Director Director
sd/- sd/-

Mini Joseph Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date: 11.06.2015

As per our report of even date attached

For JVR& ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sdi/-

JOMON K GEORGE
Partner
M.No.202144
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AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/ 318 E, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbasserry
Kochi Airport P.O - 683111, CIN : U62100KL2006PLC019227

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 9" Annual Report and the Company's audited financial statement for
the financial year ended 31% March 2015.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The primary objective of your Company was to establish a low costAirline based at Cochin International Airport
to benefit the huge population of Non Resident Keralites in the Middle East. However, due to the restriction by
Government of India that any Indian Carrier seeking to operate international airline services should first have
a fleet of at least 20 aircraft and a 5 year experience in operating domestic services, your Company has kept
this proposal in abeyance. It is however understood that Ministry of Civil Aviation is actively considering the
proposal to relax the above norms.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In compliance with the Companies Act 2013, the Directors place on record that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the yearended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS

Sri. Oommen Chandy (Chairman) Sri. P.K. Kunhalikutty, Sri. K.M. Mani, Sri. K. Babu, Sri. Yusuffali M.A., Sri.
C.V.Jacob, Sri. V.J. Kurian, Sri. K.C.Joseph are the Directors of the Company. Sri. K.M.Mani (DIN 00297594)
and Sri. K.Babu (DIN 03558308) are the Directors who retire by rotation and being eligible, seek reappointment.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. JVR Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The current Statutory Auditors have expressed that they are not seeking reappointment
as Statutory Auditor. Hence, your Board has decided to propose M/s. Sen George Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Ernakulam as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2015 — 16 for the approval
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by the members in this Annual General Meeting. The company has received a letter from M/s. Sen George
Associates stating that the appointment, if made, will be within the limit prescribed under Section 139(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure to this Report.

Meetings of the Board
Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review, on 27" June 2014, 29"
August 2014, 19" December 2014 and 27" March 2015.

Particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 of the Act
During the year under review, the company has not made any loans, guarantees or investments falling under
the purview of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
Since the Company has not commenced its commercial activities,there is no reportable aspect under this head.

Related Party Transactions

During the year under review, the Company has received an advance of Rs 53,834 from its holding Company,
CIAL, to meet statutory and other expenses. This transaction is not likely to have a conflict with the interest of
the company.

Personnel and Industrial Relations

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. There were no
employees of the company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the limits set out under Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions on these items during the year under review:
1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
2 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
4

Neither the Managing Director nor the VWhole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration
or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received
from Central and State Governments, Management and staff of Cochin International Airport, and the members
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-
Oommen Chandy
Chairman
DIN: 02032353
Date : 12" June 2015
Place : Thiruvananthapuram
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REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

Annexure to Board’s Report

FORM NO. MGT 9

Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015
Pursuant fo Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

1. |CIN U62100KL2006PLC019227
2. | Registration Date 21* February 2006
3. | Name of the Company Air Kerala International Services Limited
4. | Category/Sub-category Company Limited by shares /
of the Company Indian Non Government Company
5. | Address of the Registered XI/318E, Cochin International Airport Buildings
office & contact details Kochi Airport P O., Ernakulam 683 111
6. | Whether listed company No
7. | Name, Address & contact Not Applicable
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing
10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

sl. Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of
No. main products / services service the company
1 Airline operation :
(not commenced) Not Applicable NA
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Holding / % of .
- Nam;:'g:);dd;:ss of CIN / GIN Subsidiary/| shares Az::;ca,:le
pany Associate | held
1. | Cochin International Airport Limited | U63033KL1984PLC0O07803 | Holding 99.99 2 (46)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding.
Category of Nat 32:;‘3[::'2ﬁ g:t"ﬁaggﬁlgg;g? No. of Shares held at the end of the year Chgonge
holders :‘; Physical Total %S?‘fa"rrgéal Demat | Physical Total %s?:aI:;aI tﬂ: I;ggr
A, Promoters
1. Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - 70 70 0.01 70 70 0.01
b) Central Government
c) State Governments
d) Bodies Corporate 1064050 1064050 99.99 1064050 1064050 99.99
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-Total (A)(1) 1064120 1064120 100 1064120 1064120 100 -




21* Annual Report 2014-15

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs — Individuals - - - 3 e b = i =2

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - s - o

c) Bodies Corporate -- - - - 15 = = s =

d) Banks/F| - - - = - = i == =

e) Any other... - - - - — - - - -

Sub Total(A)(2) = - = = = = = - =

Total Shareholding of

promoter(AJ=(A)(1)+{A)(2) - 1064120 1064120 100 —| 1064120 | 1064120 100 -

B. Public Shareholding

a) Mutual Funds/ Banks/ FI - - - < - ax % » -

b) Central Government - - - e w v g = a

c) State Governments - e i ax - - o - 4

d) Venture Capital Funds - - - s - i s - -

e) Insurance Companies - - - - - - = - i

f) Flis - . - - " = ” - -

g) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

h) Others (specify) - -- - - . - = - -

Sub-total (B)(1) s = s i = -, - - -

2. Nondnstitutions

a) Bodies Corporate

1) Indian ~ - - - - = = = =

i) Qverseas - - - - - = - - —

b) Resident Individuals

1) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share - - - a N - i - -
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii)Individualshareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs
1 lakh

c) Others - = - aa a = 22 = s

Non Resident Indians - = - & = = = = i

Sub-total (B)(2) 5 - = = . - - 4 3

Total Public Shareholding
(B=(B)(1)+ (B)2)

C. Shares held by Custo-
dian for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1064120 1064120 100 - 1064120 1064120 100 -
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ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year
%
Sl. . % of %of change
No | ShacehaleriName % of total | _Shares % of total | Shares | in share-
No.of | sharesof | F1899%4/ [ No of | Shares of | P'ed9ed/ [ holding
encum- encum- during
Sliree cor;hean bered Shares cortnhean Beted the year
PANY 1 ¢o total PaNY | to total
shares shares
1 CIAL 1064050 99.993 --| 1064050 99.993 - -
2 A Chandrakumaran Nair 10 0.001 - 10 0.001 -- -
3 A M Shabeer 10 0.001 - 10 0.001 -- -
4 Joseph Peter Painunkal 10 0.001 - 10 0.001 - -
5 V Suresh Babu 10 0.001 - 10 0.001 -- -
6 R Venkiteswaran 20 0.002 - 20 0.002 -- --
74 V Sankar 10 0.001 -- 10 0.001 -- --
Total 1064120 100.00 --] 1064120 100.00 - -

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) : No Change

sl

Particulars

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

% of total

No.

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

shares
of the

company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.)

At the end of the year
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
si. For Each of the beginning of the year end of the year
No. Top 10 Shareholders % of total % of Total
No of Shares | shares of the | No. of shares | shares of the
company company
1 = T . = .
7 . % ” % &
2 = = 4 £ =
4 i - w = =
5 = = = 5 =
6 = = = = =
7 - - - - -
8 = . - - -
9 . - - - .
10 B B B - -
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
:‘L’_ Particulars % of total %sﬂ;::al
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year - 5 = -
Date wise Increase /Decreasein
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g. i i i i
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.)
At the end of the year - - - -
V) INDEBTEDNESS - (Rs. In Lakh)
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secu_red Loans_ Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits | Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year - - - -

i) Principal Amount 4 o & 2

ii) Interest due but not paid - - " .

iil) Interest accrued but not due - & - ~

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - =
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Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - - - -

Addition - - - -

Reduction - - - -

Net change Indebtedness 3 5 - 2

At the end of the financial year - s B -

i) Principal Amount = - = =

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - =

iii) Interest accrued but not due = - # !

Total (i+ii+iii) - “ - -

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakh)

sl
No. Particulars of Remuneration Nam(:l;:;)f MD A;ootfllnt

1 Gross salary - -

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of Income- tax Act, 1961 - -

Stock Option - -

Sweat Equity - -

Commission - as % of profit - others, specify... - -

Ql|wIN

Others, please specify . -

Total (A) - ~

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amount in Rs.)

Sl Particulars of . Total
No Remuneration Name of Directors Amount

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission - - < - & = = 4 =

Cthers, please specify - - - - = - = S ”

Total (1) . 4 4 . & g = - -

3%

Qommen | K.M. P.K. K K.C. V. CV. MA

ETEEhARE e Do Chandy M.ani Kunhalikutty Baﬁu Joéeph Kurian Jacdb Yusuffali

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Commission - - - - » - e . =

Cthers, please specify - - - . - . i - —

Total (2) - .

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act - -
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER /WTD

i Total
i . . Key Managerial Personnel P —
e Particulars of Remuneration Company
CFO (Nll) Secretary (Nil)
1 Gross salary - _ -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - - --
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of - - --
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - --
of Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - --
Commission
- as % of profit = =) =
- others, specify... = - =,
5 Others, please specify = a =
Total (A) - - -
VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
= = Appeal
o i Brief Det;uls _o;Pena;:ty / Aut;lgt}lty made,
Type ection of the | paserip- Mishmen [ if any
Companies Act tion Compounding NCLT/ (give
fees imposed COURT] Degtails)
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,

Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016
www.jvr-cas.com Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax. 4011415,

E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members of
AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED
Nedumbassery

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s.Air Kerala International Services Limited,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. WWe have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

VWe believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.




21* Annual Report 2014-15

JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,

Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016
www.jvr-cas.com Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax. 4011415,

E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015;

b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of The Companies Act 2013, we give in the Annexure
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. Inouropinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes
of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from branches
not visited by us.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) the company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii) the company does not have any long-term contracts requiring a provision for material
foreseeable losses.

iii) the company does not have any amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

For JVR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(F. R. No. 0111218)

Sd/-
JOMON K GEORGE
Partner, M.No.202144

Place: Kochi-16
Date :12.06.2015
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JVR & ASSOCIATES No. 38/3639, Valanjambalam Lane,
Chartered Accountants South of South Overbridge, Kochi-682 016
WwWw.jvr-cas.com Ph: 0484-2356314, Fax. 4011415,
: ’ E-mail: mail@jvr-cas.com

THE ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED ON THE ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015.

In terms of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2015, issued by Central Government of India, in terms of
section 143(11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report, on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4
of the said Order, that:

1) The company has not commenced commercial operations during the period and does not have
any fixed assets or inventory. Consequently the reporting requirement under Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order 2015 containedinclause (i) regarding fixed assets, (ii) regarding inventory & (iv) regarding
internal control systems are not presently applicable.

2) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3) The company has not accepted any deposits.

4)  During the year, the company is not required to maintain cost records as specified in subsection (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5) i.  The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities.

ii. According to records of company, there are no statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

iii. The company does not have any amounts which are required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of The Companies
Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

6) The accumulated loss of the company is more than fifty percent of its net worth. The company
has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

7) The company has not defaulted in any repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or
debenture holders.

8) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from any bank or financial
institution.

9) The company has not availed any term loans.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

For JVR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(F. R. No. 0111218)

‘ JOMON K GEORGE
Place: Kochi-16 Partner

Date :12.06.2015 M.No.202144
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AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/ 318 E, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbasserry
Kochi Airport P.O - 683111, CIN : U62100KL2006PLC019227

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31t MARCH 2015

ParicHkIS . (Ami::f{: ;Le::Les} (Ar:cr:\:aif iL:lsRY::eres)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 4 10,641,200 10,641,200
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 (15,098,482) (15,173,892)
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 6 23,461 17,843
(b) Other Current Liabilities 7 5,330,504 5,276,670
(c) Short-Term Provisions 8 4,600 43,571
Total 901,283 805,392
Il. ASSETS
(1) Current Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 873,034 805,392
(b) Other Current Assets 10 28,249 -
Total 901,283 806,392

The accompanying notes form integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached

For JVR & ASSOCIATES
sd/- sd/- Chartered Accountants

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob (FRN. 0111218)
Director Director

Sd/-

JOMON K GEORGE

Place: Kochi Partner

Date: 12.06.2015 M.No.202144




Cochin International Airport Limited

AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/ 318 E, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbasserry
Kochi Airport P.O - 683111, CIN : U62100KL2006PLC019227

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

Parficulars Note Current Year Previous Year
(Amount in Rupees) (Amount in Rupees)
I.  Revenue from Operations -
[l Other Income 1" 139,462 69,536
Ill. Total Revenue 139,462 69,536
IV. Expenses:
Other expenses 12 59,452 43,854
Total Expenses 59,452 43,854
V. Profit before gxceptlonal and (I-1v) 80,010 25 682
extraordinary items and tax
VI. Exceptional/Extraordinary items -
VII. Profit before tax (V=Vl) 80,010 25,682
VIIl. Tax expense:
Current Tax 4,600 21,487
IX. Profit for the year from continuing (VIIVII) 75,410 4,195
operations
X. Eaming Per Share :
Basic & Diluted 0.071 0.004

The accompanying notes form integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached

For JVR & ASSOCIATES

ad/- sd/- Chartered Accountants

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob (FRN. 0111218)
Director Director

Sd/-

JOMON K GEORGE

Place: Kochi Partner

Date: 12.06.2015 M.No.202144
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

BACKGROUND

Air Kerala International Services Limited was incorporated on 21.02.2006. The main objective
of the company is to carry on in India and abroad the business to organise, develop and operate air
transport services, scheduled and non-scheduled, for carriage of passengers, animals, goods of all
description, mail etc.

OPERATIONS AND CONTINUITY

The Company was formed to develop and operate air transport services. Due to technical reasons,
the company has not commenced any commercial operations. However as the company is expecting
a policy change in aviation, going concern assumption is not at stake as of now.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant Accounting Policies followed by the company are as stated below:

General
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention and in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards in India.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principal
(GAAP) requires the managementto make estimates and assumptionsthataffectthe reported amounts
ofassetsand liabilities, the disclosure of contingentliabilities on the date of the financial statements and
reported amount of income and expenses during the period. Actual figures may differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Revenue Recognition
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the interest rate applicable.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. The current tax is
determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of the estimated taxable income of the period.
The deferred tax charge or credit is recognised using prevailing enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates. Where there are unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are
recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Other deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date based on the developments during the period. The
net deferred tax position as on 31/03/2015 is a Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 15.53 lakhs represented
by unabsorbed depreciation/loss. This is not recognised in the absence of virtual certainty about
sufficient future profits.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. VWWhen there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A. Authorised
200000000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Previous 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Year 200000000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each).

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
B. Issued. Subscribed and Paid-up
1064120 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Previous 10,641,200 10,641,200
Year 1064120 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each) .

10,641,200 10,641,200

Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Number Amount Number Amount

Balance at the beginning of the
financial year

Add: Shares issued during the year

Balance at the end of the financial
year

1,064,120 10,641,200 1,064,120 10,641,200

1,064,120 10,641,200 1,064,120 10,641,200

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.

Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Equity Share Capital

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars % of Share % of Share No. of
holding No./of shares holding shares
Cochin International Airport Limited 99.99% 1,064,050 99.99% 1,064,050
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit and Loss Account
Opening Balance (15,173,892) (15,178,087)
Add : Profit for the year 75,410 4,195
Total Reserves & Surplus (15,098,482) (15,173,892)
TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Creditors for Expenses 23,461 17,843
23,461 17,843
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Other current Liabilities 5,330,504 5,276,670
5,330,504 5,276,670




21* Annual Report 2014-15

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provision for Taxation 4,600 43,571
4,600 43,571
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Balances with Banks:
(a) in Current Accounts 6,403 5,643
(b) in Fixed Deposit 866,631 799,749
873,034 805,392
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Income Tax Refund Due 20,818 -
Tax Deducted at Source - AY 15-16 7,431 -
28,249 -
OTHER INCOME
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Received 74,313 69,536
Reversal of Income Tax Provision 65,149 -
139,462 69,536
OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payments to the Auditor as
(a) Auditor: 22,472 16,854
(b) Professional Charges 28,500 22,000
Miscellaneous expenses 8,480 5,000
59,452 43,854

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
a. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt Nil Nil
b. Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed Nil Nil

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Name of Related Party
Cochin International Airport Limited

Nature of Relationship
Holding Company

Transactions with related parties as per the books of account during the year

Cochin International Airport Limited

Current Year (Rs.)

Previous Year (Rs.)

Advances received

53,834

38,236
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Amount Outstanding as at 31.03.2015

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cochin Interational Airport Limited 5,330,504 5,276,670
15. Basic and Diluted Earning per Share (EPS), of face value Rs.10/- has been calculated as under:
Particulars Current Year Amount (Rs) | Previous Year Amount (Rs)
Numerator
Net Profit for the year 75,410 4195
Denominator
Weighted b f ity sh
elg e. avera.lge number or equity shares 1'064‘120 1‘064‘120
outstanding during the year
Earnings per Share 0.071 0.004
16. The details of Provisions as per AS- 29 are given below:
. Opening Additions/ Closing
Particulars Balance Reversals Balance
Provision for Taxation 43,571 (38,971) 4,600
17. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Current Year | Previous Year
a) CIF Value of imports made during the year Nil Nil
b) Earnings in Foreign Exchange (Export of Goods) Nil Nil
c¢) Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
d) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency Nil Nil
18. The management has initiated the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods
and services to the company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises,
as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The company has
not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further in the view of the management, the impact of interest, if
any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be matenial.
19. Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to suit the current

year's layout.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached

For JVR & ASSOCIATES

sd/- sd/- Chartered Accountants

V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob (FRN. 0111218)
Director Director

Sd/-

JOMON K GEORGE

Place: Kochi Partner

Date: 12.06.2015 M.No.202144
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AIR KERALA INTERNATIONAL SERVICES LIMITED

Regd Office: XI/ 318 E, Cochin International Airport Buildings, Nedumbasserry
Kochi Airport P.O - 683111, CIN : U62100KL2006PLC019227

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2015

) For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31-3-2015 Rs. 31-3-2014 Rs.
w fro erati ivities
Profit before taxation and exceptional items 80,010 25,682
Adjustments for :

Interest Received 74,313 69,536
Operating Profit before working capital changes 5,697 (43,854)
Adjustments for :

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 7,768 (51,434)
Cash Generated from Operations (2,071) 7,580
Direct Tax refunds/payments (Net) (4,600) (21,487)
Net cash Flow from Operating Activities (6,671) (13,907)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest received 74,313 69,536
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 74,313 69,536

S inanci ctivities = -
gi;;NggESiELfEDNE%REASE IN CASH AND 67,642 56,629
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 805,392 749,763
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 873,034 805,392

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian IAS C. V. Jacob
Director Director
Place: Kochi

Date: 12.06.2015

As per our report of even date attached

For JVR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 0111218)

Sd/-

JOMON K GEORGE
Partner
M.No.202144
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office : 35, 4* Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Cochin 682031. Phone 0484 — 2374154
Website: www.cial.aero, E-mail : cs@cial.aero, CIN : U63033KL1994PLC0O07803

CS/CIAL/AGM21/2015
01% July 2015

Dear Member,

Sub: Service of documents through electronic mode under Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, New Delhi — Registration of e-mail address

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken up ‘Green Initiative' as a part of Corporate Governance by allowing paperless compliance
by companies as per their circular dated April 21, 2011 stating that the service of documents by a company can be made through
electronic mode. MCA has further clarified that the company will be deemed to have complied with the provisions of Section 20
(Service of Documents) of the Companies Act, 2013, in case the documents like MNotice, Annual Report etc., are sent to its members
in electronic mode to their registered e-mail addresses.

We, therefore, propose to send documents like Notices, Annual Reports, Postal Ballot papers and other communication to you
through e-mail to be provided by you in this regard. Sending the notices and reports through electronic mode will definitely reduce
paper consumption to a great extent and allow public at large to contribute towards a greener environment. The Notices, Annual
Reports and other communication sent electronically will also be made available on our Company's website www.cial.aero (under
“investor info") for viewing by the members.

Since the shares are in physical form, we request you to register your e-mail address with us by filling up the ‘e-mail registration form'’
given below and post it to us or send the scanned copy of the same by email (cs@cial.aero), for registering the same.

Please note that you will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, with a printed copy of the Annual Report of the Company and other
notice/documents, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, upon receipt of a requisition from you, any time, as a
member of the Company.

Thanking you and assuring you of our best service.

Yours faithfully,

for Cochin International Airport Limited
sd/-

Saji K. George

Company Secretary

e e e e s e e e e i e S BRRERE] —

E-mail Registration Form
To
The Company Secretary
Cochin International Airport Limited,

Regd. Office : 35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex,
Marine Drive, Cochin 682031, Kerala, S.India

Phone / fax : 0091 484 2374154

Dear Sir,

| agree to receive the documents/communication as referred to in the Company's letter dated 01.07.2015, in electronic
mode, as per e-mail address furnished.

Folio No. No. of shares Permanent Account
held Number (PAN)

Name of the first /sole shareholder

E-mail address to which documents/notices can
be served electronically i.e., E-mail ID.

Signature of the shareholder (subject to verification
with the signature records maintained by the company)

—3< —CUTHERE—



—< —CUT-HERE—

e o oo i e e e = — — — —3< —CUTHERE—
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office : 35, 4th Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Cochin 682031. Phone 0484 — 2374154
Website: www.cial.aero, E-mail : cs@cial.aero, CIN : U63033KL1994PLC007803

Form No:MGT - 11 PROXY FORM
[pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

CIN U63033KL1994PLC007803
Name of the Company Cochin International Airport Limited
Registered Office 35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Cochin 682031
Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID
Folio No
I\We, being the member(s) of --=-----se-eesmeneeea-oz shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. | Name
Address
Email ID
or failing him Signature
2. | Name
Address
Email ID
or failing him Signature
3. | Name
Address
Email ID Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my or our behalf at the 21* Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, the 18" August, 2015 11.00 a.m. at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts Avenue,

Ernakulam 682 020 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Resolution No:

[1. 2. 3. 4 B 6. Z 8. 9 |
Signed this ----—- day of —remmreeneee 2015 affix Re. 1
revenue

Signature of shareholder:
stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s) :
Note : The form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
215t Annual General Meeting of Cochin International Airport Limited
| certify that | am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. | hereby record my presence
at the 21t Annual General Meeting of the Company at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts Avenue, Ernakulam 682 020
on Tuesday, the 18" day of August, 2015 at 11.00 a.m.
Reg. Folio No. .................. Member's / Proxy's name in BlIoCK Ietters ... e

Member's:/ Proxy:s SIgnature commrsisininnismmsimn i mra st s s b i e i R e s we

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the Entrance of the Hall.
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